it UOB

KERIT (PE) BRAFE
UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED
2021 £ fE# 4 | ANNUAL REPORT 2021

BT 5| DA FFEEAR SR

Innovating for a Sustainable Tomorrow

) :
;?ﬁ' A

(MEHBIERED
®FIE
The Day After Tomorrow
Wong Yee Heng



B3R

Contents

02 KERFTHEFN
03  KAEERTEN
06 TEUHER

07 EEKHKH

B AFREE

14 K=

7 E=ES

22 KEERfTHEALQRME
24 BEERKE

50 RERHE

64 KB

84 EEEIN

85 EWM =

87 EWMFRE

About UOB China

About United Overseas Bank Limited
Financial Highlights

Chairman'’s Statement

Corporate Information

Supervisor

Board of Directors

UOB China Organisation Chart 2021
2021 in Review

Corporate Governance

Risk Management

Important Highlights

Branch Network

Audited Financial Statements

o e N ;
'1 i ¥ "ﬂf-’%-‘ LA

o e oF

HFE
BFHKE
70 x 140 JE

SEFERENORITRERE B E(RER QIEREK) IZIERFRIK 202V FRERTEHELEB AT FINK) HEBRARRK.
IIEEREBM T LR ES LSRN TR TUMAERENARRE, EFEEET, WITREMANEERKE. HRE
E, TBAERMLTET ., CREZNAKMEENAKRBTENBRTRTROTR, Bl URHIKIRE AN,

ELRABSATHEA, RMNEFHERZRMEIFHERESD, DRERMIAFMERNT N, KERTHEE, SATF
ERKEFREZFNRR, FRWE. #W, Fo. BEXMAHEERHZONER, BNBENSFF. ATMEX
A TFERAIARK,

EATNZARHBTE, RERTEEIAEEEMX, BRAOCTEMESNEREM, 2021 FRERTFRELEX
RERLKO+FE, IFTX—REARZAZROEMI BN T EXMNERE, WELED, RANERAL,
OXRAL, FIEMRENZARNBNVERN, BXTARSAEER, BEXICRKT AMNEX—RAFHER MRS
MEH. BRM#EZD,

The Day After Tomorrow

Wong Yee Heng
Chinese ink on rice paper
70 x 140 cm

The Day After Tomorrow, the Silver Award winner in the Emerging Artist Category at the 2021 UOB Painting of the Year (Singapore),
is the design inspiration for this year's Annual Report. The artwork is inspired by climate change and the natural disasters faced
around the world. It depicts the natural landscape of mountains and rivers transforming into man-made high-rise buildings,
tunnels, bridges, transportation and underground cities - a reminder that our desire to create futuristic cities comes at the expense
of Mother Earth.

In these fast-changing times, we must consider how the continuous pursuit of progress and innovation is impacting the
environment. At UOB, we believe that growth must be balanced with responsibility. It is our long-term approach as we draw on
our time-tested values of Honour, Enterprise, Unity and Commitment to forge a sustainable future with our customers, colleagues
and communities.

As the leading patron of the arts in Asia, UOB believes in the vital role of art in connecting communities. 2021 marks the significant
40™ milestone for our flagship visual arts programme, the UOB Painting of the Year competition. The entries from across Indonesia,
Malaysia, Singapore and Thailand ignited the imagination and demonstrated the ingenuity of artists in capturing the fortitude,
compassion and resilience of people during these uncertain times.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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United Overseas Bank (China) Limited (UOB China) is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of United Overseas Bank Limited (UOB), a leading bank in Asia.
UOB China is headquartered in Shanghai and was incorporated in the
People's Republic of China on 18 December 2007.

From our first representative office in Beijing in 1984, we have grown our
network to 16 branches and sub-branches in major Chinese cities.

We have also been building on our strengths. In 2006, UOB was the
first bank from Southeast Asia authorised to settle capital accounts in
Shanghai. We received a retail Renminbi (RMB) licence and Shanghai Gold
Exchange (SGE) trading membership in 2008 and 2011 respectively. In 2012,
we were awarded a Qualified Domestic Institutional Investors licence,
and were one of four foreign banks to participate in bullion trading on
the SGE interbank platform. UOB China is one of the first foreign banks to
obtain a local mutual fund licence in China in 2013. The following year, we
established a sub-branch in the Shanghai Free Trade Zone, and obtained a
trial market maker licence for interbank gold bilateral transactions and a
market maker licence for direct trading between RMB and the Singapore
dollar in the interbank foreign exchange market. We also obtained the
gold import and export licence in 2015.

In 2018, UOB China became one the first market makers do execute direct
trading between the RMB and the Thai Baht. The Bank also successfully
priced its three-year onshore RMB financial bond through the China
interbank market and the Bond Connect scheme (BCS), which is the first
onshore financial bond issued by a Southeast Asian bank through the
BCS. In 2019, UOB China became the first Southeast Asia-headquartered
bank to be a member of the Shanghai Futures Exchange and the first
foreign bank to be a Fixing Member for the Shanghai Silver Benchmark
Price. UOB China also became one of the first foreign bank members of
the Cross-border RMB Trade Finance Trading Platform in 2020. In 2021,
the Bank is approved to be one of the first direct market makers for RMB
and Indonesia Rupiah. These achievements have enabled us to widen our
product and service offering to our customers operating in China.

UOB Group increased the registered capital of UOB China by RMB2.5
billion in 2015 followed by another capital injection of RMB2 billion in
2021. UOB China's current registered capital is RMB7.5 billion and the Bank
is rated 'A+' with a stable outlook by Fitch Ratings and 'AAA" with a stable
outlook by China Cheng Xin International.

We believe in being a responsible financial services provider and we are
committed to making a difference in the lives of our stakeholders and in
the communities in which we operate. Just as we are dedicated to helping
our customers manage their finances wisely and to grow their businesses,
UOB China is steadfast in our support of social development, particularly
in the areas of art, children and education.
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About United Overseas Bank Limited

Who We Are

UOB is a leading bank in Asia with a global network of around 500
branches and offices across 19 countries and territories in Asia Pacific,
Europe and North America. In Asia, we operate through our head office in
Singapore and banking subsidiaries in China, Indonesia, Malaysia, Thailand
and Vietnam, as well as branches and offices across the region.

In 1935, amid the economic uncertainties following the Great Depression,
UOB opened its doors to provide banking services for the merchant
community in Singapore.

Since then, UOB has grown organically and through a series of strategic
acquisitions. Today, UOB is rated among the world's top banks: 'Aal’ by
Moody's Investors Service and 'AA-' by both S&P Global Ratings and Fitch
Ratings.

Over more than eight decades, generations of UOB employees have
carried through the entrepreneurial spirit, the focus on long-term value
creation and an unwavering commitment to doing what is right for our
stakeholders.

At UOB, we believe in being a responsible financial services provider and
we are committed to making a difference in the communities in which
we operate. Just as we are dedicated to helping our customers manage
their finances wisely and grow their businesses, we are steadfast in our
support of social development, particularly in the areas of art, children
and education.

What We Do

UOB provides a wide range of financial services globally through our three
core business segments — Group Retail, Group Wholesale Banking and
Group Global Markets. Our offering includes consumer banking, private
banking, commercial banking, transaction banking, investment banking
and treasury services. Through our subsidiaries, we also provide asset
management, private equity fund management and insurance services
among others.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

3 ﬁ'" s



KIERITHE

About United Overseas Bank Limited
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Financial Highlights

2021 2020 Increase
(Decrease)
ZERR Operating result AR F 7T RMB'000 %
EWVIBANELT Total operating income 1,597,541 1,433,552 11.4
Bl 3% Total operating expenses 1,064,569 1,052,484 1.1
RERERE Impairment charges 132,364 267,602 (50.5)
T FE Profit before tax 398,421 107,214 271.6
arfifE Balance sheet AR ™ T+t RMB'000 %
HwERT Total assets 78,220,119 80,487,543 (2.8)
T ZigHR Financial indicators % % %
HEREFAR Return on equity 4.6 1.6 3.0
REFAR Return on average total assets 0.4 0.1 0.3
ARAUNEE Expenses/income ratio 65.7 72.4 6.7)
FEHERBESERNLERKAN  Net fee and commission income/total 10.3 10.0 0.3
operating income
F&EEE (AR™) Loan-to-Deposit ratio (RMB) 93.6 95.0 (1.4)
AR Leverage ratio 7.4 7.0 0.4
FREFHEK Non-performing loan ratio 0.3 0.4 (0.1)
BERBER Non-performing loan coverage ratio 796.3 664.1 132.2
Wik &R Provision-to-loan ratio 25 24 0.1
REN M AR Liquidity matching ratio 123.4 119.7 3.7
TERRERTRREER High-quality liquid assets adequacy ratio 221.9 144.6 77.3
BT R RIEHR Capital adequacy ratio
B —RA AT 2R Core Tier 1 CAR 13.2 13.4 0.2)
—JERARFTEXR Tier 1 CAR 13.2 13.4 (0.2)
BAFTERE Total CAR 16.0 16.4 (0.4)

6 KERIT (PE) HRATF 2021 FERE
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Chairman's Statement

The cover of this year's Annual Report The Day After Tomorrow reminds
us that in the pursuit of progress and growth, one must always act
responsibly and with a long-term view. At UOB, our decisions and actions
have always been guided by our values and our commitment to do what is

right for our stakeholders not only for the now, but also for the long term.

2021 was a year where the twists and turns of the COVID-19 pandemic
challenged many. Just as the future seemed more certain, new virus variants
emerged. Global trade supplies were strained, as were geopolitics, for much
of the year. Amid these challenges, China sustained its steady economic
recovery. The country's two-pronged dual circulation strategy continued to
drive high-quality economic growth and its domestic and international trade
flows. The year also marked the 30™ anniversary of China-ASEAN relations, a

year when the economic ties between China and ASEAN grew even stronger.

In 2021, UOB China invested in enhancing our capabilities in the areas of
regional connectivity, personalised solutions and sustainability. These areas
are critical to us in delivering our strategic priorities and ensure we continue
to transform with Chinas economy. Our long-term commitment to China
and confidence in the country's growing economy is underscored by a capital

injection of two billion Renminbi (RMB) from UOB in UOB China.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Chairman's Statement
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Financial performance in 2021

We achieved record net profit of RMB332.9 million in 2021, up 206.2 per
cent from the previous year, driven by rising income and lower impairment

charges.

Total operating income increased 11.4 per cent to RMB1.6 billion, mainly
attributed to the growth of net interest income, which rose 12.1 per cent
to RMB11 billion, boosted by improved interest margins from deposit
restructuring and healthy growth of interest-bearing assets. Meanwhile,
net fee and commission income grew 14.8 per cent, and trading and

investment income rose 8.2 per cent.

Total operating expenses increased slightly by 11 per cent to RMB11 billion.
Impairment charges decreased 50.5 per cent to RMB132.4 million, with

credit outlook stabilising.

Loans grew 8.2 per cent to RMB39.2 billion and deposits increased 14.4 per
cent to RMB417 billion as at 31 December 2021. Our asset quality remained
stable. The non-performing loan (NPL) ratio declined marginally to 0.3 per
cent from 0.4 per cent a year ago. We monitor our portfolio vigilantly and
are confident of the resilience of our asset quality and adequacy of our

provisions.

As at 31 December 2021, our liquidity and funding positions remained
healthy with liquidity matching ratio at 123.4 per cent and high-quality
liquid asset adequacy ratio at 221.9 per cent, well above the minimum

regulatory requirements.

Our Common Equity Tier 1 and Total Capital Adequacy Ratios stood at
13.2 per cent and 16.0 per cent respectively, well above the regulatory

minimum requirements.

We were rated A+ by Fitch Ratings and AAA by China Chengxin

International Credit Rating with a stable outlook.
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Sustaining long-term growth through our strategic priorities

As a bank with unparalleled expertise and experience in Southeast Asia,
UOB is here to support closer connectivity between China and Southeast
Asia and to build a sustainable future for all. To achieve our purpose, UOB

China continues to invest in three key areas:

1. Deepening our connectivity capabilities that facilitate increased
trade and economic activity between China and ASEAN;

2. Creating personalised wealth management solutions that enable
our customers to achieve their individual and business goals; and

3. Forging a sustainable future with our customers, colleagues and

communities.

Deepening our regional connectivity capabilities and commitment

In 2021, strong trade and investment activities along the ASEAN-
Greater China corridors helped drive our cross-border income despite
uncertainties brought on by the pandemic and geopolitical situations. As
a long-term and committed player, we also deepened our relationship
with many clients and like-minded partners through signing strategic

memoranda of understanding (MOUs).

In facilitating our clients' trade and investment activities, we saw greater
demand for cross-border liquidity, local currency settlement and two-
way cross-border RMB flow solutions. To meet their needs, we developed
new cross-border capabilities such as the first China-Thailand cross-
border RMB cash sweeping solution and multi-currency cross-border cash
pool. We were also the first Singapore-headquartered bank to become an

Appointed Cross-Currency Dealer in RMB and Indonesian Rupiah.

As part of creating progressive offerings for our customers, we also
broadened our digital payment and trade capabilities. We rolled out UOB
Infinity, a new digital banking experience for our corporate clients and
which provides essential business intelligence such as real-time tracking of
cross-border payments for improved efficiencies. In the use of blockchain,
we successfully supported Singapore's Infocomm Media Development
Authority's pilot run on TradeTrust Utility which digitalises cross-border

trade flows between Singapore and China.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Creating wealth management solutions

With affluent customers increasingly seeking wealth advisory services,
we sharpened our focus on serving high-net-worth customers. We built
on our advisory capabilities and unique customer value propositions to
provide them with high-quality and reliable wealth solutions, helping

them achieve their personal, family and business goals.

To offer a more accessible and engaging banking experience for our
customers, we revamped our Direct Banking App and rebranded it
the UOB China Privilege Banking App. The upgraded App enables our
customers to view their accounts and to purchase banking products

conveniently using their mobile devices.

As part of broadening our collaborations with ecosystem partners, we also
signed an MOU with Hengfeng Bank, drawing on our network strengths
to provide global investment and private banking services for Hengfeng

Bank's customers.

Forging a sustainable future

UOB's time-tested values of Honour, Enterprise, Unity and Commitment
have been critical in guiding how we build our business and to framing
the legacy we want to create for the generations to come. In 2021, we
reinforced our commitment to forging a sustainable future with our
customers, colleagues and communities, focusing on four strategic pillars,
namely Drive Growth Sustainably, Keep Customers at the Centre, Develop

Professionals of Principle and Uphold Corporate Responsibility.

To help businesses advance responsibly, we provided sustainable financing
solutions to support our clients in the adoption of green business
practices in their transition to a low-carbon economy. We recorded
double-digit year-on-year growth in both the number of clients taking up

green loans and the value of loans provided.
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Appreciating that our people are our greatest asset, we developed a
total wellness approach to their personal and professional well-being.
From our Staff Club activities and providing vaccines to our people and
communities, through to our Appreciation Month and first Career Week,
we deepened the culture of care, growth and trust within the Bank. We
also added new tracks of project management and data analytics to our
flagship Better U training programme to equip our colleagues with the
knowledge essential to staying relevant in the fast-paced and changing

industry.

Just as we have been there for our customers and colleagues when it
matters, we also remained firm in our support of the more vulnerable in
our community. In 2021, our people volunteered more than 3,751 hours
to community building and through our UOB Heartbeat Programme, we

contributed more than RMB440,000 to communities in need.

Art, as a reflection of our society, plays an important role in inspiring
and shaping thoughts and actions on sustainability. To promote deeper
understanding of sustainability, we organised exhibitions, workshops and
seminars to help the public explore the connection between art and
sustainability. Collaborating with FutureLab, we announced the launch of
a campus edition of the UOB Art in Ink Awards in mainland China in 2022

to encourage young talents to pursue their passion in ink art.

Confident of the region and our role in it

If history has taught us anything, it is that uncertainty and volatility will
remain. Just as the outlook for the pandemic is improving and economies
are reopening, geopolitical tensions are rising. We are monitoring these

developments closely.

However, we believe in the people and potential of the region. It is our
home and we know first-hand the resilience, strength and abilities our
businesses and communities possess to build a better tomorrow for
all. We are also positive that the Regional Comprehensive Economic
Partnership (RCEP), which came into force in January 2022, will strengthen

regional connectivity further, especially between China and ASEAN.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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For UOB China, we are well-positioned to be the lynchpin to help capture
the long-term opportunities of a resurgent ASEAN. We have been building a
sustainable business with resilient asset quality. The ongoing transformation of
our business, as well as the increased capital base provide us the foundation

from which we can share a better future with our stakeholders.
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Wee Ee Cheong

Chairman

March 2022

AEEH
KERFT (FE) R
BEREA

B3

Mk
EBTIERIX R 16 5. 128 SKERTRE=F. ARES01E (LHFM

B +=F (ZBFE+ZR) ( TREE (RE+=E) ( +RE (RETEE) |

+tE (XHFE+RE) . AR (EETRE)  ThE (EFE+HLE) .
1B (REFETAE)

HREC4RAL . 200120

EB1E © (86) (21) 6061 8888

£ 2 :(86) (21) 6886 0908

SWIFT: UOVBCNSH

f3E: UOBChina.com.cn

ATIRILEH
2007412 818

BigHlx
EETHREEERS
EWENGE—H AR
913100006694147236

M BEE
AR 750,000 5T

BRFR /7 SERRIEHIA
RERTHRAE

N
BRELAT (MEEARS)

K=

gich

B (EKLE)

£

B—R(EEK)

s (TEEERERTE)
I+ 471 B

="

REH

BITERS
B (FR)
%
4% B

RERFMHERS
X% (FEFF)
#H—F

415 BA

RE%E

HitERS
M=% (EF)
4555 A

EES

XERSIEHERS
REE (F)
435 B

X%

EEQNREEERS
4% (5% )
X%

REL

I
RKEPIUTINESH (BHREBEIK) LEBDA

ATER

Corporate Information

Registered Name
United Overseas Bank (China) Limited

Legal Representative
Wee Ee Cheong

Registered Office

Floor 3, Room 501 of Floor 5 (Actual Floor 4), Floor 13 (Actual Floor 12), Floor 15
(Actual Floor 13), Floor 16 (Actual Floor 14), Floor 17 (Actual Floor 15), Floor 18
(Actual Floor 16), Floor 19 (Actual Floor 17) and Floor 20 (Actual Floor 18), No 116
and No 128, Yincheng Road, Pudong New Area

Shanghai 200120

Tel: (86) (21) 6061 8888

Fax: (86) (21) 6886 0908

SWIFT: UOVBCNSH

Website: UOBChina.com.cn

Date of Incorporation
18 December 2007

Registration Authority
Shanghai Administration for Market Regulation

Unified Social Credit Code
913100006694147236

Paid Up Share Capital
RMB 7,500,000,000

Shareholder/Actual Controller
United Overseas Bank Limited

Type of Company
Limited Company (Wholly Foreign-owned)

Supervisors
Wee Cho Yaw
Cham Tao Soon (Deputy Supervisor)

Board of Directors

Wee Ee Cheong (Chairman)

Peter Foo Moo Tan (President and CEO)
Christine Ip

Liu Erh Fei

Wu Yu Hua

Executive Committee
Wee Ee Cheong (Chairman)
Peter Foo Moo Tan
Christine Ip

Nominating and Remuneration Committee
Liu Erh Fei (Chairman)

Wee Ee Cheong

Christine Ip

Wu Yu Hua

Audit Committee
Liu Erh Fei (Chairman)
Christine Ip

Wu Yu Hua

Connected Transactions Control Committee
Wu Yu Hua (Chairman)

Christine Ip

Liu Erh Fei

Board Risk Management Committee
Christine Ip (Chairman)

Liu Erh Fei

Wu Yu Hua

Auditors
Ernst & Young Hua Ming (LLP) Shanghai Office

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

13



mE
Supervisor

HiEE
Wee Cho Yaw
e

Supervisor

¥ 14 #5075 (hE AT 202 FERE
R KR (PE) AT 202 £

93 %, §20074E10 A 30 HARIEFRERTT (F
E) M=,

RELTE—fHF 60 ZELRMARHRTT
K, hERT. R, Hith= ROEE LR
FFELE., ATHNBLARENHES
W, HXEMNEFROZE, AEETE4
E R XA RMAGEE,

RELIRKRERT (FE) NEZEZITHEY
BRRERFTRRNERT (BREL) NWRE
TRRBEME.

RETIEFME LT AT KERR, £l
SH. FmMKEEL (REAKEIW) KK
PEVHEESEE, RENBIZATF
HEER, RETOERERRESNES
EE

Dr Wee, 93, was appointed as Supervisor of
United Overseas Bank (China) on 30 October
2007.

A distinguished banker with more than 60
years' experience, Dr Wee is a veteran in the
banking, insurance, real estate and hospitality
industries. He was conferred numerous awards
and accolades at the national and regional level
for his business achievements and support of
education, community welfare and the business

community.

Dr Wee is the Chairman of United Overseas Bank
(Thai) Public Company and the Chairman Emeritus
and Honorary Adviser of United Overseas Bank

and also of United Overseas Bank (Malaysia).

He is the current Chairman of United Overseas
Insurance, UOL Group, Singapore Land Group
(formerly known as United Industrial Corporation)
and Haw Par Corporation all of which are
public companies listed on the Singapore Stock
Exchange. He also serves as Chairman of Pan
Pacific Hotels Group, Marina Centre Holdings and

Wee Foundation.
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Dr Wee is an alumni and Chairman of Chung
Cheng High School. He has served on numerous
school management committees and the
Councils of the Nanyang University and National
University of Singapore (NUS). He is currently a
Pro-Chancellor of the Nanyang Technological
University (NTU). He has been conferred
Honorary Doctor of Letters by NUS and NTU.

He is the Honorary President of the Singapore
Chinese Chamber of Commerce & Industry,
Singapore Federation of Chinese Clan

Associations and Singapore Hokkien Huay Kuan.

Dr Wee was named Businessman of the Year
twice at the Singapore Business Awards in 2001
and 1990. He received the inaugural Credit
Suisse-Ernst & Young Lifetime Achievement
Award in 2006 and The Asian Banker Lifetime
Achievement Award in 2009. In recognition of his
business achievements in the region, Dr Wee was
conferred the Legacy Award for Singapore at the
ASEAN Business Awards 2017.

Dr Wee received the Distinguished Service Order,
Singapore's highest National Day Award for 2011
from the President of Singapore in recognition of
his outstanding contributions to the economic,
education, social and community development

fields in Singapore.
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Prof Cham, 82, was appointed as the Deputy
Supervisor of United Overseas Bank (China) with
effective from 1 January 2017. Prof Cham was a
non-executive and independent director of the
Bank from 2008 to 2016.

Prof Cham is the Chairman of NSL, Soup
Restaurant and Singapore Rail Academy. He
is a former director of MFS Technology, WBL
Corporation and UOB and its subsidiary, Far
Eastern Bank.

A prominent figure in the Singapore education
scene, Prof Cham is the former Chancellor of
Singapore University of Social Sciences and
Chairman of its Board of Trustees, and was the
founding President of Nanyang Technological
University. For his outstanding contributions to
education, he was conferred the Distinguished
Service Order, Singapore's highest National Day
Award, in 2003.

An engineer by training, Prof Cham holds a
Bachelor of Engineering (Civil, Hons) from the
University of Malaya, a Bachelor of Science
in Mathematics (Hons) from the University of
London and a Doctor of Philosophy in Fluid
Mechanics from the University of Cambridge,
United Kingdom. He is also a Fellow of the
Institution of Engineers, Singapore, Academy
of Engineering, Singapore, Royal Academy of
Engineering, United Kingdom and Institution of
Mechanical Engineers, United Kingdom and a
foreign member of Royal Swedish Academy of
Engineering Sciences.
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Mr Wee, 69, was appointed as director and Chairman
of the Bank on 5 December 2007. A non-executive and
non-independent director, he is the Chairman of the
Executive Committee and a member of the Nominating
and Remuneration Committee.

A career banker with more than 40 years' experience in
the UOB Group, Mr Wee joined UOB in 1979 and has
been a director of UOB since 1990. He is currently the
Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of UOB.

He also holds directorships in United Overseas
Insurance, United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) (Deputy
Chairman) and United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public
Company (Deputy Chairman). He is the President
Commissioner of PT Bank UOB Indonesia. Mr Wee was
also formerly a director of Far Eastern Bank.

Active in industry and community development, Mr
Wee serves as Chairman of The Association of Banks
in Singapore and is vice chairman of The Institute of
Banking and Finance. He is also a member of the Board
of Governors of the Singapore-China Foundation,
Indonesia-Singapore Business Council and Honorary
Council Member of the Singapore Chinese Chamber
of Commerce and Industry. He was previously Deputy
Chairman of the Housing and Development Board, a
director of the Port of Singapore Authority, UOL Group,
Pan Pacific Hotels Group and United International
Securities, and a member of Visa AP Senior Client
Council.

A keen art enthusiast, Mr Wee is the Patron of the
Nanyang Academy of Fine Arts. He is also a director of
the Wee Foundation.

In 2013, he was awarded the Singapore Public Service
Star by the Singapore Government for his contributions
to the financial industry.

Mr Wee holds a Bachelor of Science (Business
Administration) and a Master of Arts (Applied
Economics) from American University, Washington, DC.
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Mr Foo, 59, was appointed President and Chief
Executive Officer (CEO) in December 2016 and a
director of the Board of UOB China on 18 January 2017.
An executive and non-independent director, he is a
member of UOB Chinas Executive Committee.

Mr Foo joined UOB in 2011 as the Head of the Group's
Treasury and Global Markets business for its overseas
subsidiaries and branches. He also served as President
and CEO of UOB Thai from 2012.

Mr Foo has more than 30 years of experience in
banking and financial markets. Prior to joining
UOB, he served for 11 years at Fortis Bank,
S.A./N.V. Singapore, where he assumed many
management roles including the CEO, Asia Pacific
Management Board member, Managing Director
of Private Banking and Head of Global Markets.
Mr Foo's previous professional experience also
includes holding various executive positions
at Bank Austria Creditanstalt, Bank of America,
and Chemical Bank between 1988 and 2000. Mr
Foo embarked on the career as management
associate with Shell Singapore in 1987.

Mr Foo is a non-executive director of Hengfeng
Bank and the Director of AlIF Capital Partners
Limited, the general partner of Asia Impact
Investment Fund | L.P. He is also a Council
Member of Capital Markets Policy Council
(CMPC) of CFA Institute. Previously, he served
as the Executive Committee Member and
Regional Representative of South East Asia of
ACI-The Financial Markets Association, Board
Member of CFA Singapore, Council Member of
the Association of Banks in Singapore and an
independent director of SGX listed/Temasek's
CitySpring Infrastructure Investment Trust.

Tapping his international banking experience,
Mr Foo leads UOB China to promote
connectivity between China and ASEAN and
contribute to Shanghai's development as an
international financial centre. In recognition of
his contribution, Mr Foo was awarded as a 2020
Shanghai Financial Industry Innovation Figure at
the Shanghai Financiers Awards hosted by Xinhua
News Agency. With his deep knowledge and
understanding on over-the-counter trades and
international financial derivative and commodity
markets, Mr Foo is also appointed as the member
of the first Market Development Advisory
Committee by China Financial Futures Exchange
effective from September 2021.

Mr Foo holds a Bachelor of Estate Management
(Hons) from the National University of Singapore
and is a Chartered Financial Analyst.
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Mrs Ip, 58, was appointed to the Board on
22 August 2011. A non-executive and non-
independent director, she is the Chairman of
the Bank's Board Risk Management Committee
and a member of the Bank's Executive, Audit,
Nominating and Remuneration, and Connected
Transactions Control Committees.

A veteran banker with more than 30 years'
experience in both consumer and corporate
banking, Mrs Ip joined UOB in 2011 and was
appointed as Chief Executive Officer of UOB
Hong Kong Branch in December 20T1. Mrs Ip was
appointed as Chief Executive Officer for UOB
Greater China with effect from 1 July 2016, and
is responsible for developing UOB's business in
Greater China.

Prior to joining UOB, Mrs Ip held several senior
management positions in product and sales
management, customer segment management
and risk management in Hong Kong, the United
States, Canada, Singapore and Mainland China.

She is also an independent non-executive
director of SmarTone Telecommunications
Holdings Limited.

In recognition of her achievements, Mrs Ip
received the Asia Retail Congress Award for
Best International Retail Banker in 2008 and
was named as one of the top 100 outstanding
Chinese businesswomen in the Greater China
region in 2012 by the China Outstanding Female
Entrepreneurs Association.

Mrs Ip holds a Bachelor of Arts from the
University of Hong Kong and a Master of Business
Administration from the Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology.
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Mr Liu, 63, was appointed to the Board on 20
January 2017. As an independent director, he is
the Chairman of the Audit and Nominating and
Remuneration Committees, and a member of the
Connected Transactions Control and Board Risk
Management Committees.

Mr Liu is currently the founding partner and Chief
Executive Officer of Asia Investment Capital.
He also serves as a director of Cindat Capital
Management Limited, as well as an independent
director for CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited.

Mr Liu was formerly the Chairman of Merrill
Lynch China and Country Executive of Bank of
America Merrill Lynch. He had previously worked
as head of Asia or China for Goldman Sachs,
Morgan Stanley, Smith Barney and Indosuez.

He holds a Bachelor of Arts in Economics and
International Relations from Brandeis University,
and a Master of Business Administration from
Harvard Business School.
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Prof Werner Wu, 63, was appointed to the
Board on 29 August 2018. As an independent
director, he is the Chairman of the Connected
Transactions Control Committee, and a member
of the Audit, Nominating and Remuneration and
Board Risk Management Committees.

Prof Werner Wu is currently Executive President
of Shanghai Zhangjiang High-tech Park
Development Company Limited, Co-founder and
Executive President of Shanghai Yangtze River
Delta Sci-tech City, Vice Chairman of Shanghai
Huaxia Culture and Economy Promotion
Association, Vice President of the New Silk Road
Committee and President of China Region of
the German Federal Association for economic
development and foreign trade, Global Vice
Chairman of the German Federal Association of
German-Chinese Alliance.

Prof Werner Wu formerly served as the Chief
Representative and General Manager for Europe
and Africa Regions, Director of Corporate
Strategy and Investment Management, and
Chief Translator for China Baosteel Group. He
took senior positions in Siemens worldwide,
including Senior Vice President of Siemens (China)
Company Limited, Executive Vice President
of Siemens Real Estate Investment China and
President of Siemens World Expo Programme
Centre. He also held senior positions in ALSTOM
Group including President of technical services
in China. Prof Werner Wu assumed the position
of Director of Executive Committee of Foreign
Invested Companies of China Association of
Enterprises with Foreign Investment.

Prof Werner Wu is a Certified Senior Economist in
China. He holds a Master's Degree in Economics
from German Siegen University and a DBA. In
2019, Prof Werner Wu was appointed as the
guest professor of Shanghai International Studies
University and as the Adjunct Researcher of the
Financial Research Center of Fudan University. In
2020, Prof Werner Wu was officially nominated as
Chairman of the Council of Artificial Intelligence
Research Institute of Donghua University. In 2021,
Prof Werner Wu was reappointed as a part-time
professor of Shanghai Ocean University.
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Personalising Wealth Solutions for Customers' Different Life Stages and Lifestyles
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In 2021, the global economy and financial markets were still dealing with the repercussions of the prolonged pandemic. Amid the external challenges, we
scaled up our retail business by actively seizing opportunities in wealth management and deepening our partnership ecosystem.

We also signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with our strategic partner, Hengfeng Bank, to draw on our network strengths to provide one-
stop China-Singapore financial services, as well as global investment and private banking services for Hengfeng Bank's customers. We will also explore
collaborations in retail marketing, financial technology solutions and people development.

‘WAL RARER, BEATSSEABRREERIIEREIN Helping our customers maximise their wealth potential through our Risk-
First approach

EARFSHELTENUEKE, RTRERTHER BSs%

BEARREN DY, RE. MANUE B, XRARTREN %0
+ BN REAFERETRN AR EHAGRARE, BHARTE
BIREEE, HRREPERRTREN, T2 7 BERRENE,

ERIRNE, BROESARAS LD “hERENS T HHH K
MWBR. ZEERIVEBER. FRERKE, NMEREKAEBNE”
MTHEATEE . TRHEARSFXARTANS M, HRET
REFMFRERE,

AT R BERS SR AR ERAY T iR

BORBREMREKAR, SEEKFETFITESR. B, 885
HARME, hEPIES MR AR,

AT —REXAH S FRMEARNEMR L, BTUNEESRIE
EEXFRAMRBEIEIE (NMVROR. RRATRRE. &
TEAITE) ANTF, TBEN—ERABREERREENAD
PETHARBIE, BIRE TR ARKRENENLS,

24 XESRIT (RE) HRAT 202 £ERE

As our customers' trusted financial steward, we provide them with high-
quality and reliable wealth advisory and solutions to help them achieve
business, family and personal goals. Using our Risk-First approach, we help
our customers protect their assets through core strategies before growing
their wealth with tactical investments. This approach also ensures that
our customers understand the risks ahead of returns before making any
investment decisions.

In 2021, we rolled out a multitude of products for tactical investments,
including European equities, United States financial sector equities and
high-quality equities global that offer returns over the medium term.
We also recommended opportunities in megatrends such as artificial
intelligence and sustainability so that our customers could benefit from
long-term growth drivers and diversify their investments for optimal
annual returns.

Exclusive services and benefits essential to our customers' lifestyles

We work closely with our ecosystem partners to offer exclusive privileges,
including those in high-end financial, medical and education services, to
meet customers' lifestyle needs.

Over the years, we have been supporting our customers in nurturing
their next generation. This includes financial planning for their children's
education as well as offering a range of development programmes, such
as Junior Bankers, Future Leaders and the Elite Youths for children of
different ages. Our one-stop education service offering has become our
signature, opening doors to future opportunities for the young.

20215, HITEMA T BRBEKAMNE WA, IERKEHMZBRK”
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BEREFE T BERKITFREEHTAE
Our women customers experiencing sound therapy
at a customised metal wellness experience under

the Lady's Programme

BFFEHR LBITRFER — FHIKE
Customers visiting the Shanghai Pinghe School, a leader in bilingual

education in Shanghai

In 2021, we upgraded our Headmasters' Talk Series programme to include
school tours. We invited customers to visit well-known local schools and to
have in-depth discussions with school principals and education experts. This
enabled them to make well-informed decisions for their children's education.

We also deepened our Lady's Programme to offer more personalised
and progressive solutions to affluent women customers. In addition to
rolling out financial products suitable for their risk appetites and needs,
in 2021 we organised a series of wealth talks and workshops with experts
in various fields to help our women customers preserve and grow their
wealth wisely. We also collaborated with various service providers to host
a number of exclusive lifestyle events to cater to different interests.
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We showcased our retail service team and wealth management

centres using short videos.
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B2 EFYIRIT App ZIRE
The UOB China Privilege Banking App

Innovating for a better customer experience

Our customers are at the centre of what we do. With our deep
understanding on their expectations and challenges, we are committed to
creating and offering a more accessible and engaging banking experience.

In 2021, we revamped our Direct Banking App to become the UOB China
Privilege Banking App. The new mobile app was officially launched on 12
October 2021.

With the upgraded mobile app, our customers can view both their Type |
debit card accounts and Type II/11l digital accounts, check their insurance,
structured notes and unit trust portfolios, as well as purchase global,
domestic funds and recognised Hong Kong funds.

To level up our social media engagement with customers, we capitalised
on the short-form video trend to launch our UOB China Retail Banking
WeChat video account. We rolled out a series of short videos to share
our market and investment insights, as well as special deals and privileges
in a more fun and engaging way.

Our efforts during the year were recognised with various industry awards,
including the Best Annual Award for Outstanding Experience of Retail

Banking at the Retail Banking Leader Forum 2021.
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Providing Customers with Seamless Connectivity and Progressive Cross-border Solutions Across Our Network
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Bilateral trade between ASEAN and China has been increasing steadily despite disruptions from the pandemic and uneven trade recovery globally. In

2021, ASEAN and China were each other's largest trading partner. The Regional Comprehensive Economic Partnership (RCEP), which came into force in

January 2022, is expected to strengthen regional connectivity further.

Tapping UOB Group's extensive network in ASEAN, UOB China is committed to helping our clients seize opportunities and expand their business

at home and abroad. We continually deepen our cross-border solutions and partnership ecosystems to meet clients' funding and foreign exchange

needs. In doing so, we also help to facilitate trade and investment flows between China and ASEAN and contribute to regional financial integration and

cooperation.
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Addressing companies' cross-border liquidity needs through progressive
solutions

UOB China offers a suite of financing solutions based upon our clients'
liquidity needs. These solutions include cross-border two-way sweeping,
centralised cash management and cross-border renminbi (RMB) trade
financing.

Our cash management solutions range from cross-border RMB cash pools,
cross-border foreign currency cash pools to multi-currency cross-border
cash pools. These solutions enable our multinational clients to offset
their surplus and deficit balances and to manage cash across a group of
entities more effectively.

For example, in support of a multinational service provider's business
expansion, in 2021 we developed a cross-border two-way RMB sweeping
solution, which centralises the company's cross-border cash between
mainland China and overseas markets. With our solution, the client
could better manage inter-regional liquidity flows and improve its cash
management efficiency.

We also offered customised cash management solutions to a leading
company in the healthcare industry. This solution ensures we meet
the client's needs in optimising its cash management and operational
efficiency. To support the client's trade activities, we provided import
invoice financing so that it could get direct access to cash to procure
medicines without deploying its own funds.
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During the year, we also strengthened our one-stop cash management
service. We helped our clients capitalise on new financial liberalisation
policies and supported a number of them to manage their cross-border
direct investment, debt and capital in a more efficient manner.

For example, in April 2021, we launched our first China-Thailand cross-
border RMB cash sweeping solution for a well-known Chinese cosmetic
packaging enterprise. We tapped the new liberalisation policy in the
Lingang Special Area of the Shanghai Pilot Free Trade Zone to assist the
client in optimising its intra-group's liquidity and streamlining the cross-
border cash transfer process. With direct exchange between RMB and Thai
baht, the client avoided extra costs from multiple currency exchanges.

This solution won the Best Liquidity and Investments Solution at
The Asset Triple A Treasury, Trade, Sustainable Supply Chain and Risk
Management Awards 2021.

We also supported another corporate client in the settlement of its first
cross-border spot business in US dollar in the Lingang Special Area. This
followed the launch of the client's first multi-currency cross-border cash
pool in the Lingang Special Area in 2020. These are examples of the Bank
riding on Lingang Special Area’s financial policies to create and to offer
progressive solutions that open up opportunities for our clients in cross-
border trade.

Recognising the increasing demand in the use of RMB for cross-border
settlement, trade and financing, in 2020 UOB China was one of the first
foreign bank members of the Cross-border RMB Trade Finance Trading
Platform. In 2021, our transaction volume on the platform was the highest
among all the members. As such, we were awarded Outstanding Financial
Institution for Cross-border Trade Financing by the Shanghai Commercial
Paper Exchange.

End-to-end financing to support ecosystems of suppliers and distributors
across industries

UOB China has been deepening our product capabilities in financial
supply chain management (FSCM) in areas such as credit approval
processes, product design, implementation and cross-border services. We
have received recognition for our efforts with multiple industry awards.

In 2021, we continued to focus on our clients' domestic supply chain
financing needs, and also actively expanded our cross-border FSCM
services by leveraging UOB Group's regional advantages in ASEAN
and Greater China. For example, we successfully completed a FSCM
programme across China and the Philippines for a large China state-owned
enterprise.
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We achieved 79 per cent increase in And a 51 per cent increase in FCSM
lending under our FSCM programmes revenue.
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Companies that UOB Group has supported since 2014

are projected to invest $$34.3 billion
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As we built up our expertise in the technology, media and
telecommunications (TMT) and industrials sectors, we also developed
industry-based FSCM solutions for enterprises to meet their financial
needs across the value chain. For example, we provided supplier
and distributor financing for two global leading TMT companies
respectively.

Through our anchor-led FSCM programmes, we continued to provide
credit facilities to suppliers or buyers linked to an anchor company that
are UOB Chinas clients. This approach enables us to support our clients'
cross-border trade activities and to offer value-added services to facilitate
the efficient receipt and processing of invoices. We also further simplified
our processes to cut the turnaround time for small and medium-sized
suppliers and distributors. In 2021, we extended cross-border anchor-led
FSCM programmes to multinational corporates, including offering supplier
financing to a few esteemed Singapore brands.

As at the end of 2021, we achieved 79 per cent increase in lending under
our FSCM programmes and a 51 per cent increase in revenue.

Connecting businesses to regional opportunities

In 2021, we continued to deepen our capabilities, connectivity and
partnership ecosystem to support businesses in capturing opportunities
along the China-ASEAN corridor, forging long-term relationships with
them in the process.

Through its 10 dedicated Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) Advisory
Centres in Asia, UOB Group has been offering businesses with local
market insights, market-entry support and holistic banking solutions. Our
clients can also access the services offered by dedicated China Desks in
Indonesia, Malaysia, Singapore, Thailand and Vietnam.

Since 2011, the UOB Group FDI Advisory Unit has supported more than
3,500 companies in their cross-border expansion into Asia, of which 45 per
cent are Chinese enterprises. Companies that UOB Group has supported
since 2014 are projected to invest $$34.3 billion and generate 158,000 jobs,
largely across Southeast Asia and Greater China.

In August 2021, UOB China signed a strategic Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) with the largest industrial park developer in
Shanghai. By combining the strengths of this developer's business
ecosystem and UOB Group's expertise in China-ASEAN connectivity, we
will jointly tap China’s financial liberalisation to help companies based in
the industrial parks seize cross-border opportunities.
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In September, we signed an MOU with a leading Chinese consumer
electronic enterprise to deepen our support for its business
internationalisation plan. On the back of our longstanding partnership and
trust established with the client for more than a decade, we will continue
to provide financial advisory and cross-border liquidity management
solutions, as well as connect the client to our regional partnership
ecosystem to facilitate its business expansion.

In October, we signed an MOU with a leading pharmaceutical company
based in South China. Over the past five years, we have been providing
a suite of comprehensive financial solutions to the company and
its subsidiaries. Under the MOU, we will step up our support of the
company's cash efficiency needs so that it can develop better and more
medicines that will improve the health and quality of life for patients.

In November, we signed MOUs with two private-owned Chinese
enterprises to enhance our cross-border collaborations. One enterprise
is a leading high technology solution provider and the other is one of
Chinas largest electric motor and home appliance manufacturers. Through
the MOUSs, we will enhance our cross-border support to facilitate their
further expansion in China and ASEAN.

To help businesses explore more cross-border opportunities, we also
worked closely with government agencies, exchanges, professional service
providers and business partners to host more than 10 physical and virtual
events in 2021.

In April, in collaboration with Malaysia's Ministry of International Trade
and Industry and the Malaysian Investment Development Authority,
we organised a hybrid roundtable to share Malaysia's latest economic
developments, policies and potential investment opportunities.
Participating enterprises were from high value-added sectors in the
Greater Bay Area, including the electrical and electronic, medical devices,
automotive and chemical industries.

In December, UOB China, together with Bank Indonesia, the China Council
for the Promotion of International Trade Guangdong Sub-council and
Consulate General of Indonesia, Guangzhou, held the Indonesia-Southern
China Business Forum 2021 to promote investment opportunities in
Indonesia to Chinese businesses.

W BEHT—FEEREHRT G EE, AR aATX B
T BB TR EE
The roundtable, themed ‘Malaysia-China Gateway for Global Markets, promoted

Malaysia as an investment destination to companies from the Greater Bay Area.
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In 2021, we participated in the China International Import Expo (CIIE) for the
fourth consecutive year. During the six-day expo, we not only showcased UOB
Groupss regional connectivity, partnership ecosystems as well as progressive
solutions, we also participated in various high-profile forums and business
events including the Honggiao International Economic Forum.

For those who could not attend the CIIE in person, we created a virtual booth,
for the first time, so that people can learn more about UOB Group's offering
using their mobile devices. We also partnered industry experts and ecosystem
partners to hold two webinars to offer more information on our progressive
solutions. These webinars were broadcasted live at our booth at the CIIE and
through UOB Chinas official WeChat account.

Deepening digital capabilities for greater connectivity

In China, businesses have been increasing their use of digital banking
services, especially during the pandemic, for better efficiency and financial
data analysis. In August 2021, we launched UOB Infinity, a new digital
banking experience that enables our corporate clients to manage their
banking needs in a simpler, smarter and more personalised manner.

UOB Infinity is testament to our commitment to deepening our digital
capabilities. This solution offers real-time and customised information
which enables our clients to make timely, data-driven decisions and to
manage their domestic and cross-border transactions more effectively.
With enhanced productivity and liquidity, our clients are able to seize
more regional opportunities across Asia.

As at the end of December 2021, more than 73 per cent of our corporate
clients have migrated from our Business Internet Banking Plus service to
UOB Infinity. We expect all our corporate clients will use UOB Infinity by
the end of January 2022.

K LERFTH— bW B F#R 7T UOB Infinity
UOB Infinity, a new digital banking experience

for businesses
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Meeting companies' financial needs through progressive trading solutions

In 2021, the long-drawn COVID-19 pandemic continued to drag on
the global economy, creating uncertainties for businesses. Under this
backdrop, UOB China paid close attention to macro policies adjustments,
deepened our understanding of our business customer needs and
continued to develop progressive solutions to support their growth.

We continued to enhance our RMB / foreign exchange (FX) business and
improved our trading capability. In addition, we continued to improve
our ASEAN Currency One-stop Service to meet the diverse needs of our
customers for offshore transactions in Southeast Asian currencies.

In January, we were approved to be a trial market maker in China's
interbank FX market for spots, forwards, swaps and options. By
participating in the multi-level trading activities of the interbank FX
market, we can optimise transaction costs and stay nimble in managing
FX risks. Our clients can also enjoy competitive FX rates for greater cost
efficiency. At the same time, we also help provide more liquidity to the
domestic FX market.

We also completed a cross currency swap (CCS) transaction between
Euro and RMB (EUR/CNY) for a leading manufacturer of electrical
commutators. This solution helped the company hedge the potential FX
risk of its overseas assets, which greatly reduce its financing cost. This was
our first EUR/CNY CCS client deal, making us one of the few banks in
the market to offer such a trading solution, which sets us apart from our
peers.

In September 2021, UOB China became one of the first authorised cross-
currency dealers (ACCDs) and direct market makers between Chinese Yuan
and Indonesian Rupiah (CNY/IDR) under the Local Currency Settlement
framework between People's Bank of China and the Bank Indonesia. With
this license, we could offer CNY/IDR spot, forward and swap solutions to
support our clients' cross-border trade and investment activities. On the
first day, we completed the first CNY/IDR spot transaction and the first
CNY/IDR forward transaction in the China market, accounting for over 50
per cent of the overall transaction volume on the first day.

Our CNY/IDR solution is an important addition to our ASEAN Currency
One-stop service. Our service helps to reduce financing and FX costs and
streamline the process of FX risk-hedging transactions for businesses. It
also enabled us to help drive cross-border flow of RMB and Southeast
Asian currencies and support regional economic integration.
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SEFF R S EIF,

0214 B, BRITMZ5MLEBESH (Lef) “B£ZK MA
TEE/INESRRMIEE AV SATED, HOMBMEXREY
WV B RSFERERARBXMIEE A, FEEE LSRN
ERRRS, T—LERK, TRT BN L. B 5LemE
R 7B, BRRETBMPEY LHEERE, KARREL
1o A=t

2020 FRFHMNIERRZ, FTERT UL, BRHE, £R%E
ALmAFNEEL ALY, MEFERKOTHNE SR,

RV EFHEXRTER, ZN-—TEARBEHEINILSER
RS, —HERBITHIT MR, SFEAEET 2022 FH HE MK
RS, SV ESERFRERBOESE, BRBNEYT KI5
A, WERELARE®, FINRARRE> &, FHXEE
FEHNT T ERF NN, SKHBATIE.,

LEoh, TREIRIBAE NSV F T LEMEXZRES~REHR
REMTR, FOTRRES LR, Z5FRRITNITE. %
AW IR, HMBBENEFAHNSSE, BN LEMREHFMNMIE

T,

W& RCEP B LK, TESHRELNERREZKEEM, KER
THEFMFAFREIETSARTHERBRTZRXFRARE @
HirR S, APRLUIRBIRET L. TRRUFR, RMEH
L% CEEHERMEBMAFTRRATR,

Over the years, UOB China has been committed to developing our
precious metals and commodities business to support our clients' needs
to hedge against market volatility.

In April, we took part in Shanghai Gold Exchange (SGE)'s Golden Road
Project. We assisted a large mining company to process overseas gold
raw materials in the domestic free trade zone and re-export the refined
gold directly on the International Board of the SGE. This business model
connects miners, refineries and traders across the border. It broadens the
sales channels of overseas mines of Chinese companies and help domestic
refiners export their products overseas.

Commodity prices were highly volatile in 2021, and mining, trading and
manufacturing companies faced greater challenge in managing market risk.

To cater to our clients' needs, we proactively provided commodity swap
services for clients to optimise their hedging strategies. In addition to
providing common industrial metal swap services, we also explored ways
to broaden our product offerings and commodity varieties. We plan to
launch more commodity swap services such as Malaysian palm oil and
Singapore fuel gas in 2022. This will help businesses better manage market
risk and lock in gains during a volatile environment.

We also observed that many local clients have a need to hedge products
linked to the Shanghai Future Exchange, we proactively supported the
exchange to launch and promote over-the-counter derivatives. Our effort
included participating in product development discussion, arranging field
research and hosting business seminars.

Cross-border trade between China and ASEAN is set to expand with
the newly enforced RCEP trade agreement. We plan to use our ASEAN
Currency One-stop service to support clients' cross-border commodity
transactions. This integrated approach could offer businesses foreign
currency exchange, hedging against exchange rate fluctuations and
financing solutions as they invest in the mining and agricultural sectors in
Southeast Asia.
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Forging a Sustainable Future for All

EARKTHERRNERERE, RNGT T THELREE, I
ENNBLTHFSE, RETHE, AT THEMHSTETHEN
PXEQEEH T IHFERRER, 5P RTMER R THEE

BATURHEL RO XS H
The Four Pillars of Our Sustainability Strategy

In 2021, we reinforced our commitment to forging a sustainable future
with our customers, colleagues and communities, sharpening our
sustainability strategy based on four pillars of

1. Drive Growth Sustainably

2. Keep Customers at the Centre

3. Develop Professionals of Principle
4. Uphold Corporate Responsibility

MERF BTN S ETHEL REB RS

Rk
Drive Growth
Sustainably

s MMREZFRRIMNE
Contribute economically to the progress of our
communities

* BIRBMRIP. HETEFASIEIE (ESG) AN
PR EEMANB SN EEER
Embed environmental, social and governance risk in our
approach to risk management

o B L RIEE RAN BT RRIEFH AR R
Integrate social and environmental considerations into
our credit evaluation and approval processes

o RIAFHE RN IR BUMKENEETE. KRR
IR FRBRRET
Adopt and promote climate-resilient practices to
support our customers in their transition to a
lower-carbon economy

* FRFIRETFEIRF A A ARRTTR
Develop and provide sustainable financing and
sustainable investment solutions

e
. Em
BB 35 BT 542

Keep Customers
at the Centre

* BERENRBNAGEENE RIFEALIEN
fefhRe
Protect customer data and privacy through secure and
robust systems and practices

* RIFEF/ENE. WRATFERXS

Ensure Fair Dealing

o ITHEE AMAMBRLENNEAER

Create intuitive and impactful customer experiences

o BET WA ZBEmMBEEYE, H#iizft
B, ERVZENRTRS
Make banking simpler, smarter and safer through ethical
use of technology and data

o RHELKERE "HEREE HNRTRS

Make banking more accessible and inclusive

o ARE R BRI R AR R4 H5

Support businesses across all stages of growth

RTINS, S, FOEIHNERAER

34 XEESRIT (RE) HRAT 202 £ERE

BONTHEARRBOEIEXRERTEATHELAREMML
MEEVERL £, SR TRHERRIESVLRBIRS 2030 FOUFELR
WREBH 7 NTHELRBRED, BEMTATHELRIENT
B, BFX—HE, HFEaE5LEEFERTNTE TR AYER
RESREAME, BTRREIET THELRBFRNTHITY,

The four pillars are consistent with UOB Group's overall sustainability
strategy, which is aligned to the 17 United Nations Sustainable
Development Goals. The pillars provide the Bank with clear direction and
purpose, as well as guide the Bank's initiatives in line with our business
focus, China's 14" Five-Year Plan and the country's economic and social
development strategies.

Promote United Nations Sustainable Development Goals With Our Stakeholders

52

[ 1]
A e

Develop Professionals
of Principle

° ENITESSEANEEARKRNBRITAS
Develop high-performing teams and future-focused
individuals

BSIESEENTE

Promote work-life harmony

FRIRSEZESTELEFARSNRELRT
BRIERES

Encourage volunteerism and advocacy for social and
environmental causes

RRRARISEEMHRE

Ensure employee engagement and satisfaction

TERE. RERXERTNIERE

Ensure workplace health, safety and well-being

SR Z TTEI L. FRERNEE

Embrace diverse abilities and strengths

b
HETHETHE
Uphold Corporate

Responsibility

o BEASABMNEG LU HESIRE
Maintain highest standards of governance and risk
culture

s MREEAM
Ensure regulatory compliance

* e eRAFHERIE
Protect the financial system against abuse

o BUREERENRMEIRITHRBTH S
Incorporate sustainability principles into our
procurement practices

EEBASMRREM, BhhXERPTE
Manage direct environmental impact and encourage
environmental stewardship

RpEHZAR, JIENBERENRRE
Champion social development in art, children and
education

Rooted in Our Values of Honour, Enterprise, Unity and Commitment
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Drive Growth Responsibly
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Helping businesses advance responsibly

We provide sustainable financial solutions to support our clients in the
adoption of green business practices in their transition to a low-carbon
economy. In this regard, we extended financing to companies in key
sectors and areas identified in China's Action Plan for Caron Dioxide Peak
before 2030, such as renewable energy, energy-saving projects, industrial
upgrades as well as the circular economy.

In 2021, we provided green financing to facilitate our clients' projects
in electrical vehicles, real estate, solar panels and plastic recycling. We
recorded double-digit year-on-year growth in both the number of clients
taking up green loans and the value of loans provided.

With UOB Chinas support and coordination, in April 2021, UOB acted as
the joint global coordinator, joint lead manager and joint bookrunner for
the inaugural US$500 million three-year senior unsecured fixed rate green
bond issuance by the Singapore branch of a top China state-owned bank.
In October, UOB also assisted the bank's London branch in the issuance of
USS300million three-year senior unsecured sustainability re-linked notes
as the joint lead manager and bookrunner.

These transactions are testament to our commitment to supporting our
clients' sustainable development, particularly UOB Group's debt market
capabilities to meet the funding needs of Chinese financial institutions.

Steering wealth towards sustainable investments

With the spotlight on sustainability continuing to grow, we are offering
investment products with an environmental, social and governance (ESG)
focus to help our customers make a positive difference.

For example, we added the BNP Paribas Energy Transition Fund to our
ESG product offering in September 2021, following the launch of Allianz
Global Sustainability Fund in our portfolio in 2020.

We also actively promoted awareness on responsible investing among our
customers by sharing insights into sustainable investment concepts and

ideas through our retail banking WeChat and video accounts.

KRR EUW 1= B EIERFEE £5G SR ATEE

Our portfolio manager explaining ESG investment concepts through WeChat video

RGBSR
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Keep Customers at the Centre
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Anti-scam related content on UOB China's corporate WeChat account

Enhancing customer experience by harnessing the power of technology

In 2021, UOB China continued to invest in technology, data capabilities
and systems integration to ensure that our customers receive services that
are safe, reliable and relevant.

For example, we rolled out UOB Infinity, a banking platform for our
corporate customers. UOB Infinity offers an integrated and intuitive
user experience, which make it easier for our customers to navigate. The
banking platform offers more flexibility such as widgets and a customised
view for each customer. The streamlined approval process also helps our
customers improve productivity.

In September, UOB China secured a license to be an Appointed Cross-
Currency Dealer (ACCD) for Chinese Yuan/Indonesia Rupiah (CNY/IDR).
To ensure safe and efficient CNY/IDR direct trading transactions, we
carried out system enhancements during the year.

We also built a new disaster recovery infrastructure and conducted role-
swap simulation for all our critical systems in 2021. This improves our
operating resilience and customer service capabilities in times of crisis.

Ensuring Fair Dealing and promoting financial literacy

At UOB China, our customers are at the centre of what we do. We
develop and grow our business based on this foundation. We are focused
on doing what is right for our customers; we act in their best interests and
take their feedback seriously.

In 2021, we continued to deepen our consumer rights protection
efforts. We set out a multitude of comprehensive policies, guidelines
and processes to ensure end-to-end management of consumer rights
protection. In addition, we organised events on financial literacy to
promote awareness on issues such as scams and account security. These
activities enhanced financial literacy and safety awareness among the
public and helped safeguard financial stability.

Throughout the year, UOB China organised 128 public education events on

consumer rights protection involving 476 colleagues. We also published
26 consumer rights-related articles on our social media channels.
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A community outreach session on consumer rights conducted by our Customer Experience and Advocacy colleagues for the elderly
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We focused on targeting different vulnerable groups and tailored our
digital literacy and anti-scam content to their specific needs.

For the younger consumers, we incorporated scam-related content in an
original hip hop song and developed a series of short videos based on the
song. The video series covered four topics: illegal financial advertisement,
internet finance scams, personal financial information protection and a list
of eight financial consumer rights. We garnered nearly four million views
across UOB China's corporate WeChat account and other social media
channels. The regulators, including the People's Bank of China (PBC) lauded
our efforts in engaging the younger generation in a creative manner. Two
of our videos won the first and third prize in a financial literacy contest
organised by the Tianjin Branch of PBC. We also clinched third prize in a
financial literacy contest organised by the Shanghai Banking Association.

For the elderly, we developed caring and loving posters so they can be
encouraged to make rational financial decisions. We distributed the posters
through different channels and we also visited local communities to help
promote financial literacy for the elderly. Through these educational outreach
efforts, we shared useful tips on financial scams, digital payment security and
the dangers of participating in illegal fund raising.

In 2021, we received 51 customer complaints, including 48 retail banking
complaints involving the Shanghai, Beijing and Hangzhou branches and
three wholesale banking complaints involving the Shanghai and Chongging
branches. The overall number of customer complaints fell by 25 per
cent from a year ago. Most of the customer complaints involved home
loans, service delivery, and wealth management products. We ensured
that all customer complaints were fully addressed within the established
processes and timelines. We took an average of 5.5 calendar days to
resolve each complaint during the year. We are committed to providing
our customers with an independent, accountable and objective resolution
process in order to address their complaints in a fair, transparent,
comprehensive and efficient manner.

AFoTiR4R

Develop Professionals of Principle
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Credit training for colleagues at our head office in Shanghai

Building a high-performing team and nurturing future-ready banking talents

We believe that a dynamic and dedicated workforce is vital to the
success of our organisation. We continually help our people improve
their knowledge and expertise, ensuring that they are equipped with the
skillsets and mindsets to stay relevant, competitive and fulfilled.

In order to build a high-performing and risk-focused team, we organised
a series of credit training courses in Shanghai and Shenzhen for the
third consecutive year with the support of Group Wholesale Banking.
Conducted by a well-known ratings company, the course, offered
systematic training for our relationship managers and credit analysts in
Wholesale Banking. It aims to enhance their knowledge and skills on
credit products and risk management.

In 2021, we held nine training sessions for more than 170 frontline and
middle-office colleagues, over a total of 21 days.

Meanwhile, the pace of change in the banking industry is accelerating.
Many roles, skills and positions are being redefined and the definition
of "talent” is no longer what we used to know. Competition for the right
people is also intensifying.

In 2020, we introduced Better U, a holistic learning and development
programme rolled out at the Group-level in China, to equip colleagues
with the skills to confidently take on new challenges and to thrive in an
ever-changing business environment. And in 2021 we launched Better U
Phase Il to include training in project management and data analytics, two
areas essential to future employability.

24 3 F AR Better 85— HiIY 5 S 1125
Colleagues attending the Better U Phase Il Project Management course
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Better U Phase Il is open to all colleagues who have completed the
mandatory foundational modules, which cover five core areas — growth
mindset, problem-solving, digital awareness, human-centred design and
data storytelling. The data analytics and project management tracks
feature three progressive stages. Our colleagues can choose to take part in
the different stages according to their level of experience and knowledge.

By end of 2021, 41 employees have completed the first stage of the project
management course and 100 employees have completed the first stage of
the data analytics course.

In addition to providing a series of training for our colleagues to strengthen and
enhance their career skills, we also added a new financial technology Management
Associate programme to groom cross-disciplinary talents. With the Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area (GBA) seeing a growing demand for cross-
border banking services, the demand for cross-border financial talents is also on
the rise. We also launched a GBA Trainee programme with seven young talents
from the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region joining the GBA Commercial
Banking team in Guangzhou and Shenzhen. This is part of our support to the GBA
Youth Employment Scheme to offer young talents cross-border work experience
and exposure.

Encouraging diverse cultures, skills and abilities

A diverse workforce provides different perspectives fosters innovative
thinking and helps us overcome business challenges and achieve
sustainable growth. We are committed to creating an inclusive workplace
that values different backgrounds, skills and abilities.

To help our colleagues explore and embrace diverse career attributes,
experiences and capabilities, we organised the first Career Week from 26
to 29 September.

ALERTTH EE R R IR 2021 FIRW X/
UOB China leadership team officiating the opening

ceremony of Career Week 2021

Bk A AR F N BR A R SR Y R R T B T 5545 E RNUF
Global Markets colleagues at the career fair to showcase their products, services

and capabilities
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The 'Intergenerational Coffee Hour" showcased six of our employees, representing

the Gen X, Y, and Z, to share their views on issues such as diversity, equality and

inclusiveness.
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More than 500 colleagues attended the opening ceremony of the Career
Week at UOB Plaza. During the four-day event, our colleagues attended
online courses, talks and activities, to learn more about the Bank's career
development plans and our continuing efforts to foster a diverse and
collaborative work culture.

At UOB China, female colleagues are important drivers of our sustainable
growth. Women accounted for 72 per cent of our permanent employees
as at end-2021. They accounted for 42 per cent of our senior management
reporting directly to the Chief Executive Officer.

e 9 e e
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Treny 72%
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Women accounted for 72 per cent of our permanent

=i e —ie

employees as at end-2021.

M@ 42%

HERLRATKNEMSEEEAR SN 2%,

Women accounted for 42 per cent of our senior management

reporting directly to the Chief Executive Officer.
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To support female colleagues in balancing their personal life and
professional responsibilities, we continued to provide dedicated insurance
plans and family care programmes, nursing and maternity benefits as
well as flexible working arrangements. We also have a range of training
and Staff Club activities and career development paths tailored to the
needs of our female colleagues to keep them engaged. We were awarded
Chinas Best Employer for Female Employees by Zhaopin.com for the third
consecutive year.
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Uphold Corporate Responsibility
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Heartbeat for the community

Enriching lives and strengthening social bonds are fundamental to our
philosophy to give back to the community.

At UOB, our corporate social responsibility (CSR) efforts from across
the Group come together under the UOB Heartbeat CSR programme.
The programme aims to create sustainable good for a more caring and
inclusive society through corporate philanthropy, stakeholder partnerships
and employee participation. Guided by our values of Honour, Enterprise,
Unity and Commitment, we draw together our colleagues, customers and
ecosystem partners to make a positive difference to our communities.

We focus on three areas which we believe are essential for the quality and
progress of society: art, children and education.

Bringing art closer to all

Exploring sustainability through art

Art, as a reflection of our society, plays an important role in inspiring and
shaping thoughts and actions on sustainability. To open up the field to
more understanding of sustainability, we launched two art exhibitions at
UOB Art Gallery to help public explore art and sustainability in 2021.

From 31 July to 31 October 2021, we hosted the The Future is Now: Balance
between Tradition and Sustainability’ art exhibition. The exhibition featured
three UOB Painting of the Year award-winning artists, Mr Leo Liu, Ms Hu
Jingxuan and Mr Zhang Chunlei. The artists presented 11 artworks to address
the relationship between business, society and the environment, as well as to
highlight the importance of cultural diversity and bio-diversity through the
contrast between traditional and new mediums and techniques.
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The art installation, Seesaw, was created for Mr Leo Liu's exhibition, which

demonstrates the importance of balancing growth with sustainability.
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Children using props and paints to depict cities without vehicles and shopping malls

and to reflect the beauty of sustainable cities
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Mr Qiu Anxiong’ series of New Classic of Mountains and Seas artworks used ink art
techniques and strokes to paint oil on canvas. His art pieces depict the impact of

human activities on the natural environment.

In collaboration with the Art and Design Education Futurelab (FutureLab),
we launched 'Evoked by Ink; an ink art exhibition on 27 November 2021. The
exhibition featured works from four well-established contemporary ink artists —
Mr Wang Dongling, Mr He Saibang, Mr Han Feng and Mr Qiu Anxiong. Through
the exhibition, the artists demonstrated how they have explored the possibilities
and future of ink art. UOB China and FutureLab also jointly announced the launch
of a campus edition of the UOB Art in Ink Awards in mainland China in 2022 to
encourage young talents to pursue their passion in ink art.

In 2021, we also supported FutureLab, Chinas only international art and design
education fair as the Lead Partner for the third consecutive year. We hosted a
600-square metre UOB Art Space themed ‘art and sustainability' to inspire the
public to discuss and to explore different aspects of sustainability through
exhibitions, workshops and forums.
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Mr Brian Zhu, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Data Officer and Chief Sustainability
Officer, UOB China, sharing his views on the role of the banking industry in

supporting the transition to a more sustainable future
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At the workshops, participants chose toys and arranged them onto the sand tray to

create a miniature world, a reflection of the participants’ current or ideal life.
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Students using flowers and leaves to create collage artworks

Preserving heritage through art education

In 2020, we collaborated with six organisations to launch the 'Forging
a Sustainable Future for Art Education’ in a bid to bring together the
strengths of each partner to develop different programmes for art
education and appreciation. We progressively rolled out an Art for Rural
Children programme and an Art for Urban Workers programme.

We signed a three-year Art for Rural Children programme with Helin
Art. Our aim is to produce in phases a series of online courses and an art
illustration book to help improve the quality of art education for rural
schools. As part of the programme, we hosted a nine-day art camp at the
Laojun Mountain Nature Reserve in Yunnan. The art camp was attended
by artists, nature conservation experts, culture experts, education experts
and teachers from local schools co-develop art courses for rural students.
Through the camp, we created three art courses based on Yunnan's natural
environment and cultural heritage and did a trial run at a local school.
We plan to put these courses online and to bring art education to more
children in the rural schools in Yunnan.

Promoting mental wellness using art

In partnership with Nomena Art and Lujiazui Financial City Development
Foundation, we launched the Art for Urban Worker programme in 2021.
Under the programme, we hosted four sand tray therapy workshops
for office workers, their children and the public to enable them to
boost mental well-being through art exploration. Close to a hundred

participants joined the workshops.
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Our senior leaders hosted the livestream charity sale event. (from left: Ms Amy
Hong, Head of Human Resources, UOB Greater China; Mr Mark Yang, Alternative
CEO and Head of Global Markets, UOB China; and Ms Christina Huang, Head of
Commercial Banking, Non-South, UOB China)
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A student painting on eggs and an egg carton at one of the UOB Art Explorer's

online art courses

Developing the young to their potential

Since 2019, we have been partnering Shanghai Huji Foundation, a non-
profit organisation, to support its Preschools of the Future programme
to improve quality of preschool education for children aged three to six,
especially for those in rural China.

In 2021, besides continuing to support the preschool education in Longkan
village, Ximeng County, Yunnan Province, we extended funds to another
kindergarten in Zhenxiong County, Yunnan Province. As a result, the
number of our beneficiaries doubled that of 2020.

We not only funded the education fees and necessary supplies, but
also sponsored initiatives to improve the quality of education through
systematic management and professional guidance for teachers and local
village committees. In addition, the Bank also brought UOB Art Explorer,
the Group's online visual arts programme to preschool students to help
them to learn and to explore art.

Keeping the good going through philanthropy, partnerships and
participation

2021 marked our tenth year participating in UOB Group's flagship
volunteerism and fundraising event, UOB Global Heartbeat Run/Walk.

The virtual event saw our colleagues, business partners and the public
raise funds through sports, donations, Tencent gongyi, a mini talent show

as well as online and offline charity sales.
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We managed to raise close to RMB440,000, which went towards our
Preschools of the Future and Art for Rural Children programme as well as
relief efforts for the Henan floods.

Besides monetary contributions, our colleagues united as one to give their
time, skills and service to help build inclusive and caring communities. In
2021, our colleagues clocked 3,751 hours of volunteer work.

We also championed volunteerism through partners to give back to
the community. We funded The Expatriate Center (TEC), a non-profit
organisation, to develop a WeChat mini-programme, 'Bless’, to assist
expatriates and the diverse volunteer population in Shanghai to find and
to sign up for volunteer opportunities.

Managing our direct environmental impact and promoting environmental
stewardship

In 2021, we took actions to reduce energy and resource consumption and
leverage technology to mitigate our environmental footprint arising from
our operations.

For example, as part of our efforts to move towards more efficient and
responsible business practices, we added e-invoice capabilities to our
Value-Added-Tax system in November 2021. By generating and issuing
encrypted e-invoices for our corporate clients and business partners, we
can reduce more than 13,000 sheets of paper per year.

In July 2021, we launched the UOB Heartbeat upcycling campaign to
cultivate awareness of environmental protection among our colleagues,
customers and the general public and to encourage responsibility through
upcycling and recycling.

Our colleagues and the public donated close to 12,000 used plastic
bottles and caps. By working together with non-profit organisation Plastic
Ecological Transformer (P.ET), we turned waste into fashion accessories
such as tote bags and shoe laces. Some of these products were donated
to underprivileged students in Yunnan province. We also hosted charity
sales to sell these products to raise funds for our Preschools of the Future
programme.
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A UOB China colleague placing used plastic bottles into the bamboo bin
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Participants learning how to make upcycled plastic coin pouches
and purses from used plastic bags and bubble wraps at an upcycling

workshop

As part of the upcycling campaign, we collaborated with Lujiazui Financial
City Development Foundation to present an education exhibition at UOB
Plaza. The exhibition displayed the environmental impacts of plastics and the
different ways to prevent plastic pollution and to live more sustainably. We
also hosted online quizzes and a workshop to raise colleagues' awareness on
plastic pollution and share the benefits of plastic upcycling.

Throughout the year, we worked together with Precious Plastic Shanghai
(PPSH) to organise three upcycling workshops for more than 100
participants to share ideas on plastic upcycling and to help embrace a
more eco-friendly lifestyle.

Since our head office building, UOB Plaza, opened in 2018, we have been
participating in Earth Hour, a global annual event that calls for greater
climate action. On 27 March 2021, we switched off the non-essential
lights at UOB Plaza and asked all colleagues to turn off their non-essential
electrical appliances to support global efforts to tackle climate change.

Ensuring regulatory compliance

Banks play an integral role in ensuring the stability and security of the
financial system. At UOB China, regulatory compliance is a top priority.

The Bank has robust protocols and processes in place to address
regulatory requirements and we maintain our reporting systems complying
with the requirements of relevant authorities.

For example, we upgraded our credit bureau reporting system adhering to
the second Generation Credit Bureau reporting standards newly released

by People's Bank of China.

We also applied the Internet Protocol version 6 on our Personal Internet
Banking to fulfil local regulatory requirements.
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Awards and Accolades

Al 2215 Leading in banking excellence
2021 Triple A %5 &. BR5 . MNBERERBEEL — (MEF) The Triple A Awards 2021 - Treasury, Trade Supply Chain and Risk
Management - The Asset
s RERGTRE (FEH) —HEXREERSREES  Best Banks in China - Best Service Provider in Risk
s RERFGUABAITR (PE) —BRERHR Management
s RERANASERBEABAFTE (FE) —LAMEHX s Best Supply Chain Solution
s REZMURAZHMABRAATE (FE) —XEHadE « Best Liquidity and Investments Solution
RHIX  Best Trade Finance Solution
s REMNHEBAFRE — BARRAZTRAMEMR « Best Structured Trade Finance Solution
PETEN N . . . )ﬁ“?ﬁﬁﬁt’ﬂfé_&fﬁﬁnﬁf EFEARRITL B 2021 1 E W = FESUE
2021 FEESRITHR 2k — (TEMRITERD The Asian Banker China Awards 2021 - The Asian Banker AR T R DI ]2
- TERESRENHEER « Banker's Choice Awards — Best Financial Supply Chain Ms Cynthia Xin, Head of Corporate Banking, UOB China receiving the Most
Management in China Innovative Case in Sustainability Award at the 2021 Summit Forum on Corporate
Social Responsibility in China
2020 FEESRITIEISMNCHIAMEFE S R — FEIMNCZ S H 0 China Foreign Exchange Trade System 2020
- REARMINCEA + Best Renminbi Foreign Exchange Member . — —
. BEEARMINOZHES R « Best Renminbi Foreign Exchange Swap Member T LA SRR I Championing sustainability for the long term
2021 E—MEAERNMERE — F—HEER 2021 China Financial Value Ranking - Yicai Media Group 2021 REEERERE — BEKAR 2021 China Best Employer Awards - Zhaopin.com
o REVEEFINERT « Best Foreign Bank for Innovation in Business . BRERIRIBEME « Outstanding Campus Recruitment Award
= PN _ s i - i
200 F LA R R B FARF LS E — LB RKZ SN 2021 SHFE Standard Warehouse Warrant Trading System - Shanghai 2021 fE I HEEESIERIE — (PEZEIR) 2021 Summit Forum on Corporate Social Responsibility in China -
Futures Exchange . .
China Business Journal
o ESENA + Best Trading Member
' o TR RAIFTIRGIR * Most Innovative Case in Sustainability
2021 FMEEERITISEES — THSHA Retail Banking Leader Forum 2021 - Shine Consultant
- HEEZTEHRTELEREE « The Best Annual Award for Outstanding Experience of Retail 2021 ESG 444 60 — EifgfR & H | REETiE 2021"ESG Pioneer 60" - Shanghai Media Group and Jiemian
Banking s FEEMERAMKRFR » Best Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Company of the Year
2021 EEMRFNE —LiBEEZSFR Shanghai Commercial Paper Exchange 2021
- MEBRAZHRMAXZVM e Outstanding Financial Institution for Cross-Border Trade 2021 HEFERERE — BEER 2021 China Best Employer Awards - Zhaopin.com
Financing o F{EREF 100358 » Top 100 China Best Employers
s RRLMXIEE « Best Employers for Female Employees
Ft+—EFEAET — A The 11" China Philanthropy Festival - syobserve.com
o 020 FENHEIFER  The Most Innovative CSR Company
o 201 FEEANHIBE — “HAEFFHAREK « Best CSR Programme of the Year - 'Forging a Sustainable

Future for Art Education’

(WSSOI SN RTT

ALERITHEREE —WMERTHIRESE LIRS IINARITEIT, XERITHEE
TTRRABKTHMEBLEIHRE (F) REITHE

UOB China was honoured Foreign Bank of the Year for Innovation in Business and Mr Mark
Yang, Head of Global Markets, UOB China (middle) received the award presented by Yicai
Media Group.
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UOB China is committed to upholding good corporate governance and is

guided by the following in this regard:

a) the People's Republic of China (PRC) Company Law;

b) the PRC Commercial Bank Law;

c) the PRC Regulations on Administration of Foreign-Funded Banks and
the Rules for Implementing the PRC Regulations on Administration of
Foreign-Funded Banks; and

d) other relevant regulatory requirements.

The Board of Directors (Board), Board Committees, the Supervisors and
Senior Management perform their respective duties according to the laws
and regulations of the country and the provisions in the Bank's Articles of
Association.

Board of Directors

The current Board comprises five members, two of whom are independent
directors. The size and composition of the Board comply with regulatory
requirements and the provisions in the Bank's Articles of Association.
Details of the Board members are shown in the table below:

CES il % RE ANEEH

INETIS Gender Age Position Current Term of Office

R—R 5 69 BEK/FRTERTESR 00E9IBVVHE202EIRIH

Wee Ee Cheong Male Chairman/Non-executive and non-independent  From 17 September 2019 to 16 September 2022
director

T 3 59 MAERSEE(GKEEERGT) 20194610 5 28 HHE 2022 610 § 27 A

Peter Foo Moo Tan  Male

Executive and non-independent director

From 28 October 2019 to 27 October 2022

(President and Chief Executive Officer)

M #7155 BA z 58 FEHRITEMLESE
Christine Ip Female

M=% % 63 My EE

Liu Erh Fei Male Independent director
REHE % 63 T EE

Wu Yu Hua Male Independent director

EFcHEERGENT:

o AHRITIEMAMKEE TR, HARTEBARAER, HARTHNEES
THIMEERE RS L IstR

s HERTHNE, HERAEXEYWRSE, TXEINLERRE
TSN, BIREANKE. HERAERER, HEBEAN
HiE. HERREERMNEERR LR,

s BERZHLEBRITHOIVEEMERIMURIERTELAALNYS
REFR;

50  KEESRIT (RE) HRAT 202 £ERE

Non-executive and non-independent director

200478 12HAE20BE7/NH
From 12 July 2020 to 11 July 2023

019N B16HE202E1/A15H
From 16 November 2019 to 15 November 2022

202016 H6HE2024FE 6 §5H
From 6 June 2021 to 5 June 2024

The main responsibilities of the Board are to:

« provide strategic directions, approve strategic business initiatives, and
approve business plans, annual budget and key performance indicators;

e determine the environmental, social and governance (ESG) factors
that are material to the Bank, consider sustainability issues, including
material ESG factors, in formulating its strategies, and oversee the
management and monitoring of the material ESG factors;

e review and monitor the business and financial performance of the
Bank, and approve true and fair financial statements;

s RAERITHEARDGREN;

s BERENEARUREERE:

s ERNEESVEREEENHKAIER

. BESHHMEERAB;

s BWEEILEMN., HMEMALEBYNEEERBK. BFNE
A%

s AERTHUNBBRE. KERE. KERAFZOERXERE
HEPRE

s ERHFEBRTONKEEERE. ANHEITHEANIIIRENETT,
FHRENHETREENT DM

s MK/ BERATEMREREEENITERI

s BMABERTITEYMNBREEF &S N E SIEBRE 4535
FERSEER MR 4%

s HEFRERTHEXRXBEIZNETIGRER;

o BNATI. MHENIE SRS

s HERTNEERBEBERINMEEESMNESME. HHRMEMNR
B

s HNRMEEESRATEZASENRINENRE;

o BHWHFRBRFEWNESHR;

. EABRFRRE: &

s BOBREETFHEMIRNFEE., FMNRBRTERERNEAM
BRAX,

EECEFEANREHNSW, HEFENBAENEERINL,
20214, I HBAEEFSIWIR, SWINEFEERMEEFEALL
REFERTERNNE, EFETBIEZMTTNMERIL,

2021 fF, WOTEFRSBBLEEMNITR, MHE T HIURIL,
SWHBEREF. BEAK. WEREF. RREF. EERAUN
HEEFREANRSETESFEPEARKMNES XERENN

(AEERE) MAXER, MEEERRVILRREZRILAERT
EEXWBHRST.

e determine an appropriate capital/debt structure;

» set dividend policy and declare dividends;

e perform succession planning for the Board and Senior Management;

e putin place an effective management team;

e oversee the establishment of comprehensive risk management
policies, processes and infrastructure to manage various types of risk;

e determine the risk tolerance, risk appetite and risk profile of the Bank
and approve credit discretionary limits;

e review and monitor the risk management, internal audit and compliance
functions and ensure that these functions are adequately resourced;

e evaluate the performance of the President and Chief Executive Officer
(CEO) and Senior Management;

e ensure that Management establishes appropriate procedures and
processes to avoid situations that may give rise to improper personal
gains or conflicts of interests;

e review and approve the Bank's system of controls relating to
connected transactions;

e set corporate culture, values and ethical standards;

e review the Bank's information disclosure policy and be responsible for
the authenticity, accuracy and integrity of the information disclosed;

» review and approve the composition and terms of reference of the Board
and Board Committees.

e endorse directors' fees for recommendation to the shareholder;

e report to the shareholder; and

e exercise such other power as authorised by the shareholder and
perform such other functions as required by relevant laws, regulations
and the Bank's Articles of Association.

The Board meets at least four times a year. Additional Board meetings
would be convened whenever necessary.

In 2021, the Board held four meetings. The quorum for each meeting was met.

The Bank's Articles of Association also provide for the Board to make
decisions by way of circular resolutions.

The Board passed four resolutions by way of circulation in 2021.

The procedures for convening Board meetings, the quorum required
for constituting the meetings, the proceedings at the meetings, and the
procedures for voting and passing of resolutions were in compliance with
the requirements of applicable PRC laws and regulations and the Bank's
Articles of Association. The minutes of all Board meetings and circular
resolutions were properly maintained by the Company Secretary.
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Board Committees

The Board has delegated specific functions to five Board Committees,
namely, Executive Committee (EXCO), Connected Transactions Control
Committee (CTCC), Audit Committee (AC), Nominating and Remuneration
Committee (NRC) and Board Risk Management Committee (BRMC).

(1) Executive Committee
a. The EXCO members are Mr Wee Ee Cheong (Chairman), Mr Peter Foo
Moo Tan and Mrs Christine Ip.

b. The EXCO oversees the following matters:

e the Bank's business operations, including formulating internal
policies and business strategies, monitoring the execution of
business plans and approving relevant credit limits; and

e human resource matters, except for those pertaining to the
President and CEO and Deputy President.

c. In 2021, the EXCO leveraged electronic means to facilitate the review
and approval of matters and to improve efficiency of discussions
during the COVID-19 pandemic. Hence, it did not hold any meeting in
the year.

(2) Connected Transactions Control Committee
a. The CTCC members are Mr Wu Yu Hua (Chairman), Mrs Christine Ip
and Mr Liu Erh Fei.

b. The CTCC's main responsibilities are to:
» establish the framework for managing connected transactions;
» oversee the management of connected transactions and associated risks;
» review non-material connected transactions; and
e review and recommend material connected transactions to the
Board for approval.

c. The CTCC held one meeting in 2021.

d. The CTCC passed three resolutions by way of circulation in 2021..
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(3) Audit Committee

a.

)

The AC members are Mr Liu Erh Fei (Chairman), Mrs Christine Ip and
Mr Wu Yu Hua.

The AC's main responsibilities are to review/oversee all matters

relating to:

« financial statements, and internal and external audit plans and
reports;

e the adequacy of internal accounting controls and material internal
controls;

o the scope and results of internal and external audits;

e the quality of, and any significant change in, accounting policies or
practices;

» the adequacy of internal audit resources;

« significant findings of internal and external auditors;

e the establishment of a comprehensive governance framework,
including the policy and procedures for managing whistle-blowing
cases;

» the approval of external auditor's fees; and

e the nominations of the external auditor and the head of the
internal audit function.

The AC held four meetings in 2021.

Nominating and Remuneration Committee
The NRC members are Mr Liu Erh Fei (Chairman), Mr Wee Ee Cheong,
Mr Wu Yu Hua and Mrs Christine Ip.

The NRC's main responsibilities are to:

e recommend nominees for appointment to the Board and Board
Committees;

e recommend a framework for the remuneration of directors and
key senior executives (including the President and CEO and Deputy
President) for the Board's approval; and

e establish a mechanism for the formal assessment of the effectiveness
of the Board as a whole, the contribution of the various Board
Committees and individual directors.

The NRC held one meeting in 2021.

The NRC passed one resolution by way of circulation in 2021.
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(5) Board Risk Management Committee
a. The BRMC members are Mrs Christine Ip (Chairman), Mr Wu Yu Hua
and Mr Liu Erh Fei.

b. The BRMC's main responsibilities are to:

» review and recommend risk management strategies, policies and
risk appetite statement of the Bank for the Board's approval;

» oversee the establishment and operation of a robust and
independent risk management system that is consistent with the
strategies and policies approved by the Board;

» review and assess the adequacy and effectiveness of the Bank's risk
management framework and practices for identifying, measuring,
monitoring and controlling various types of risks (including fraud
risk);

» review regular management reports on risk exposures, risk portfolio
composition and the management and monitoring of such
exposures and portfolio composition; and

» report to the Board regularly and highlight any adverse risk event
or trend for the Board's attention.

c. The BRMC held four meetings in 2021.

XFHSE
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Supervisors

The Bank has two Supervisors who were nominated by the shareholder
and appointed in accordance with regulatory requirements and the Bank's
Articles of Association. They are Dr Wee Cho Yaw (Supervisor) and Prof
Cham Tao Soon (Deputy Supervisor).

The main responsibilities of the Supervisors include:

« inspecting the accounts and financial statements of the Bank;

e supervising the Board and Senior Management to ensure that the Bank
is run in a prudent manner and that the Board and Senior Management
take corrective actions where necessary;

o safeguarding the lawful rights and interests of the Bank, the
shareholder and other stakeholders, particularly the depositors; and

e exercising such other power and authority pursuant to relevant laws,
regulations and the Bank's Articles of Association, and as may be
authorised by the shareholder.

In 2021, the Supervisors duly discharged their responsibility of supervising
the Board and Senior Management strictly, in accordance with relevant
requirements, including the provisions under the PRC Company Law and
the Bank's Articles of Association. In discharging their responsibility, the
Supervisors received and reviewed regular reports on the Bank's operations
and risk management, and conducted supervision of the operations and
financial position, and protection of consumer rights of the Bank and the
performance of the Directors and Senior Management. The Supervisors
also met with Directors and Senior Management, and attended Board
meetings.
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2021 EMITEEHFESSSWHIRR

M EEHH ISl HE
Name of Independent (>x) (x)
Director No of Board Meetings

Held Attended
X =7k 4 4
Liu Erh Fei
RELE 4 4
Wu Yu Hua

2) MIAFEMBRITARBIUREFWHHER
2021 £, JR EBEIRNBITAFRAIWREIR HFIL.

BEREEAHER

ROKERESHRAMSEERHTHRIFRMESTER. BTt
MEEE. REREE, zEEBEENaEEREFRHEEERN
PIRENEEMBE PO, RTEEREFANS QS
MBPHTAR, MMTBRFTENRURATEETENKIERS
Re EFERBEEBRTHRANTMUREFTERIIREZLER,
R~ M2, BHRTRIE,

56  KERT (RE) HRAT 202 £ERE

No of Board Meetings

Performance of Independent Directors

There were two independent directors on the Board in 2021, namely Mr
Liu Erh Fei and Mr Wu Yu Hua. Mr Liu Erh Fei is the Chairman of the NRC
and AC, as well as a member of the CTCC and BRMC. Mr Wu Yu Hua is the
Chairman of the CTCC, as well as a member of the NRC, AC and BRMC.

In the year under review, all independent directors discharged their duties
diligently and responsibly. They contributed to the decision-making and
oversight by the Board and Board Committees and safeguarded the rights
and overall interests of the Bank, consumers, depositors, the shareholder
and other stakeholders.

(1) Attendance of Independent Directors' at Board Meetings in 2021

R #E

(k) Remarks

Absent with Apologies

(2) Dissent of Independent Directors
In 2021, Management did not give cause for the independent directors to

record their dissent on any matter.

Supervisors' and Directors' Access to Information

The Supervisors and Directors have unfettered access to information
and Management, and are provided with timely and comprehensive
financial, risk management and operational reports to facilitate informed
discussions during meetings. They also have access to the Company
Secretary whose responsibilities include advising the Supervisors
and Directors on regulatory changes and best practices in corporate
governance. The Supervisors and Directors may seek independent
professional advice in the course of discharging their duties at the Bank's

expense.

BREEER R

it
FOO Moo Tan
Peter

HERIE
YANG Rui Qi
Mark

B
ZHENG Jun
Adaline

HE MK
YEONG Kok Leng
Vincent

FRE
LO Siu-Hong
Rodney

KA H
CHENG Yu Lung
Rahmi

HKEF
ZHU Xuan

Brian

1
XIN Tao
Cynthia

BE
HUANG Ying
Christina

RE
YUAN Quan
Albert

Position

TKFEENGTE
President and Chief
Executive Officer
(CEO)

Ak

Alternate Country CEO
ARSI EE
Head, Global Markets

Bk

Alternate Country CEO
HMRBITEHTE
Head, Wholesales
Banking

R EEIBEE
Head, Risk
Management

RERBFHIBEE
Head, Channels and
Digitalisation

B REEHMEE
Head, Technology and
Operations

HEMEE
Chief Financial Officer

AW ERITEHEE
Head, Corporate
Banking

B RITER
FEXEE

Head, Commercial Banking
- Non-South China

X HRITHBEE
Head, Transaction
Banking

Male

Male

Z

Female

Male

3
Male

Male

Male

8

Female

xz

Female

%
Male

HAE
Fh
Year of
Birth

1962

1973

1980

1969

1967

1964

1980

1981

1972

1976

Senior Management Structure

f£83

L
Assignment
Commencement

2016 £ 12 B
Dec 2016

2020 ££10 B
Oct 2020

2016 4£10 B
Oct 2016

20215 4 B
Apr 2021

2084FE2 B
Feb 2018

2021 %12 B
Dec 2021

2014468
Jun 2014

20112 B
Dec 2021

201847 B
Jul 2018

2020 FE1 B
Jan 2020

2018 F 4 B
Apr 2018

201845 B
May 2018

Highest Academic Degree

NS E T K5 B - IR S L SR B
Bachelor of Science, Estate Management, Honours
National University of Singapore

FIF ST

Chartered Financial Analyst

BAF T RRAKXZN et
Master of Applied Finance
The University of Melbourne, Australia

IERBRXZEEREMZEL
Bachelor of International Finance
Shanghai Jiao Tong University

FMEEIAFTHEESL
Bachelor of Business Administration
National University of Singapore

FrREREMA

MEGS. EE0E; MESENGRERIRE
Project Leadership, Management and Communications
Contracting for Project Managers

The George Washington University, USA

HEEFRE T IREML
Master of Science
King's College, University of London, UK

EEXRFXUHL
Master of Professional Accounting
Fudan University

HEE T IXKERFEM T
Master of Science in Economics
University of Nottingham, UK

HEMNRXFHZREREZT. SRSBTFENLT
Master of Science in International

Economics Banking and Finance

Cardiff University, UK

ARSI BKRFEZFFEML
Master of Economics
Rikkyo University, Japan

HERER
LERR
Relevant
Years of
Experience

34

20

28

28

30

27
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Ei
ZHANG Xiao
Andy

MEEE
LIM Pei Hong
Winston

s
TEH Wee Jin

7iln
YEOH Kian Soon
Benedict

i
HONG Xiao Yan
Amy

SR
ZHANG Sa
Sarah

T
WANG Yuan
Eliza

RER K
XIONG Da Yong

e
FU Yue
Sabrina

REXIR
LIM Lian Kian

BXE
SHING Tin Yau
Gordon

Position

BEMWVRTHREE
Head, Multinational
Corporate
RIELBLTHK
General Manager of
Shanghai Branch

MASRBRSHEE
Head, Personal
Financial Services

U RTERBEE

Head, Corporate Credit

BLRITERESEE
Head, Commercial
Credit

ANEFEBEE
Head, Human
Resources

REPEITHREE
Head, Internal Audit

ERSWBHEE
Head, Legal and
Secretariat

BRAEE
Head, Compliance

REGEW S AR
Head, Strategic
Communications and
Brand

ERATITK
General Manager of
Beijing Branch

Y2717
General Manager of
Shenzhen Branch
FAER L RITH
BXIE

Head, Commercial
Banking - South China

i)l

Gender

5
Male

E2
2

Male

==
73

Male

[=2]
73

Male

=

Female

xz

Female
S
Female

Male

Fermale

Male

>
Male
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e
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=2
Ein

Year of Assignment

Birth

1971

1975

1958

1970

1977

1972

1974

1970

1977

1973

1970

Commencement

204 %E9 B
Sep 2014

208 £ 12 B
Dec 2018

2015 ££10 B
Oct 2015

2008 F£ 9 B
Sep 2008

20147 B
Jul 2014

2007 £ 12 B
Dec 2007

2016 £ 1 B
Jan 2016

2007 £ 12 B
Dec 2007

2017 £ 8 A
Aug 2017

20N 4S5 B
May 2011

2084E7 B
Jul 2018

2019 £ 8 B
Aug 2019

2090 F3 A
Mar 2019

ReFH

Highest Academic Degree

tEMaXs - XERBEHIRAFIHEENL 28
Master of Business Administration

Shanghai University of Finance and Economics and Webster
University

IR FIE T RESTF L REF N 20
Bachelor of Accountancy, Honours
Nanyang Technological University, Singapore

FRZRFEHF LT 40
Bachelor of Commerce
University of Otago, New Zealand

EEFMEEERFESFE T 26
Bachelor of Science
Carnegie Mellon University, USA

SEAXZIHEENL 24
Master of Business Administration
Fudan University

EEAAN KT RF TR EEN L 28
Master of Corporate Finance and Accounting
State University of New York at Buffalo, USA

EEXRFTHEERML 25
Master of Business Administration
Fudan University

EEXFeFEL 18
Doctor of Finance
Fudan University

REMNZANZEFRTHEESTL 20
Master of Science in International Marketing Management
University of Leeds, UK

SEFHMRNE DM KFES L 25
Bachelor of Science
University of South Alabama, USA

BEREIXRFHEHREEEFM L 27
Master of Science in China Business Studies
Hong Kong Polytechnic University

HXER
FERR
Relevant
Years of
Experience

U8
ZENG Xiao Ting
Christina

[k
HU Wei
Tony

e
GOU Wei
Helen

{ag)11
HE Chuan
Charlie

A
ZHOU Xiao Zhou
Alan

i
YE Yan
Beicy

ZER
CHUA Hock Yew
Alexander

By
CAl Wei Ling
Cissy

B
SHAO Yi Ning

P
SOOQO June Hsing
June

i
XIE Ying
Grace

PREES
CHEN Xiao Ling

C:c)
DU Yan
Cherry

Position

N K
General Manager of
Guangzhou Branch

AP T
General Manager of
Suzhou Branch

SERRMTITE
General Manager of
Shenyang Branch

AR FT1TIK
General Manager of
Chengdu Branch

RRSTTH
General Manager of
Tianjin Branch

BN 4717
General Manager of
Hangzhou Branch

BERDTTK
General Manager of
Chonggqing Branch

ENaaaK
General Manager of
Xiamen Branch

RS TITEK
General Manager of
Kunming Branch

Fll 2717
General Manager of
Zhongshan Branch

EEERABR X
(ER'S

Branch Manager of
Shanghai Pilot Free

Trade Zone Sub-Branch

ERHBFRLCEITITK
Branch Manager of
Xujiahui Sub-Branch

iy Re X LR
Branch Manager of
Jing'An Sub-Branch

il

Female

3
Male

Male

xz

Female

3
Male

xz

Female

-3

Female

z

Female

xz

Female

x

Female

x

Female

HaE
FH

Gender Year of
Birth

1972

1978

1977

1979

1982

1971

1972

1981

1983

1975

1983

1984

1975

47

R
Assignment
Commencement

201512 B
Dec 2021

201 H
Nov 2021

2020 £ 8 A
Aug 2020

2014 H
Nov 2021

20204 B
Apr 2020

2018 £ 12 B
Dec 2018

208 F 18
Jan 2018

2020 £ 7 B
Jul 2020

2020 FF 6 B
Jun 2020

209 FE 8 B
Aug 2019

2020 4£ 8 B

Aug 2020

208FE 6 B

Jun 2018

2016 4E 5 A
May 2016

RE¥H

Highest Academic Degree

FAZRFRXZEIFEEMLT
Master of Business Administration
The University of Waikato, New Zealand

FEEVRERASEEZR TREREMLT
Master of Business Administration
Conservatoire National des Arts et Métiers, France

UTKREZFEFLREFFL
Bachelor of Economics and Laws
Liaoning University

HMEZRAAFRTEESML
Master of Management in Banking
Massey University, New Zealand

REMFEERFSITERMY T
Bachelor of Accounting and Finance
University of Hertfordshire, UK

BRRIBARFETIRF L
Bachelor of Electrical Engineer
Harbin Engineering University

MERERE KSR FEELHRESM
Bachelor of Commerce, Honours
University of Toronto, Canada

KEF=ZAEXREFTSSHMERFHSML
Master of Business Finance and International Business
University of Central Lancashire, UK

ZRMAERFTHEEL
Bachelor of Marketing
Yunnan University of Finance and Economics

ESRVAS N YN -
Master of Business Administration
National Taiwan University

EBTBRFENREBESFMET
Master of Applied Linguistics
Shanghai Jiao Tong University

EEETRETENNZESEARSE L
Bachelor of Engineering (Science and Technology)
The University of Shanghai for Science and Technology

EEFINBER Y Re R TR EEmL
Master of Business Administration
United Business Institutes, Belgium

THEXER
TEBR
Relevant
Years of
Experience

21

20

27

24

21
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Remuneration

FINERS5EE

RERTHEHFMBKN BB EREETHRESF NNFHFHKTE
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BVER T RN ARG B R RABES, SRCERXN BIRRE NG
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HZ, s, RITAEEMMNPEEERITR TAIFM KT S EA
BB &S R NHEBUKFRML,

AOTULFMERGHREURRABEKRER, ZXAATRTUSHE
R HME R THEIUES SR MARMONRES, REFER
TREEEEEZRATTMHN (FULRTREFMEERESD) , K
THSREEARMENNEEERY MR LNRTERD TR
FHBHBEXM., REATRINFHECER, TEZSREH
AR EFHM B IELL G20 50%, HtbSREEARMUENKET
EZFWRA AR T RHMAETELL BN 40%, ZBEMN T
REDRHIBRESBERE (EM) BTN TRE,

AT BHFMEEFMARTEEFORRIEN, RERTHECHK
NTRBRERFHZERE (UTEHKRZRE) , RERZHNRE
RAM, HYPZERSTFHRBRITEFEE, REHFN, ZERASHA

=W 1R,
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Remuneration Policy and Management

The remuneration policy of UOB China aims to provide competitive
remuneration package and ensure the bank is able to appropriately
attract, retain and motivate high quality talents who not only fit the
Bank's culture and share the same values but also meet the competencies
the positions require. Meanwhile, the remuneration policy outlines how
our remuneration entitlement links to the Bank's performance, long-term
benefits and risk management. This remuneration policy applies to all of
the full-time employees with the Bank.

According to the Bank's remuneration policy, the employee's salary is
mainly linked to the individual performance, the Group's and function's
performance. The performance target setting clearly shows the
requirements and expectations of the Bank for risk management and long-
term and short-term performance of the function and the individual.
In addition, the compensation review of the employees who are taking
compliance and risk management's roles is independent with the
performance of the business lines they supervise.

The Bank's variable pay includes performance bonus and restricted
shares, which links the staff variable pay to the Bank's performance and
current and future risks. In line with the Supervisory Guidelines on Sound
Compensation in Commercial Banks issued by China Banking and Insurance
Regulatory Commission, senior management and employees whose roles
have material impacts on the Bank's risk exposure would have a portion of
their variable pay deferred. Under the Bank's latest deferral framework, the
50 per cent deferral rate will be applied to the variable pay for key senior
managements whereas for other senior managements and employees
whose roles have material impacts on the Bank's risk exposure, the 40 per
cent deferral rate will be applied to the variable pay. This deferral will be
in the form of deferred shares or deferred cash (where applicable).

To maintain sound corporate governance practices and an effective
remuneration management, UOB China has established a Nominating and
Remuneration Committee (NRC), which consists of four Board Directors.
The chairman of NRC is an independent director. During the reporting
period, the committee held one meeting in total.

EF. DEUSHEEAGHMN
0 FEARTARBEFIMERSRAXIMNNETRLZITAARD
693000 7T, [MEXMHBHEREIHART 400,000 7T,

BE22FN2BIAH, ATERESREEAARNNKAEEER
FMRALENATL, 2020 FRTNEIAFNFMETIARD
78,512,848 4, HE P EIEFH I 2H A AR M 47569085 7T, T 4 3 B
BRI AANRT 30943763 ¢,

ATEREREEFHH. BEFMOSIHAEMRMEEE,

Compensation for Board Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management

In 2021, the Bank paid a total of RMB693,000 directors' fees to the
members of NRC, and paid a total of RMB400,000 supervisors' fees to the
supervisors.

As of 31 December 2021, there are total 32 senior executives and material
risk takers whose roles have material impacts on the Bank's risk exposure.
The total compensation for these executives and material risk takers
in 2021 was RMB78,512,848, including RMB47,569,085 fixed pay and
RMB30,943,763 variable pay.

The Bank currently has no explicit and/or implicit adjustments to the
deferred pay and/or remained pay.
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Internal Control and Internal Audit
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Internal Control

UOB China has a well-established internal control system that adheres
strictly to local regulators' requirements and the Group's policies and
guidelines. This provides a robust framework and systems that enable
the Bank to set strategic and practical objectives to support its business
development.

The Board assesses the Bank's internal control framework and systems
through the review of risk management reports and analysis, operational
and budget reports, internal audit reports tabled at regular meetings,
discussions at various internal committees and from the exchange of
insights with industry peers.

The integrity and effectiveness of the Bank's internal control system
is a result of the continuous improvement on the internal control
environment, including, but not limited to, strengthening risk
identification/assessment, monitoring processes and risk mitigation
techniques; and constantly reviewing communication/feedback as well
as evaluation/correction mechanisms. The internal control framework
and systems are able to provide a reasonable level of assurance on the
implementation of legal statutes and regulations.

PIBE

BATRL TR BRI EET— AR, ERERE, W
METBEEQEZTS TRNFETZRASMARERTRAFITBR
16 ETBER, AMREITESEERTITRKEFERRITEILRIE,

WA T ER T A BL R AR IR ENAABEITRSNE
IBERS, MOEFSTMEERRTLEEMNEERS, BAER
HRTEEENTABRFMALEENSEEMERE, NAH
IEMRIER R G R, ARNTTER, THERITABUSEN. 55
MERARFNZTOUNER N, BNRERTNEEE, B 58
EREMAENN, NIEBBRTIAALZEMEERfR, AR
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S FLdHITZRRHMERIT.

REIEITARELE T ZASMENRBF I UARET, B
ZREEH, #FERS. KERTFETKRERRTESS
FEBENERFARTIHITHRE, (FEITZERE. TKKER
WOE. BXEERNESS (NEA ) LRELEITER, HXNE
REITRIRIERE, Mo, REEITBRFEEEEEH XN
it SMBEIT R EEVMARE S AR HEEET T RRNE
SITMAKIEER, SEXERT IR HEFERHEITER
SMEERI LRREEER,

Internal Audit

Internal Audit is an independent function that reports functionally to the
Audit Committee (AC) and Group Audit, while administratively reports to
the President and Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of UOB China.

The primary role of Internal Audit is to assist the Board and management
to discharge their legal and executive obligations by providing
independent, objective assurance and value-added services to improve
the Bank's operations. It helps the Bank to accomplish its objectives by
having a systematic and disciplined approach to provide an independent
assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Bank's internal
financial controls, operational and compliance controls, and to improve
the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes.
During 2021, as led by Group Audit, Internal Audit continued its
implementation on Enhanced Risk Assessment in its monitoring on the
Bank's internal risk & control management process, applied technology-
enabled techniques such as data analytics and automation tools, for
improved effectiveness and efficiency in audit assessment. Internal
Audit also proactively collaborated with various business and support
functions for better mutual understanding, deepened its appreciation of
new business products and process changes to support & improve audit
evaluation, and strived to recommend process enhancement and/or
automation solutions to business and support functions.

Internal Audit performs its function according to the Internal Audit
Guidelines for Financial Institutions as governed by the China Banking
and Insurance Regulatory Commission and Standards for the Professional
Practice of Internal Auditing set by the Institute of Internal Auditors.
Internal Audit adopts a risk-based prioritisation approach to develop
its strategic audit plan to determine audit frequency. This approach
also adopts a comprehensive assessment of inherent risks, controls,
management concerns and regulatory hotspots. The audit scope covers
all businesses, operations as well as the infrastructure and applications
of systems across UOB Chinas headquarters and branches. The strategic
audit plan is annually reviewed and approved by the AC prior to its
implementation.

Internal Audit conducts audits in accordance with the internal audit
plan approved by the AC, and carries out investigations or reviews that
may be ad hoc requested by the regulator, the AC, the CEO or senior
management. All internal audit reports are provided to the AC, the CEOQ,
relevant management and/or the Board (where required) with significant
issues highlighted. Internal Audit is responsible for closely monitoring and
assessing the follow-up actions taken by the management on the issues
raised by Internal Audit, external audit and regulators, with reporting to
the AC and the regulator on quarterly basis.
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Managing risk is an integral part of our business strategy. Our risk management
approach focuses on ensuring continued financial soundness and safeguarding
the interests of our stakeholders, while remaining nimble to seize value-
creating business opportunities in a fast-changing environment. We are
committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance, sound risk
management principles and business practices to achieve sustainable long-
term growth. We continuously strive towards best risk management practices
to support our strategic objectives.
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2021 HIGHLIGHTS

In 2021, we further strengthened our environmental, social and governance
(ESG) risk and climate risk management practices. In line with Group, we
rolled out environmental risk appetite, adopted the Equator Principles,
and tightened our policy stance on selected high-risk sectors. We remain
actively involved in various relevant Group initiatives as relevant to us to
collectively uplift climate risk management capabilities/practices in the day

to day business operation.

Successfully migrated our non-US Dollar (USD) London Inter-bank Offered
Rate (LIBOR) contracts whose benchmark will cease after 31 December
2021, we are ready and on track versus various regulators' timelines follow
UOB groups Inter-Bank Offered Rate (IBOR) transition project timeline. Our
system and process enhancements are largely complete with incremental
changes expected as the market continues to evolve. We evaluated both
external and internal financial impact of the transition based on different

scenarios and continue to monitor our exposure regularly.

Implemented the system construction of Fundamental Review of Trading
Book Standardised Approach (FRTB-SA) based on parent bank's research,
which met the requirements of the Basel January 2019 Minimum Capital
Requirements for Market Risk and added capability to report the FRTB-
SA results in local currencies to facilitate local reporting in the future.
This allows the Bank to do trial run results and analysis internally
ahead of the FRTB regulatory compliance timeline and well prepare for
the incorporation of local jurisdictions' regulatory requirements with

ongoing fine-tuning.

In 2021 we published the Third Party Non-Outsourcing Policy and
Guidelines to provide a standardised and systematic approach in

managing third-party relationships.

MAINTAINING A SOUND RISK CULTURE

A strong risk culture is vital to the long-term sustainability of the Bank's
business franchise. Specifically, risk culture refers to the norms, attitudes
and behaviours related to risk awareness, risk-taking and risk management,
and controls that shape decisions on risks'. At UOB, our risk culture is
based on our values. A strong risk culture ensures that our decisions and
actions are considered and focused on our stakeholders, and that we are
not distracted by short-term gains.

1 Guidelines, Corporate Governance Principles for Banks, Basel Committee on Banking Supervision, July 2015.
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UOB's Risk Culture Statement

Managing risk is integral to how UOB creates long-term value for our
customers and other stakeholders. Our risk culture is built on four principles:
enforcing robust risk governance; balancing growth with stability; ensuring
accountability for all our risk-based decisions and actions; and encouraging
awareness, engagement and consistent behaviour in every employee. Each
of these principles is based on our distinctive set of values that guides every
action we take. In entrenching our risk culture further across our franchise, we
uphold our commitment to financial safety and soundness; fair outcomes and
appropriate support for our stakeholders; sustainable and prudent approach
to business and performance based on integrity, ethics and discipline.

RIESRITHEE, SIEKANE

Safeguarding our reputation in creating long-term value for our stakeholders

A

management framework, collaboration
policies and processes

- Well-defined risk appetite

- Pre-emptive supervision

- Independent control
functions

A

MHMEWR 13

Our Values

Honourable

- Regular risk reviews and
continual improvements

NPLERIEY HH5 ) zﬁsﬁ%ﬁ

PSRN EMRLTERE ,
Our Risk Culture Financial safety Fair outcomes and
Impact and soundness all stakeho!

appropriate sum:ort for Sustainable and prudent

ers approach to business

ZERRFREFRE K

Maintaining a sound risk culture across our franchise

JXUBE: 3T 4 TR T
Our Risk Culture
G BAHRBAIE, TAERIREEN, BARRERE S T,
TRRIE R AR K TRl S5 Aa oKk 3t MRS AR HE
GOVERNANCE BALANCE ACCOUNTABILITY
Enforce robust Balance growth with Ensure accountability
governance of risk stability in taking risk for risk
- EERE EERER. - AFEESME CRIE=IERL, R E PR - EREREK
BURFIR R - EMEE NI R/ T LIRGAR - ASHEBMTE
- BH R RS SFER B i - B Wi 28 - 1 9 3 B MU - BAF R RFITREALE R
REXHVES C AMAZMEELE P CERERRTHE
Our Risk Culture IRy R ERIREE ERINEREE - Figl
Components - Comprehensive risk - Open communication and . ClearJo\Wnership and - Tone from above

- Leadership oversight and
responsibility

- Balanced risk-reward - Clear articulation of
remuneration principles and desired

- Established consequences outcomes

- Individual’s accountability - Frequent and regular sharing

- Ongoing training

escalation through the Three
Lines Model

TH—8, RTEIMMFEHHER

Demonstrating our unique set of values through consistent behaviour

HEEX Fils

Enterprising United
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Our risk management strategy is targeted at embedding our risk culture so
as to facilitate ongoing effective discovery, management and mitigation
of risks arising from our business activities and external factors, and to use
capital efficiently to address these risks. Risks are managed within levels
established by the senior management committees and approved by the
Board and its committees. We have put in place a set of frameworks,
policies, methodologies, tools and processes that will help us to identify,
to measure, to monitor and to manage material risks faced by the Bank.
These enables us to focus on the fundamentals of banking and to create
long-term value for all our stakeholders.

RISK GOVERNANCE

Our risk frameworks, policies and appetite provide the principles and
guidance for the Bank's risk management activities. They guide our key
decisions for capital management, strategic planning and budgeting, and
performance management to ensure that the risk dimension is appropriately
and adequately considered. Risk reports are regularly submitted to
management and the Board to keep them apprised of the Banks risk profile.

UOB China has adopted the Basel Framework and observes capital
management measures on commercial banks by China Banking and Insurance
Regulatory Commission (CBIRC). We take a prudent and proactive approach
in navigating the evolving regulatory landscape, with emphasis on sound risk
management principles in delivering sustainable returns.

We have adopted Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP)
to assess on an ongoing basis the amount of capital necessary to support
our activities. We review the ICAAP periodically to ensure that the Bank
remains well-capitalised taking into account all material risks. Stress testing is
conducted to determine capital adequacy under stressed conditions.

UOB Chinas responsibility for risk management starts with Board oversight of

Bank's governance structure, which ensure that the Bank's business activities are:

o conducted in a safe and sound manner and in line with the highest
standards of professionalism;

» consistent with the Bank's overall business strategy and risk appetite;
and

» subjected to adequate risk management and internal controls.

Our Board is assisted by the Executive Committee (EXCO) and Board Risk
Management Committee (BRMC) in the oversight of risks. The Board also reviews
the overall risk appetite and level of risk capital to maintain for the Bank.

Our Chief Executive Officer (CEO) has established senior management
committees to assist in making business decisions with due consideration
for risks and returns. The main senior management committees involved in
this are the Management Committee (MC), Asset and Liability Committee
(ALCO), In-Country Credit Committee (ICCC), Operational Risk Management
Committee (ORMC), Consumer Rights Protection Committee (CRPC), Risk and
Capital Committee (RCC), and Information & Technology Committee (ITC).
These committees also assist the Board committees in specific risk areas.

BRAEEREMNSRERZRARBIRMN W EHKLM / A9~ M
F LR T NS RFIR A,

REEEGERTAESIRINTFE. RERARMRITELT -
EMERBRAZFHMNOL YA, BRIBNETMEFLEH
REFERREEMER,

EBEM TR ZEH4RN" AR EF SN

R R IREEH

Senior management and the senior management committees are authorised
to delegate risk appetite limits by business lines and/or broad product lines.

Risk management is the responsibility of every employee in the Bank.
We strive to instill awareness of the risks created by their actions and be
accountable for the consequences of those actions in our employees.
We have an established framework to ensure appropriate oversight,
accountability and management of all risk types encountered in the
course of our business.

Our organisational control structure is based on the Three Lines model as
follows:

Risk Governance Structure s HItZRS
Audit Committee

® $/\MBA B }Eé 2 7:

Board Risk Management Committee

BER

Board of Directors < RERHFHERS

s MTZERE

Board Committees
[ ]

EESTREZERS

Nominating and Remuneration Committee

Executive Committee

s XEKRHEHERR

Connected Transactions Control Committee

- ARSARERS
- BRERS

s AFNRERS

o & =4
gﬁmﬁ%—. < B Iié IRN=
CEO

REBERS

=
=]

Senior Management Committees

s FEREZRR

Risk & Capital Committee
In-Country Credit Committee
Asset & Liability Committee
Management Committee

s HAENARIERS

Consumer Rights Protection Committee

e RIERREEZRAS

Operational Risk Management Committee

Information & Technology Committee

ﬂﬂﬁm7

Busmess Functions

SRFEBIT
Support Functions

B &5 First line of defence

MERETT

InternalAudit

% — 3[4 Second line of defence [ % =354 Third line of defence
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First line — The Risk Owner: The business and business support functions
own and have primary responsibility for implementing and executing
effective controls to manage the risks arising from their activities. This
includes establishing adequate managerial and supervisory controls
to ensure compliance with approved risk policies, appetite, limits and
controls and to highlight control breakdowns, inadequacy of processes
and unexpected risk events.

Second line — Risk Oversight: The risk and control oversight functions (i.e.
Risk Management and Compliance Function), and the Chief Risk Officer
(CRO) as the Second line, support the Bank's strategy of balancing growth
with stability by establishing risk frameworks, policies, appetite and
limits within which the business functions must operate. They are also
responsible for the independent review and monitoring of the Bank's risk
profile and for highlighting any significant vulnerabilities and risk issues to
the respective senior management committees.

The independence of risk and control oversight functions from business
functions ensures the necessary checks and balances are in place.

Third line — Independent Audit: The Bank's internal auditors conduct
risk-based audits covering all aspects of the First and Second lines to
provide independent assurance to the CEO, Audit Committee (AC) and
the Board, on the adequacy and effectiveness of our system of risk
management and internal controls. The internal auditor's overall opinion
of the internal controls and risk management system is provided to the
AC and the Board annually.

RISK APPETITE

UOB China has established a risk appetite framework to define the
amount of risk we are able and willing to take in pursuit of our business
objectives. It ensures that the Bank's risk profile remains within well-
defined and tolerable boundaries. The framework was formulated based
on the following key criteria:

« alignment to the Bank's key business strategy;

» relevance to respective stakeholders, with appropriate levels of
granularity;

e practical, consistent and easy-to-understand metrics for
communication and implementation; and

« analytically-substantiated and measurable metrics.
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Material Risk Definition

The risk appetite defines suitable thresholds and limits across key areas of
credit risk, country risk, market risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, technology
risk and reputational risk. Our risk-taking approach is focused on businesses
which we understand and whose risk we are well-equipped to manage. This
approach helps us to minimise earnings volatility and concentration risk, and
ensures that our high credit ratings, strong capital and stable funding base
remain intact. This way, we will remain a steadfast partner of our customers
through changing economic conditions and cycles.

UOB China's risk appetite framework and risk appetite are reviewed and
approved annually by the Board. Management monitors and reports the
risk profiles and compliance with the risk appetite to the Board and BRMC
on a regular basis.

MATERIAL RISKS

UOB China's business strategies, products, customer profiles and operating
environment expose us to a number of financial and non-financial risks.
Identifying and monitoring key risks are integral to the Bank's approach to
risk management. It enables us to make proper assessment and to mitigate
these risks proactively across the Bank. The table below lists the key risks
which could impact the achievement of the Bank's strategic objectives.
Details of these key risks can be found in the following pages.

REEEE
How risk is managed
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The risk of loss arising from failure by a borrower or  Through the Bank's credit risk management framework, policies,
counterparty to meet its financial obligations when they are  probability of default/loss given default/exposure at default/

portfolio models and limits.
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Credit Risk (SRS TRk Al 8
due.
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Market Risk
RRB T UM SEABERRNRKS SR,
The risk of loss from movements in the market rates or prices
(such as changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates,
equity prices, commodity prices and credit spreads) of the
underlying asset. It includes interest rate risk in the banking
book which is the potential loss of capital or reduction in
earnings due to changes in interest rates environment.

wmah R AN RIERITTERERERSHAE NS ERAK

Liquidity Risk RER BRSNS =B KGRI E AN,

The risk that arises from the Bank's inability to meet its
obligations or fund increases in assets as they fall due.

Through the Bank's market risk management framework,
policies, Value-at-Risk (VaR) models and limits. Interest risk in
the banking book is managed through the Bank's balance sheet
risk management framework and interest rate risk in the banking
book management policies and limits.

KTHET B AGRKRERERSTNRER, 88%
THUBL SR A0 R B PR AT

Through the Bank's balance sheet risk management framework,
liquidity risk management policies, ratios and limits.
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Operational
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Strategic and
Business Risk
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Model Risk
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Definition
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The risk of improper employee behaviour or action that
results in unfair stakeholder outcomes, negative impact on
market integrity and other issues that damage the reputation
of the Bank.

BRIERRERIEHATERF BARAEF. RTHNER
MRARG, WRINPEMFPIIERRKAINEE, BRIERE R
2RTEENE . BIENR ., FENE, BEaARE.
EENE., SMEMBE=T7IMERE, SESRERNRE,
(EEN SRR NI g

The risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal
processes, people and systems or from external events. Such
loss may be in the form of financial loss or other damage,
for example, loss of reputation and public confidence that
will impact the our creditability and/or ability to transact, to
maintain liquidity and/or to obtain new business. This includes
banking operations risk, fraud risk, legal risk, outsourcing risk
third party non-outsourcing risk, regulatory compliance risk,
reputational risk and technology risk but excludes strategic
and business risks.

M AP 15 T AT B9 ARER R, REEHAT R LT,
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Strategic risk refers to the current or prospective negative
impact on earnings, capital or reputation arising from adverse
strategic decisions, improper implementation of decisions or a
lack of responsiveness to industry, economic or technological
changes.

Business risk refers to the adverse impact on earnings or
capital arising from changes in business parameters such as
volumes, margins and costs.
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This is the risk arising from:

e the use of inappropriate model which cannot accurately
evaluate market prices, or which is not a mainstream model
in the market (such as pricing models); or

 inaccurately estimating the probability or magnitude of
future losses (such as risk measurement models) and the use
of those estimates.
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How risk is managed
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Through a multi-faceted approach leveraging on the frameworks,
policies and procedures in operational risk management, internal
fraud management, whistle-blowing, employee discipline,
individual accountability, code of conduct, remuneration, fair
dealing, and anti-money laundering.

ARITHE TRENGEIEER, BR., EEIA#TERE
R EE, BiXRNEIRAMEEEEITME, XBEE
Rpgtetr, RIENBEEHRE. EERRRR, =773
SMERBEIHE RSB T,

Through the respective risk management frameworks, policies,
and operational risk management programmes including Key Risk
and Control Self-Assessments, Key Operational Risk Indicators,
Incident Reporting, Management Risk Awareness , Outsourcing
Assessment, Third Party Non-Outsourcing Risk Assessment
Questionnaire and Scenario Analysis.

RIEBAE N RIBERFETRBRCERE, FhHsREE

BZRaNREE,

Through overall risk governance framework and oversight by
senior management committees.

BEEMEANEEETHEEENETRERAITER,

Managed under the respective material risk types for which
there is a quantitative model.

EANBE EX

Material Risk

Definition

HTE Mk HE HSRRENKIIEHRFERKNESG [E (8
AN ERERE) SIBERRARIENS KL, ESG MEAR
Environmental, XTRFNEANSRRS, I MARTESNZEST
Social and A5l#,

Governance

Risk The risk of credit loss or non-financial risks, such as

reputational damage, arising from ESG issues, including climate
change. While a key component of ESG risk arises indirectly
from the financial services we provide to our customers, it can

e E =
How risk is managed
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The different aspects of ESG risk are managed through the
relevant frameworks, policies and guidelines in place, including
our Environment Risk Management Framework and Responsible
Financing Policy.

also result directly from our own operations.
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CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from any failure by a borrower or
counterparty to meet its financial obligations when they are due. It is the
single largest risk that we face in our core business as a commercial bank,
arising primarily from loans and other lending-related commitments to
retail, corporate and institutional borrowers. Treasury and capital market
operations and investments also expose the Bank to counterparty and
issuer credit risks.

We adopt a holistic approach towards assessing credit risk and ensure
that managing credit risk is part of an integrated approach to enterprise
risk management. Integral to the management of credit risk is a framework
that clearly defines policies and processes relating to the identification,
measurement and management of credit risk. We continually monitor
the operating environment to identify emerging risks and to formulate
appropriate mitigating actions.

Credit Risk Governance and Organisation

The RCC and ICCC support the CEO and board level committees in
managing the Bank's overall credit risk exposures and serves as executive
forum to discuss on all credit-related matters. Particularly, ICCC holds the
responsibility of approving credit facilities and exposures to borrowers
and/or counterparties of the Bank within the Risk Appetite Limit set
by the Board and the discretionary limits delegated by the EXCO. RCC
discusses and approves credit risk management policies, reviews and
assesses the Bank's credit portfolios and credit risk profiles.

The Credit Risk Management Division under Risk Management Function
develops bank-wide credit policies and guidelines and facilitates business
development within a framework that results in prudent, consistent
and efficient credit risk management. It is responsible for the reporting,
analysis and management of credit risk to the relevant management
committees. The comprehensive credit risk reports cover business
segments at the overall portfolio level by various dimensions including
industry, product and country.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

71 ‘-ﬁ';



R peEHE

Risk Management

B B R FNAE P
BRI T ERBRMRIEREE N T R BRI AE TN
WY ESERUE

ARFERFREFNESTIRIM, BRTNERLEFERESRI
REHD B, EREMBRIREFRMENER. AHMIFLCET
MUZE, FAEFHEEZERERNEREAENES., FRE
FEMERENEEEHMHATEREANMLZEN, WRBREARTR
REREAN A S5 IR R E LM FE A

MERTR R G

HOR BRI RRE R ZFHE TR ITEIF RBITFEERHA
#HTEE, ABITENEARFTERFR. EREFNEN. 7
TEANR., RIFRE. ENFAEESERE. BHXERRRRLE
ZEAABRERINRIE, MRRENTEHFE. B THELENT
FREMTEN, EREJAEAERIHTEESN, MHBKF
P BRI Mbe B R AR IR S S SN A ERASRITEM M.

ZHMFERARE

SRRV ESEHESAHRARKLHR A ZEXESFTIHERE, XHX
FERARRHAETHEHREMLES, RTNZHYFERNE
MitESB LT TMMEM ERMBERKRZE (PFE) MIMINEF
(add-on) , BENKZEERFRNXHHFEHANKERE LRH
i, WATING / FTERZHHRFRLEABAEEE,

SNEL PTAERINESRAR HRNE R BT SITEREHRSTE
TAth= (DA) EHWUSTERTETHEMITE MXH LW
W(NARMI BEIZER, BERRHATAERESAEHNDUFHE
EARFERRTENR S, NfERTH R AREEIRE, H1T
Ry TEEMFAERMNE (Wrong Way Risk) BIBUR, INEER
ZXFHERHAREEARG 2IIERXRAIER.

Lo, FTERR BT PRGN FHHITEE, HAETEE
RTBEZHAHEENSARIESFABRH—SRIOIFHFAN
EREHA,

¥ ) #5075 (hE AT 202 FERE
R KR (RE) HRAT 202 EEH

Credit Risk Policies and Processes

We have established credit policies and processes to manage credit risk in
the following key areas:

Credit Approval Process

Credit origination and approval functions are segregated to maintain
the independence and integrity of the credit approval process. Credit
approval authority is delegated to officers based on their experience,
seniority and track record. All credit approval officers are guided by credit
policies and credit acceptance guidelines which are reviewed periodically
to ensure their continued relevance to the Bank's business strategy and
the business environment.

Internal Rating System

The Bank employs internal rating models to support the assessment of
credit risk and the assignment of exposures to rating grades or pools.
Internal ratings are used pervasively by the Bank in the areas of credit
approval, credit review and monitoring, credit stress-testing, limits
setting, pricing and collections. The credit risk models are independently
validated before they are implemented to ensure they are fit for purpose.
The robustness of these rating models is monitored on an ongoing basis,
and all models are subject to annual reviews conducted by model owners
to ascertain that the chosen risk factors and assumptions continue to
remain relevant for the respective portfolios.

Counterparty Credit Risk

Unlike normal lending risk where the notional amount at risk can be
determined with a high degree of certainty during the contractual period,
counterparty credit risk exposure fluctuates with market variables.
Counterparty credit risk is measured as the sum of current mark-to-market
value and an appropriate add-on factor for potential future exposure (PFE).
The PFE factor is an estimate of the maximum credit exposure over the
remaining life of the foreign exchange (FX) / derivative transaction and is
used for limit-setting and internal risk management.

Exposures arising from FX, derivatives and securities financing transactions
are typically mitigated through agreements such as the International
Swaps and Derivatives Association (ISDA) Master Agreements, and the
National Association of Financial Market Institutional Investors (NAFMII)
Agreement. Such agreements help to minimise credit exposure by allowing
us to offset what we owe to counterparty against what is due from that
counterparty in the event of a default. We have also established policies
and processes to manage wrong-way risk, i.e. where the counterparty
credit exposure is positively correlated with its default risk.

In addition, derivative transactions are cleared through Central
Counterparties, where possible, to reduce counterparty credit exposure
further through multilateral netting and the daily margining process.
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Credit Concentration Risk

Credit concentration risk may arise from a single large exposure or from
multiple exposures that are closely correlated. We manage such risks by
setting exposure limits on borrowers, obligor groups, portfolios, industries
and countries, generally expressed as a percentage of the Bank's eligible
capital base. We manage our credit risk exposures through a robust credit
underwriting, structuring and monitoring process. While we proactively
minimise undue concentration of exposure in our portfolio, our credit
portfolio remains concentrated in China.

Credit Stress Test

Credit stress-testing is a core component of our credit portfolio
management process. We conduct stress tests to assess if our capital can
withstand credit portfolio losses resulting from stress scenarios, and their
impact on our profitability and balance sheet quality. Stress tests also help
us to identify the vulnerability of various business units and enable us to
formulate appropriate mitigating measures.

Our internal stress test scenarios consider potential and plausible
macroeconomic and geopolitical events in varying degrees of likelihood
and severity. These are developed in consultation with relevant business
units and approved by senior management committees.

Credit Risk Mitigation

Our potential credit losses are mitigated through a variety of instruments
such as collateral, derivatives, guarantees and netting arrangements. The
Bank would generally not grant credit facilities solely on the basis of the
collateral provided. All requests for credit facilities are assessed based on
the credit standing, source of repayment and debt servicing ability of the
borrower.

The Bank takes collateral whenever possible to mitigate the credit risk
assumed. The value of the collateral is monitored periodically and the
frequency of valuation depends on the type, liquidity and volatility of
the collateral value. The collaterals are mostly in the form of properties.
Cash, marketable securities, equipment, inventories and receivables may
also be accepted. We have policies and processes to monitor collateral
concentration. Haircuts that reflect the underlying nature, quality,
volatility and liquidity of the collaterals would be applied to the market
value of collaterals as appropriate.

When extending credit facilities to small- and medium-sized enterprises
(SMEs), we often take personal guarantees to secure the moral
commitment from the principal shareholders and directors. Corporate
guarantees are often obtained when the borrower's creditworthiness is
not sufficient to justify an extension of credit.
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Credit Monitoring and Remedial Management

We regularly monitor credit exposures, portfolio performance and
emerging risks that may impact our credit risk profile. The Board and senior
management are updated on credit trends through internal risk reports.
An early alert process has also been put in place whereby vulnerable
accounts are escalated by the business units to senior management for
discussion on account strategy and remedial actions.

Delinquency Monitoring

We closely monitor the delinquency of borrowing accounts, a key
indicator of credit quality. An account is considered delinquent when
payment has not received by the payment due date. All delinquent
accounts, including revolving credit facilities with limit excesses, are
closely monitored and managed through a disciplined process by officers
from business units and risk management function. Where appropriate,
such accounts are also subject to more frequent credit reviews.

Classification, Provisioning and Write-Off

We classify our credit portfolios according to the borrower's ability to
repay the credit facilities from their normal source of income. There is an
independent credit review process to ensure the appropriateness of loan
grading and provisioning.

All borrowing accounts are categorised into 'Pass, 'Special Mention' or
'Non-performing’ 'Non-performing' or impaired accounts are further sub-
divided into 'Substandard’, 'Doubtful’ or 'Loss' in accordance with the
guidelines of CBIRC. Any account which is delinquent (or in excess of
the approval limit for a revolving credit facility) for more than 90 days
will automatically be categorised automatically as 'Non-performing'.
In addition, any account that exhibits weaknesses which are likely to
adversely affect repayment on existing terms may be categorised as 'Non-
performing'. The accounting definition of impaired and the regulatory
definition of default are generally aligned.

Upgrading and de-classification of a 'Non-performing' account to 'Pass’ or
'Special Mention' status must be supported by a credit assessment of the
repayment capability, cash flows and financial position of the borrower.
We must also be satisfied that once the account is de-classified, the
account is unlikely to be classified again in the near future.

A credit facility is restructured when a bank grants concessions (usually
non-commercial) to a borrower because of a deterioration in the financial
position of the borrower or the inability of the borrower to meet the
original repayment schedule.

A restructured account is categorised as ‘Non-performing' and placed on
the appropriate classified grade based on our assessment of the financial
condition of the borrower and the ability of the borrower to repay under
the restructured terms.
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Loans by Classification
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Loan loss provision is made in line with the Banks impairment policy and CBIRC
guidelines after careful consideration of the future recovery value including
liquidation of collateral of the non-performing account. A non-performing
account is written off when the prospect of a recovery is considered poor or
when all feasible avenues of recovery have been exhausted.

Special Asset Management

Special Asset Management are in place with independent units that
respectively manage the restructuring, workout and recovery of Bank's
corporate and retail mortgage non-performing portfolios. The primary
objectives are to nurse non-performing accounts back to financial health
whenever possible for transfer back to business unit for management; and
to maximise recovery of such accounts that the Bank intends to exit.

AR® (BAT)
Outstanding (RMB'm)

39,623 99.26%
168 0.42%
25 0.06%

50 0.13%

51 0.13%
39917 100%

(For "Loans by Industry Distribution and by Geographical Region! please refer to relevant note of the audited financial report.,)

20201 EF iR, ARBERBITARM 1258 127T, A2 HLLHI 0 0.32%,
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As at 31 December 2021, total non-performing loans amounted to
RMB125.8 million, representing 0.32 per cent of the Bank's total loans
portfolio. Non-performing loan coverage ratio was 796.3 per cent and
provision-to-loan ratio was 2.5 per cent, above the regulatory minimum
requirement of 120.0 per cent and 1.5 per cent respectively.
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MARKET RISK

Market risk refers to the risk of loss from movements in the market
rates or prices (such as changes in interest rates, FX rates, equity prices,
commodity prices and credit spreads) of the underlying asset.

Market risk is governed by the ALCO, which meets monthly to review and
provide directions on market risk matters. The Market Risk Management
and Product Control (MRPC) and Balance Sheet Risk Management (BSRM)
Divisions support the BRMC, RCC and ALCO with independent assessment
of the market risk profile of the Bank.

The Bank's market risk framework comprises market risk policies, practices,
and the control structure with appropriate delegation of authority and
market risk limits. We employ valuation methodologies that are in line
with sound market practices and validate valuation and risk models
independently. In addition, the Product/Service Programme process
ensures that different risks, including market risk issues, are identified and
adequately addressed prior to launch.

One of our main objectives in undertaking trading activities is to provide
customer-centric products and services to support our customers'
business and hedging needs. We continually review and enhance our
management of derivatives risks to ensure that the complexities of the
Bank's business are appropriately controlled.

Our overall market risk appetite is balanced with targeted revenue at the
Bank and business unit levels and takes into account the capital position
of the Bank. This ensures that the Bank remains well-capitalised, even
under stress conditions. The risk appetite is translated into risk limits that
are delegated to business units. These risk limits have proportional returns
that are commensurate with the risks taken.

Market risk appetite is provided for all trading exposure within the Bank
and the Bank's non-trading FX exposures. The Bank is mainly exposed to
market risk in its trading portfolios that arises from changes in interest
rates, FX rates and commodity prices from the Bank's client-driven market
making and product structuring activities as well as trading activities.

The Bank currently adopts the Standardised Approach for the calculation
of regulatory market risk capital.

The Internal Models Approach is used to measure and to control trading
market risks. The Bank estimates a daily Expected Shortfall (ES) within a
97.5 per cent confidence interval over a one-day holding period, using the
historical VaR simulation method, as a control for market risk. This method
assumes observed historical market movements can be used to imply possible
future changes in market rates. ES is the average of the worst losses in the
distribution, assuming that the losses exceed the specified percentile.

To complement the ES measure, we perform stress and scenario tests to
identify the Bank's vulnerability to event risk. These tests serve to provide

early warnings of plausible extreme losses.

The Bank's daily ES on 31 December 2021 was RMB13.03 million.
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For back testing purpose, the Bank uses daily VaR within a 99 per cent
confidence interval over a one-day holding period. VaR uses the same
loss distribution as ES. The backtesting process analyses whether
the exceptions are due to model deficiencies or market volatility. All
backtesting exceptions are tabled to ALCO with recommended actions
and resolutions.
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INTEREST RATE RISK IN THE BANKING BOOK

Interest rate risk in the banking book (IRRBB) is defined as the risk of
potential loss of capital or reduction in earnings due to changes in the
interest rates environment.

In the course of our core banking activities, the bank strives to meet
customers' demands and preferences for products with various interest
rate structures and maturities. Mismatches in repricing and other
characteristics of assets and liabilities give rise to sensitivity to interest
rate movements. As interest rates and yield curves change over time, these
mismatches may result in a change in the bank's economic net worth and/
or a decline in earnings. Our primary objective of managing IRRBB is to
protect and to enhance capital or economic net worth through adequate,
stable and reliable growth in net interest earnings under a broad range of
possible economic conditions.

The ALCO maintains oversight of the effectiveness of the interest rate risk
management structure including approval of policies, controls and limits.
The BSRM Division supports the ALCO in monitoring the interest rate risk
profile of the banking book. Behavioural models used are independently
validated and governed by approved policy. Management and mitigation
of IRRBB through hedging instruments and activities are governed by
the Bank's IRRBB policies which are subject to regular review. Monitoring
of positions against mandates, limits and triggers approved by relevant
committees and delegated to relevant business units provide alerts for
timely discussions to control potential risks.

The Bank's banking book interest rate risk exposure is quantified on a
monthly basis using dynamic simulation techniques. The Bank employs
a holistic approach towards balance sheet risk management, using an in-
house enterprise risk management system to integrate liquidity risk and
IRRBB into a single platform for the Bank's reporting in a timely manner.

Interest rate risk varies with different repricing periods, currencies and
embedded options and interest rate basis. Embedded options may be in the
form of loan prepayment and time deposit early withdrawal. In Economic
Value of Equity (EVE) sensitivity simulations, we compute the present
value for repricing cash flows, with the focus on changes in EVE under
different interest rate scenarios. This economic perspective measures
interest rate risks across the full maturity profile of the balance sheet,
including off-balance sheet items. We estimate the potential effects
of interest rate changes on Net Interest Income (NII) by simulating the
possible future course of interest rates and expected changes in business
activities over time. Mismatches in the longer tenor will experience
greater change in EVE than similar positions in the shorter tenor while
mismatches in the shorter tenor will have a greater impact on NiII. Interest
rate scenarios used in simulations include the six standard scenarios
prescribed by Basel including positive and negative tilt scenarios.

We also perform stress tests regularly to determine the adequacy of
capital in meeting the impact of extreme interest rate movements on the
balance sheet. Such tests are also performed to provide early warnings
of potential extreme losses, facilitating the proactive management of
interest rate risks in an environment of rapid financial market changes.

The risks arising from the trading book, such as interest rates, FX rates
and equity prices are managed and controlled under the market risk
framework.
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LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk that arises from our inability to meet its obligations
or fund increases in assets as they fall due. We maintain sufficient liquidity
to fund our day-to-day operations, to meet deposit withdrawals and loan
disbursements, to participate in new investments and to repay borrowings.
Hence, liquidity is managed in a manner that addresses known as well as
unanticipated cash funding needs.

Liquidity risk is managed in accordance with a framework of policies,
controls and limits approved by the ALCO. These policies, controls and
limits enable us to monitor and to manage liquidity risk to ensure that
sufficient sources of funds are available over a range of market conditions.
This is done by:

» minimising excessive funding concentrations by diversifying the sources

and terms of funding, and
» maintaining a portfolio of high quality and marketable debt securities.

We take a conservative stance in the Bank's liquidity management by
continuing to gather core deposits, ensuring that liquidity limits are
strictly adhered to and that there are adequate liquid assets to meet
potential cash shortfall.

The distribution of deposits is actively managed to ensure a balance
between cost-effectiveness, continued accessibility to funds and
diversification of funding sources. Important factors in ensuring liquidity
are competitive pricing, proactive management of the Bank's core deposits
and the maintenance of customer confidence.

Our liquidity risk is aligned with the regulatory liquidity risk management
framework and is measured and managed on a projected cash flow basis.
The bank is monitored under business-as-usual and stress scenarios. Cash
flow mismatch limits are established to limit the bank's liquidity exposure.
We also employ liquidity early warning indicators and trigger points
to signal possible contingency situations. Our Liquidity Ratio (LR), High
Quality Liquid Asset Adequacy Ratio (HQLAAR) and Liquidity Matching
Ratio (LMR) are above the regulatory requirements.

We have contingency funding plans in place to identify potential liquidity
crises using a series of warning indicators. Crisis management processes
and various strategies including funding and communication plans have
been developed to minimise the impact of any liquidity crunch.

We have established a Liability Quality Management Framework for the
effective management and monitoring of its liability. The purpose of the
framework is to ensure that the bank achieves profitability, sufficient liquidity
and safe operating of business. Based on our business strategy, risk appetite
and business' characteristics, we manage our liabilities with consideration of
multiple factors including cost, liability structure and the source of liability.
The board undertakes the responsibility of the liability quality management
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and the management carries out the liability management activities. We
manage the stability, diversity and, structure of the liability by monitoring and
managing a series of ratios, including but not limited to Core Liability Ratio,
Deposit Deviation, Inter-bank Funding Ratio, Top Ten Depositors, High Quality
Liquid Asset Adequacy Ratio (HQLAAR), Liquidity Matching Ratio (LMR),
Liquidity Gap, Liquidity Ratio for major currencies, Net Interest Margin (NIM),
and Economic Value of Equity (EVE). Several ratios are imposed with internal
limits for management purpose. We ensure that our liabilities are legitimate
and authentic. The bank has a fair and comprehensive FTP mechanism to
determine its liabilities cost. Furthermore, business units will proactively
improve funding capability and capacity so as to meet our business and
management needs. We will execute assessment on market funding capacity
under stressed scenarios to make sure the bank still has the capacity to fund
at a fair level when encountering Unfavourable situation in the market.

OPERATIONAL RISK

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal
processes, people and systems, or from external events. Operational risk
includes banking operations risk, technology risk, regulatory compliance risk,
legal risk, reputational risk, outsourcing risk, third party non-outsourcing risk
and fraud risk but excludes strategic and business risk.

Our primary objective is to foster a sound reputation and operating
environment. Operational risk is managed through a framework of policies
and procedures to help business and support units properly identify, assess,
monitor, mitigate and report their risks. The ORMC meets monthly to provide
oversight of operational risk matters in the bank.

The Operational Risk Governance structure adopts the three Lines model. The
Operational Risk Management Division, as part of the Second line, provides
overarching governance of operational risk through relevant frameworks,
policies, programmes and systems. It also monitors key risk and control self-
assessment results, outsourcing and third party non-outsourcing matters,
key operational risk indicator breaches, self-identified operational risks and
incidents, product and service programme matters and reports these to the
relevant senior management committees and the Board.

Two key components of the operational risk management framework are risk
identification and control self-assessments. These are achieved through the
Bank-wide implementation of a set of operational risk programmes. Several
risk mitigation policies and programmes are also in place to maintain a sound
operating environment.

Our business continuity and crisis management programmes ensure prompt
recovery of critical business and support units should there be unforeseen
events. An annual attestation is provided to the Board on the current state of
business continuity readiness of the Bank.
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Our insurance programme covers crime and civil liability, cyber liability,
property damage, terrorism, public liability, as well as directors' and officers
liability. The programme reduces operational losses through adequate
insurance coverage.

We adopt the Basic Indicator Approach for the calculation of Operational
Risk Capital.

The subject-specific key risks that we focus on include but are not limited to:
Technology Risk

Technology risk is defined as any potential adverse outcome, damage,
loss, violation, failure or disruption arising from the use of or reliance on
information and communication technologies. The governance of technology
risk rests with the ORMC, who facilitates a holistic oversight of operational
risk matters across the Bank. Our technology risk management framework
ensures that technology and cyber risks are managed in a systematic and
consistent manner. The scope of technology risk management covers many
aspects, including technology asset management, technology resiliency
and the service continuity aspects of business continuity management,
cybersecurity management and information security management.

Our Technology Risk Management Division, as part of the Second Line,
has governance and oversight of technology risk management across the
Bank. The team works closely with business and support units, including
the technology and information security teams, to oversee, to review and
to strengthen their current practices in technology risk management. We
adopt a risk-based approach in assessing and managing technology and cyber
risks. Our Board, senior management and ORMC are briefed regularly on
technology risk appetite and technology risk matters.

Regulatory Compliance Risk

Regulatory compliance risk refers to the risk of regulatory sanctions, financial
loss, or damage to the Bank's reputation and franchise value that may arise
when the Bank fails to comply with laws, regulations, rules, standards or UOB
China Codes of Conduct applicable to the bank's business activities and
operations, or the risk that a change in laws and regulations can increase the
cost of operation and the cost of capital for the Bank thereby impacting the
Bank's earnings or returns. We identify, monitor and manage this risk through
the Regulatory Compliance Risk Governance framework supported with
policies, procedures and guidelines. The framework also covers anti-money
laundering and countering the financing of terrorism.

Legal Risk

Legal risk arises from unenforceable, unfavourable, defective or unintended
contracts, lawsuits or claims, developments in laws and regulations, or non-
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. Business and support units
work with both internal and external legal counsel to ensure that legal risks
are effectively managed.
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Reputational Risk

Reputational risk is the risk of adverse impact on earnings, liquidity or capital
arising from negative stakeholder perception or opinion of the Bank's business
practices, activities and financial condition. We recognise the impact of
reputational risk and manage the risk through the Bank's Reputational Risk
Management Policy.

Outsourcing Risk

Outsourcing risk is the risk of adverse financial, operational, and reputational,
legal and compliance impact arising from the failure of a service provider
to provide the outsourced service or to comply with legal and regulatory
requirements, or a service provider's breaches of security. We manage this
risk through the Bank's Outsourcing Risk Management Framework, policies,
procedures and guidelines, supported by the outsourcing module in the
Governance, Risk and Compliance (GRC) system.

Third Party Non-Outsourcing Risk

Third party non-outsourcing risk arises from arrangements where a third
party provides a product or service to UOB China or UOB Chinas customers.
This risk could result in adverse financial, operational, reputational, legal and
compliance impacts arising from the failure of a third party to provide the
product or service, or the third party's breaches of security, including data
leakages. We manage this risk through the Third Party Non-Outsourcing Risk
Management Policy and Guidelines, supported by the GRC system.

Fraud Risk

Fraud is defined as an act, with an element to deceive or to conceal facts; and
is not restricted to the gain of monetary or material benefits.

We manage fraud risks actively. The corporate governance oversight of fraud
risk is provided by the BRMC at the Board level and primarily by the ORMC
at the senior management level, supported by Anti-Fraud Working Groups
set up in headquarters and branches. Our Integrated Fraud Management
(IFM) Division, as part of the Second Line, drives strategy and governance
and oversees the framework and policy of fraud risk management across
the country, which covers Anti-Fraud tasks in accordance with regulatory
requirements as well.

All employees are required to comply with the UOB China Code of Conduct,
which has anti-bribery and anti-corruption provisions. The UOB China’s fraud
hotline managed by IFM provides a safe channel to report suspected fraud.
IFM conducts independent fraud investigations. The division also works
closely with business and support units to strengthen its practices across the
five pillars of prevention, detection, response, remediation and reporting.
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ENVIRONMENTAL SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE RISK

ESG risk is the risk of credit loss or non-financial risks arising from ESG
issues. While a key component of ESG risk arises indirectly from the
financial services we provide to our customers, it can also result directly
from our own operations. ESG governance and control process are put in
place to identify and review ESG factors material to the Bank, and ensures
that sustainability factors are considered in aspects of our operations
(including day-to-day decision-making processes). The specific risk
associated with each factor is monitored and managed in accordance with
the respective framework, policy or guidelines.

Specific to our wholesale financing and debt capital market activities,
the Bank ensure that ESG considerations are integrated into the credit
evaluation and approval processes. To this end, we have incorporated our
Responsible Financing Policy (approved by the RCC) a part of the Bank's
Corporate Credit Policy.

Under our Responsible Financing Policy, account officers are required to
conduct due diligence on all new and existing customers during the client
onboarding process and annual credit review. Customers are assessed for
material ESG risk, including alignment with the Bank's responsible financing
exclusion list, as well as their capacity for, commitment to and track
record in ESG risk management. Customers in the ESG-sensitive industries
per responsible financing guidelines are subject to enhanced due diligence
with sector-specific guidelines. All customers are classified based on the
level of ESG risk in their business and are monitored on an ongoing basis
for any adverse ESG-related news. Those with any known material ESG-
related incidents would trigger an immediate review to address the ESG
risks appropriately.

STRATEGIC AND BUSINESS RISK

Strategic risk refers to the current or prospective negative impact on
earnings, capital or reputation arising from adverse strategic decisions,
improper implementation of decisions or a lack of responsiveness to
industry, economic or technological changes. It is the risk of not achieving
the Bank's strategic goals.

Business risk refers to the adverse impact on earnings or capital arising
from changes in business parameters such as volumes, margins and costs.
The sources of business risk include uncompetitive products or pricing,
internal inefficiencies, and changes in general business conditions such as
market contraction or changes in customers' expectations and demand. It
is the risk of not achieving the Bank's short-term business objectives.

The Board of Directors and senior management committees are
responsible for managing risks associated with the Bank's business. The
Executive Committee assist the Board in relation to the management of
strategic and business risks. The CEO, supported by senior management
committees oversee the day-to-day management of the Bank and make
business decisions within the Bank's risk appetite. The Bank's strategy
is then translated into annual financial targets, taking into account the
macroeconomic environment, and cascaded to specific business for
development and implementation.
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(1) Shareholder Status Update

Name of Shareholder: United Overseas Bank Limited

Percentage of shares held: 100 per cent.

(2) During the reporting period, there were no split
or merger activities or other major corporate
developments during the reporting period.

(3) None of the Bank's directors, supervisors or top
management was penalised by the regulatory
authorities during the reporting period.

(4) Highlights during the reporting period:

* In November 2021, Beijing Branch was relocated.

e On 31 December 2021, China Banking and Insurance Regulatory
Committee Shanghai Office approved UOB China to increase registered
capital from RMB5.5 billion to RMB7.5 billion
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Head Office

No 116, 128 Yincheng Road,
Pudong New Area,

Shanghai 200120

Tel: (86) (21) 6061 8888

Fax: (86) (21) 6886 0908

SWIFT: UOVBCNSH

Website: www.uobchina.com.cn

Shanghai Branch

Room 102,

No 116, 128 Yincheng Road,
Pudong New Area,
Shanghai 200120

Tel: (86) (21) 6061 8288

Fax: (86) (21) 6886 1113

Jing'An Sub-branch
(Shanghai)

Room 1P01-02, 201-203,
United Plaza,

1468 Nanjing Road West,
Jing'An District,
Shanghai 200040

Tel: (86) (21) 6080 9366
Fax: (86) (21) 6289 1001

Xujiahui Sub-branch (Shanghai)
Unit 01-03, 30 Floor,

Grand Gateway Tower 1,
1Honggiao Road,

Xuhui District,

Shanghai 200030

Tel: (86) (21) 6091 5788

Fax: (86) (21) 6323 3015

Shanghai Pilot Free Trade Zone
Sub-branch

(Wholesale Banking Only)
Room 602, 6 Floor,

No 116, 128 Yincheng Road,
Shanghai Pilot Free Trade Zone,
Shanghai 200120

Tel: (86) (21) 6061 8176

Fax: (86) (21) 6886 0906
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Branch Network

Beijing Branch

Unit 2701, 2707, 2708, 2709, 27 Floor
Tower C Office Park,

No. 5 Jing Hua South Street,
Chaoyang District,

Beijing 100020

Tel: (86) (10) 5879 2626

Fax: (86) (10) 8590 6725

Chengdu Branch

Unit 8, 9,10, 21 Floor,

Office Tower 1, Chengdu IFS,
No 1Section 3 Hongxing Road,
Jinjiang District,

Chengdu 610021

Tel: (86) (28) 6879 2888

Fax: (86) (28) 8653 1878

Kunming Branch
(Wholesale Banking Only)
Unit 2105 and 2106, 21 Floor,
East Tower, MASTER,

No 1 Chongren Street,
Wuhua District,

Kunming 650000

Tel: (86) (871) 6555 0777

Fax: (86) (871) 6361 6191

Guangzhou Branch
(Wholesale Banking Only)
Suite 3801, Taikoo Hui Tower 1
385 Tianhe Road,

Tianhe District,

Guangzhou 510620

Tel: (86) (20) 28813688

Fax: (86) (20) 8755 8830

Shenyang Branch

Unit 06/07, 21 Floor,
Fortune Plaza Tower A,
No 61, Beizhan Road,
Shenhe District,
Shenyang 110013

Tel: (86) (24) 3121 2168
Fax: (86) (24) 3116 2078
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Shenzhen Branch
(Wholesale Banking Only)
Unit 6001-03, Tower A,
KingKey 100,

No 5016 Shennan Road East,
Luohu District,

Shenzhen 518001

Tel: (86) (755) 2294 5688

Fax: (86) (755) 8246 3326

Xiamen Branch
1-2 Floor,

United Overseas Bank Building,

No 19 North Hubin Road,
Xiamen 361012

Tel: (86) (592) 508 1601
Fax: (86) (592) 508 1605

Tianjin Branch

Unit 2-1-2207, 2208 and 2209,
RongHui Plaza,

Changjiang Road,

Nankai District,

Tianjin 300100

Tel: (86) (22) 8701 7070

Fax: (86) (22) 873 80500

Hangzhou Branch

Room 201 and 203,

Skyline Plaza,

No 181 Tian Mu Shan Road,
Xihu District,

Hangzhou 310013

Tel: (86) (571) 2809 0666
Fax: (86) (571) 8190 9619
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Chongging Branch

Unit A, 31 Floor

HNA-POLY International Centre,
No 235 Min Sheng Road,
Yuzhong District,

Chongging 400010

Tel: (86) (23) 6037 2888

Fax: (86) (23) 6037 2788

Suzhou Branch
(Wholesale Banking Only)
Unit 1801, Tower 1,
Jinghope Square,

No 88 Huachi Street,
Suzhou Industrial Park,
Suzhou 215000

Tel: (86) (512) 6298 5200
Fax: (86) (512) 8686 2006

Zhongshan Branch

(Wholesale Banking Only)
Unit 1,2 and 12, 37 Floor,

Zhisan International Financial Centre,
No 16 Zhongshan San Road,
Zhongshan 528400

Tel: (86) (760) 8770 7666

Fax: (86) (760) 8989 2900

KIERTT (PE ) BRAE
2021412 A31H
United Overseas Bank (China) Limited
31 December 2021
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United Overseas Bank (China) Limited

To the Board of Directors of United Overseas Bank (China) Limited:
(1) Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of United
Overseas Bank (China) Limited (hereinafter referred to as "the Bank"),
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2021, the income
statement, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash

flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in
all material respects, United Overseas Bank (China) Limited's financial
position as at 31 December 2021 and United Overseas Bank (China)
Limited's financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in

accordance with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises (‘ASBEs").

(11) Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with China Standards on Auditing
("CSAs"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of United Overseas Bank
(China) Limited in accordance with China Code of Ethics for Certified
Public Accountants (the "Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our opinion.

(111) Responsibilities of the management and those charged
with governance for the financial statements

The management of United Overseas Bank (China) Limited is responsible
for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with ASBEs, and for designing, implementing and maintaining
such internal control as the management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the management is responsible for
assessing United Overseas Bank (China) Limited's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting, unless the management
either intends to liquidate United Overseas Bank (China) Limited or to

cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing United

Overseas Bank (China) Limited's financial reporting process.

(IV) Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with CSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are generally considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with CSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

(1) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

override of internal control.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021 9] ml‘
s



(2)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made

by the management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the management's use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on United Overseas
Bank (China) Limited's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to

draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in

Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP, Shanghai Branch

Shanghai  China

KERIT (PE) HRATF 2021 FERE

the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause United Overseas Bank (China) Limited

to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation including the disclosures, structure
and content of the financial statements, and whether the financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a

manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among

other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that

we identify during our audit.

Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Zhou, Mingjun

Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Huang, Beiyi

25 March 2022

HrERmER

Balance Sheet

2021 .12 B 31 B 31 December 2021
(BRHFALEIAS, SMALIIIARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

fHE+

Notes 7 31-12-2021 31-12-2020
B, ASSETS:
N4 R IFH P RBITERIN Cash and deposit with the Central Bank 1 6,204,494,006 4,693,593,314
=2 Precious metals 1,285,539,961 1,564,487,585
TFHE k3R Due from banks and other financial institutions 2 3,544,261,854 3,680,713,165
HE#ES Placements with banks and other financial institutions 3 8,608,835,079 6,667,892,648
T HHERAR~ Financial assets held-for-trading 4 2,197,434,189 1,525,241,844
TTHESRAS Derivative financial assets 5 4,541,743,724 11,567,136,341
FENIRESFAR~ Reverse repurchase financial assets 6 1,432,434,176 2,273,636,714
RGN TN =R Loans and advances to customers 7 39,160,105,030 36,186,036,127
HMFEIUEE Other debt instrument at fair value through other 8 10,436,771,937 11,029,276,744

comprehensive income

& & & = Fixed assets 9 32,862,776 29,929,546
fERNAE > Right-of-use assets 10 74,878,636 122,074,703
TR~ Intangible assets 17 73,046,606 81,570,414
BIEFFEREAS Deferred tax assets 12 145,986,701 202,938,571
Hihw >~ Other assets 13 481,724,649 863,014,874
KBt TOTAL ASSETS 78,220,119,324 80,487,542,590
fl&: LIABILITIES:
[& b X H fth & B A9 T R I Due to banks and other financial institutions 14 1,946,271,700 1,624,596,625
FANRE Placements from banks and other financial institutions 15 12,014,965,224 16,592,129,932
MR TR Financial liabilities held-for-trading 16 6,899,748,675 3,644,232,118
PrESRRGR Derivative financial liabilities 5 4,303,446,588 11,611,363,625
S B4R R K Repurchase agreements 17 1,190,494,609 466,069,704
g Customer deposits 18 41,712,748,009 36,463,148,695
R fTER T 37 B Payroll payables 19 155,636,635 104,044,398
N AT Tax payables 20 71,696,037 136,876,941
NAHES Debt securities issued 21 1,720,431,429 2,037,710,703
itk Provisions 22 46,111,016 50,061,234
MERE Lease liabilities 23 73,207,755 118,432,977
Hib R Other liabilities 24 629,606,260 583,203,499
At TOTAL LIABILITIES 70,764,363,937 73,431,870,451
A& : EQUITY:
SLUEAR Paid-up capital 25 5,500,000,000 5,500,000,000
AABTR Capital reserve 26 18,674,334 17,337,049
Hihr AR Other comprehensive income 27 68,035,109 2,191,618
BHENR Surplus reserves 28 171,675,736 138,385,488
— X A% General reserves 29 878,275,849 849,267,920
A BECFE Retained earnings 30 819,094,359 548,490,064
FrEEPEAIT TOTAL EQUITY 7,455,755,387 7,055,672,139
MEEEENE 2T TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 78,220,119,324 80,487,542,590

[ BRI 55 HR AR M A AR SRR AVA AR

The accompanying notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.

AU SREBANTALESR:

The financial statements have been signed by:

TRRERHTE. EF 0%

President and CEO, Director: Peter Foo Moo Tan

EEMEE R
CFO: Brian Zhu Xuan
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FligR
Income Statement

2021 £ & For the year ended 31 December 2021
(BR45HIERASN, MBI ARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

MHE£
Notes 7 2021 2020

—. Bl 1. OPERATING INCOME

IS ON Interest income 31 2,092,226,597 2,155,342,775

FI X H Interest expense 31 (980,943,356) (1,163,722,814)

Fil 2N Net interest income 31 1,111,283,241 991,619,961

FHERASHRAN Fee and commission income 32 212,060,158 193,384,515

FEHEHBEREEIH Fee and commission expense 32 (47,999,761) (50,505,904)

FEERAESEBAN Net fee and commission income 32 164,060,397 142,878,611

fdalle Investment income 33 41,163,804 180,581,914

ANRNMETENEIRES Gain/(loss) from changes in fair value 34 148,369,007 (7,351,276)

LR Foreign exchange gain/(loss) 35 130,196,787 122,388,518

R B S Gain or loss on disposal of assets 151,917 42,729

Hblbzs Other income 36 2,316,243 3,434,635

EVBAET TOTAL OPERATING INCOME 1,597,541,396 1,433,595,092
=, Bl 2. OPERATING EXPENSES

& R Tax and surcharges (15,614,473) (14,702,798)

VEREEHE General and administrative expenses 37 (1,048,954,297) (1,037,781,074)

ERBERE Credit impairment losses 38 (132,363,908) (267,602,034)

EVvxHEEiT TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES (1,196,932,678) (1,320,085,906)
=, BlFE 3. OPERATING PROFIT 400,608,718 113,509,186

s B SN Add: Non-operating income 138,753 47,173

B BN Less: Non-operating expenses (2,326,955) (6,342,178)
M. BETHEsRgm 4. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 398,420,516 107,214,181

B FriERiEB Less: Income tax expense 39 (65,518,044) 1,517,169
. OEFE 5. NET PROFIT 332,902,472 108,731,350
N, B S ERE SR 6. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, NET OF TAX

A AN EITEBEEERITA Change in the fair value of debt investments at fair value 27 38,550,600 (40,777,351)

HAib AWK MHES TEIRHA through other comprehensive income

NRMEZE

AR METEBEHEEFITA Creditimpairment losses of debt investments at fair value 27 27,292,891 80,119

HbLZ AW SRS THIRA through other comprehensive Income

ERBRKAEE
+. FEWER 7. TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 398,745,963 68,034,118

R SRR A AN SRR B AR ED

The accompanying notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.

LSRR 04 ke (BE AT 202 R
R KR (RE) HRAT 202 EEH

FiREENZENR
Statement of Changes in Equity

2021 £ & For the year ended 31 December 2021
(BRHFALEIAS, SMALIIIARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

KA A RENR HMbGREE BRAR —RNEAE  RORFE ait
Paid-up Capital Other Surplus General Retained Total
capital reserve comprehensive reserves reserves earnings
income
REFHEE Opening balance 5,500,000,000 17,337,049 2,191,618 138,385,488 849,267,920 548,490,064 7,055,672,139
KEERB TSR Movements during the year - 1,337,285 65,843,491 33,290,248 29,007,929 270,604,295 400,083,248
(—) ZEWEBR (i) Total comprehensive income - - 65,843,491 - - 332,902,472 398745963
(Z) FrBEEBRAT (i) Injection of funds by and
BDRAR distribution of funds to the
investor - 1,337,285 - - - - 1,337,285
1 B AT AFRF B EHL 1. Share-based payment
Eadinlcrt.i - 1337285 - - - - 1337285
(=) FlESE (iii) Profit appropriation - - - 33,290,248 29,007929 (62,298]77) -
1LIRBRABRAR 1. Appropriation to surplus reserves - - - 33,290,248 - (33,290,248) -
2 IR — e A E 2. Appropriation to general
reserves - - - - 29,007929 (29,007929) -
KREFERFH Closing balance 5,500,000,000 18,674,334 68,035,109 171,675,736 878,275,849 819,094,359 7,455,755,387
2020 £ & For the year ended 31 December 2020
(BRHALERASN, SMBLIIHARTIT)
(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)
ENE7 N RANR HhGEWs BHEAR —RAKAEE  RORFUE &it
Paid-up Capital Other Surplus General Retained Total
capital reserve comprehensive reserves reserves earnings
income
KEFENEH Opening balance 5,500,000,000 14,562,830 42,388,850 127,512,353 816,675492 483224277  6984,863,802
RERBEH S Movements during the year - 2,774,219 (40,697,232) 10,873135 32,592,428 65,265,787 70,808,337
(—) ZEWELT (i) Total comprehensive income - - (40,697,232) - - 108,731,350 68,034,118
(Z) FrBEEBRAT (i) Injection of funds by and
BDRR distribution of funds to the
investor - 2,774,219 - - - - 2,774,219
1. B AT AT E A 1. Share-based payment
NS - 2,774,219 - - - - 2,774,219
(=) FENE (iii) Profit appropriation - - - 10,873,135 32,592,428 (43,465,563) -
1LIRRAB RN 1. Appropriation to surplus reserves - - - 10,873,135 - (10,873,135) -
2RI — RN A 2. Appropriation to general
reserves - - - - 32,592,428 (32,592,428) -
KREFERFH Closing balance 5,500,000,000 17,337,049 2,191,618 138,385,488 849,267,920 548,490,064 7,055,672,139

T B S5 AR AR BE AR I 55 HR R A ZE R AR 43

The accompanying notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.
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WERER
Statement of Cash Flows

2021 £ & For the year ended 31 December 2021
(BR45HIERASN, MBI ARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

ME£ T+
Notes 7 2021 2020 Notes 7 2021 2020
—. BEFRHTENMERE 1. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES . BRBESELE/(ER) IERE 2. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
TFER R AR TER IS R D B Net decrease in due from the Central Bank 674,300,706 725,142,086 I E R RIS Cash received from maturity of investments 5,222,486,000 20,970,000,000
TERE A ER T4 R D B Net decrease in due from banks and other financial institutions 22,320,169 40,114,677 BEHR AR EKE NS Cash received from investment income 427,972,164 310,357,786
RHRS 2R Net decrease in placements with banks and other financial 1,455,220,768 552,912,895 LEBBRER=MEMKIR~IE  Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets and other long term 255,133 734,193
institutions MILE assets
WU TFR B B E A £ 54477 Netincrease in customer deposits and due to banks and other 5,583,605,731 - BAEENR L RNNT Sub-total of cash inflows from investing activities 5,650,713,297 21,281,091,979
TRERII 4 1 nER financial institutions
BRAMXMNHIS Cash paid for investment 5,090,000,000 21,902,000,000
AR EFIBINE Net increase in placements from banks and other financial - 3,408,030,734 o P
institutions
MEEER=MEMKIR =R Cash paid for purchase of fixed assets and other long term 41,548,882 15,664,635
KWEBMNFE., FEHERBEEMIME  Cash received from interest, service fee and commission 2,074,655,244 2,193,047,747 HIE assets
s ) BRASDUS R H /T Sub-total of cash outflows from investing activities 5,131,548,882 21,917,664,635
HRPGENTHIFBENESRA~ 4 Net decrease in financial assets at fair value through profit or - 55,250,967
b loss BRSERN=E (MR ) IS 7E %4 Net cash flows from investing activities 519,164,415 (636,572,656)
KR E Mt 5REFNERNNE Cash received from other operating activities 634,448,579 204,972,026 = EXEHERANIETE 3. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
ZEFHWE KN Sub-total of cash inflows from operating activities 10,444,551,197 7,179,471,132 KTt REINRE Cash received from debt securities issuance 709,187,530 489,914,000
WU TFsR B B E b £ 54477 Net decrease in customer deposits and due to banks and - 1,861,816,239 FEFCEMMERNNT Sub-total of cash inflows from financing activities 709,187,530 489,914,000
TEOER T4 R, < B other financial institutions
EIRES L ANIS Cash repayments for debts 1,000,000,000 1,220,000,000
HWAREER VR Net decrease in placements from banks and other financial 636,276,831 -
institutions HERF . FLESEMFIEXMH  Cash payments for distribution of dividends or profit and 97,300,000 97,300,000
& interest expenses
KILER IR AR Net increase in loans and advances to customers 3,012,966,812 1,313,655,484
TRHMEEREFNEXNINS Cash paid to other financing activities 67,160,791 81,911,894
INNFE. FEERBELMHIME  Payments made for interest, service fee and commission 952,474,637 1,181,054,816
ERFHDUE RN Sub-total of cash outflows from financing activities 1,164,460,791 1,399,211,894
FMBBR TR NERT X AHHNE Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 648,216,975 694,113,692
EREDNEANIERE ST Net cash flows from financing activities (455,273,261) (909,297,894)
F A IR R Cash paid for all types of taxes 211,789,012 181,006,885
M CERTHNIWERMEENWA 4. EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND 79,490,697 62,428,079
IR ENTIFENERA~ Net increase in financial assets at fair value through profit or 743,690,638 - Al CASH EQUIVALENTS
I ANER loss
I, WERMEEMYEREGM/ 5. NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH 40 4,107,658,635 (387,950,299)
HARMEREENEENNS Cash paid for other operating activities 274,859,508 852,331,844 (R ) 8 EQUIVALENTS
L L 1 4 5 4 . i i
BEEHNE BT Sub-total of cash outflows from operating activities 6,480,274,413 6,083,978,960 s EREEAEENURM  Add: Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 10,580,136,973 10,968,087,272
N, ERMERNEENMRE 6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR 41 14,687,795,608 10,580,136,973
ZRERENTEMNINE RE ST Net cash flows from operating activities 40 3,964,276,784 1,095,492,172

\ TSI S5 AR AR BE AR Y 55 IR R A LB AR AR 43
TE WS SRR ME A &R R A A B The accompanying notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.
The accompanying notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.
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4 5+ R B E
Notes to Financial Statements

2021 £ & For the year ended 31 December 2021
(BR45HIERASN, MBI ARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

—. AFHEFRFER

RERT (FE) ARAS (MTER AL HRERT (F
H) ") RRAKXKERTERAS (UTEHRKERT) EhEA
RIEME LBT AL IRTRT,

SHERTREEEEEZRAS (MTHRRRKESR") T 2007 £
4 B 5 B, RERTER (TEARATESMARTEERGD) (X
TEARC (EEEHD) ") . (PEARKMEIINERITEERMIL
AU (T ER (SSEEN) ") EXNE, ELETER
HESMHFOIFTRART—RERT (TE) HRAF, ¥
BEPERANRERT LT, X217 RN T M7,
ENofr. MES T A TR LEHEXT (UTERRETE
XRTRXZT") AEAKRERT (PE) B9 N4,

AP FARRESEMEAMNERTETIE, NMBHBA:
BO308H231000001 5, #f L LE{THEEBZEME DI E
AEVHER, G—HEERRIBA: 913100006694147236, 7 fi it
ATE (LE) BEARSREXBHE 6 S, 28 SKERTKE
=R 1RO E (XFEE) . +=F (XE+ZE) . ThE

(KBF+=R) . +7E (EFE+mE) ( +tE (ERTEE) .
TR (EFE+RE) AR (RFE+ER) (21 E (KERETAR) .
EMBEADART 55127T,

RIEBAATDEVARNAE, ARDVEEHRATAEHR, A2
SEREMELHXREENMACERNSNC W SMARB LS, 2008 F
1R 2BARATERPERSTHILSIIRE,

HE20215E 2 B3 H, BELBRIWKAERT (TE) BRAT
BTN, RATBEELE. dbm. RYIL M. EiT. AR, SRk
KE M, BEX. HMN. BRAEFUESLT BRAMTEIRIZIT,

LSRR 08 kiR (E AT 202 R
R KR (PE) AT 202 £

1. Corporate Information

United Overseas Bank (China) Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as The Bank
or UOB (China)) is a wholly foreign-owned bank established in Shanghai,
People's Republic of China (PRC), by United Overseas Bank (UOB).

In accordance with the Regulation of the PRC on the Administration
of Foreign-funded Banks (the Regulation), and the Detailed Rules on
the Implementation of Regulation of the PRC on the Administration of
Foreign-funded Banks (the Implementation), China Banking and Insurance
Regulatory Committee (CBIRC) granted approval to UOB on 5 April 2007
to set up a wholly-owned subsidiary bank, UOB (China), in Shanghai
by converting its Shanghai Branch, Beijing Branch, Shenzhen Branch,
Guangzhou Branch, Xiamen Branch, Chengdu Branch, Shenyang Branch
and Jingan sub-branch (collectively known as the Former PRC Branches).

The Bank obtained the licence for conducting financial transaction from
the CBIRC (Institution Code: BO308H231000001), and obtained its business
licence (Uniform Social Credit Code: 913100006694147236) from Shanghai
Administration for Industry and Commerce. The registered address is Floor
3, Room 501 of Floor 5 (Actual Floor 4), Floor 13 (Actual Floor 12), Floor 15
(Actual Floor 13), Floor 16 (Actual Floor 14), Floor 17 (Actual Floor 15), Floor
18 (Actual Floor 16), Floor 19 (Actual Floor 17) and Floor 20 (Actual Floor
18), No 116 and 128 Yincheng Road, China (Shanghai) Pilot Free Trade Zone.
The registered capital of the Bank is RMB5.5 billion.

The Bank obtained its business licence issued with an unlimited operating
period. The main businesses of the Bank are Renminbi and foreign
currency businesses as approved by relevant regulatory authorities. The
date of business conversion from former PRC branches to UOB (China)
was on 2 January 2008.

As of 31 December 2021, besides the Head Office incorporated in Shanghai,
the Bank has set up 13 branches and three sub-branches respectively in
Shanghai, Beijing, Shenzhen, Guangzhou, Xiamen, Chengdu, Shenyang,
Tianjin, Hangzhou, Chongging, Suzhou, Kunming and Zhongshan.
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2. Preparation Basis of the Financial Statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises-Basic Standard and the
specific standards, the implementation guidance, interpretations and
other relevant provisions issued and revised subsequently by the Ministry
of Finance of PRC (MOF) (collectively referred to as "Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises”).

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
The Bank's financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis
under the historical cost as the basis of measurement, except for some

financial instruments. If the assets are impaired, corresponding provisions
should be recognised in accordance with relevant standards.

3. Compliance with the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in accordance
with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, and present fairly

and fully, the financial position of the Bank as of 31 December 2021 and
the financial performance and the cash flows for the year then ended.

4. Significant Accounting Policies and Estimates
(1) Accounting period

The accounting year of the Bank is from 1 January to 31 December of
each calendar year.

(2) Functional currency
The Bank's functional currency is Renminbi (RMB). These financial
statements are presented in RMB and all amounts are stated in RMB,

unless otherwise stated.

3

=

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits; cash equivalents
are short-term, highly liquid investments which are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash, and which are subject to insignificant risk
of changes in value.

Cash equivalents comprise non-statutory deposits due from Central
Bank, amounts due from banks and other financial institutions, reverse
repurchase agreements maturing within three months, and short-
term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, which have an original maturity date within three
months.
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Estimated useful lives

(4

5

) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the reporting
currency accordingly.

Foreign currency transactions are translated using the exchange rates
ruling at the transaction date. Subsequent to initial recognition,
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the applicable exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet
date. Exchange differences arising from the settlement of monetary
items or from translation of monetary items at balance sheet date
are recognised in the profit or loss. Non-monetary items measured at
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the initial transactions; Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates when the fair value is determined, the exchange
difference thus resulted is recognised in the profit or loss or other
comprehensive income of the current period.

Fixed assets

-

The fixed assets can be recognised only when the economic benefits
related to fixed assets are likely to flow into the Bank, and the cost of
fixed assets can be measured reliably. Subsequent expenditure can be
recognised as the cost of fixed assets when the recognition criteria set
above is met, and the replaced carrying amount shall be derecognised.
Otherwise, such expenditure is to be charged to the profit or loss in
the period when it is incurred.

Fixed assets are initially measured at cost. The cost of a purchased
fixed asset comprises the purchase price, relevant taxes and any
directly attributable expenditure for bringing the asset to working
condition for its intended use. Depreciation is charged to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis. And the respective estimated useful lives,
estimated residual values and annual depreciation rates of fixed assets
are set by the Bank considering the nature and usage of fixed assets.
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Estimated residual value Annual depreciation rate
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34 = 33%

10 £ - 10%

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed
and adjusted if appropriate, at each end of the year.
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(6) Construction in progress

The cost of construction in progress is determined according to
the actual expenditure for the construction, including all necessary
expenditure and other related expenses incurred during the
construction period.

The costs are transferred to fixed assets, intangible assets or other
long term assets when the asset is ready for its intended use.

(7) Intangible assets

The intangible assets can be recognised only when the economic
benefits related to intangible assets are likely to flow into the Bank,
and the cost of intangible assets can be measured reliably.

The useful life of intangible assets is determined according to the
economic useful lives; those intangible assets with unforeseeable
economic lives can be classified as intangible assets with infinite useful
lives.

The Bank's intangible assets comprise computer software with 2-10
years' useful lives.

For the intangible assets with finite useful lives, amortisation is
charged to profit or loss on a straight line basis. The useful life and
amortisation method for intangible assets with finite useful lives are
reviewed at each end of the year, with proper adjustments made by
the Bank when necessary.

(8) Long-term deferred expenses

Long-term deferred expenses are amortised by the straight line
method.

Long-term deferred expenses are amortised on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of lease period and useful life.

The carrying amount that has not been amortised is charged to profit
or loss if the expenditure does not bring benefits to subsequent
accounting periods.
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A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset
of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another
entity.

Recognition and derecognition of financial instrument

A financial asset or a financial liability is recognised when the Bank
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial
instrument.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part
of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.,
removed from the Bank's balance sheet) when:

(i) The rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have
expired;

(ii) The Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
financial asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a "pass-through" arrangement; and either (a) has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the financial asset, or (b)
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the financial
asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged, cancelled, or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition
of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in
profit or loss.

A regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised, as applicable, using trade date accounting. A regular
way purchase or sale of financial assets represents a purchase or sale
of a financial asset under a contract whose terms require delivery of
the asset within the time frame established generally by regulation or
convention in the marketplace concerned. The trade date is the date
that the Bank committed to purchase or sell a financial asset.
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Financial assets of the Bank are initially classified into three categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, financial assets
at amortised cost, and financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income based on the Bank's business model for managing
the financial assets and their contractual cash flow characteristics. The Bank
reclassified the relating financial assets if and only if the Bank changes the
business model for managing the financial assets.

Underlying fee of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
directly recognised in profit or loss, while those of other classifications
are attributed to the acquisition of financial assets.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets is based on their
classification:

Debt instrument investment at amortised cost

Financial assets are classified into financial assets at amortised cost
when both of the following conditions are satisfied: The business model
is to collect contractual cash flows; the cash flows on specific date
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding according to the agreement of the financial assets. Their
interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate method.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition, modification or impairment
are recognised in profit or loss.

Debt instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets are classified into financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income when both of the following conditions
are satisfied: The business model is to collect both the contractual
cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets; the cash
flows on specific date are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding according to the agreement of the
financial assets. Their interest income is recognised using the effective
interest rate method. A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair
value is recognised as other comprehensive income, except for interest
income, credit impairment losses and foreign exchange gains or losses,
which are recognised in profit or loss. The gain or loss recognised in
other comprehensive income will be reversed and recognised in profit
or loss when the financial assets are derecognised.
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Other than the financial assets at amortised cost and the financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income mentioned above,
financial assets are classified into financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. Such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value and the gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value will be
recognised in profit or loss.

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, or other financial liabilities. Underlying
fee of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are directly
recognised in profit or loss, while those of other financial liabilities are
attributed to the acquisition of financial liabilities.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities is based on their
classification:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial
liabilities held for trading (including derivatives that are liabilities) and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities held for trading (including derivative instruments
attributable to financial liabilities) are subsequently measured at fair
value. All changes in fair value of such financial liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss except for the derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge. Financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss are subsequently measured at fair value
and gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss, except for the gains
or losses arising from the Bank's own credit risk which are presented in
other comprehensive income. If gains or losses arising from the Bank's
own credit risk which are presented in other comprehensive income will
lead to or expand accounting mismatch in profit or loss, the Bank will
include all the changes in fair value (including the amount affected by
changes in the Bank's own credit risk) of such financial liabilities in profit
or loss.

Other financial liabilities

Such financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method.
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Impairment of financial instruments

The Bank recognises a loss for impairment of financial assets at
amortised cost, debt instrument measured at fair through other
comprehensive income, loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts based on their expected credit loss.

For receivable and contract assets without significant financing
components, the Bank uses the simplified approach to calculate the
credit impairment loss, based on lifetime expected credit loss.

Other than the financial assets, loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts using simplified approach, the Bank evaluates
whether the credit risk has significantly increases since the initial
recognition at each financial reporting date. When credit risk hasn't
increased significantly since the initial recognition, the financial
instruments are included in Stage I. the Bank calculate impairment
allowance at an amount equivalent to the ECL of the financial
instruments for the next 12 months, recognise the interest income by
using the carrying amount and effective interest rate. When credit risk
has increased significantly since the initial recognition, but have no
objective evidence of impairment, the financial instruments are included
in Stage I, the Bank calculate the impairment allowance at an amount
equivalent to the ECL over the lifetime of the financial instruments,
and recognise the interest income by using carrying amount and
effective interest rate. If the financial assets have objective evidence of
impairment, the financial instruments are included in Stage Ill, the Bank
calculates the impairment allowance at an amount equivalent to the
ECL over the lifetime of the financial instruments, and recognises the
interest income by using amortised cost and effective interest rate.

At each balance sheet date, the Bank assesses whether the credit risk
on the relevant financial instruments has increased significantly since
initial recognition. The Bank compares the risk of a default occurring
of a single financial instrument or a group of financial instruments
with similar credit risk characteristics as at the balance sheet date with
the risk of a default as at the date of initial recognition, to determine
changes in the risk of a default occurring of the financial instrument in
the expected lifetime. If the credit risk of financial instruments is low
at the balance sheet date, the Bank assumes that the credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition.

The disclosure related to the criterion for whether the credit risk has
increased significantly, the definition of the impaired financial assets and the
hypothesis of the measurement of expected credit loss refers to Note 111.

When there are one or more events that have adverse effects on the expected
future cash flows of a financial asset, the financial asset is credit-impaired.

When the Bank no longer reasonably expects to collect part or all of
the contractual cash flows, the Bank writes down the carrying amount
of the financial assets.
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Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
presented in the balance sheet when and only when the Bank currently
has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

Financial guarantee contract

Financial guarantee contracts are those contracts that require issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contracts are measured, on initial recognition,
at fair value. After initial recognition, financial guarantee contracts
are subsequently measured at the higher of, (i) the expected credit
impairment loss determined on financial reporting date and (ii) the
amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative
amount of income recognised in accordance with the revenue principle.

Derivative financial instruments

The Bank uses derivative financial instruments. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently measured at
fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive
and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any profit or loss arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are
taken directly in profit or loss, except for those related to the hedge
accounting.

Transfer of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when the Bank has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the financial asset to the
transferee. A financial asset is not derecognised when the Bank retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of the financial asset.

When the Bank has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the financial asset, it either (i) derecognises the financial
asset and recognises the assets and liabilities created in the transfer when
it has not retained control of the asset; or (i) continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Bank's continuing involvement, in
which case, the Bank also recognises an associated liability.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred financial asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the financial asset and the guarantee amount. The
guarantee amount is the maximum amount of consideration that the
Bank could be required to repay.
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(10) Repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions

Securities and bills sold subject to repurchase agreements ('Repos")
continue to be recognised, and are recorded as financial investments.
The corresponding obligation is included in "Repurchase agreements".
Securities and bills purchased under agreements to re-sell ("Reverse
repos’) are not recognised. The receivables are recorded as "Reverse
repurchase financial assets’, as appropriate.

The difference between purchase and sale price is recognised as
interest expense or interest income in the profit or loss over the life
of the agreements using the effective interest method.

(11) Precious metals

Precious metals comprise gold and silver. Precious metals acquired by
the Bank for trading purposes are initially measured at fair value and
subsequent changes in fair value are recorded in the profit or loss.

(12) Impairment of assets

The Bank assesses impairment of assets as follows, except for financial
assets and deferred tax assets:

The Bank assesses whether there is an indication that an asset is
impaired at each financial reporting date. If any such indication exists,
the Bank makes an estimate of the asset's recoverable amount and
carries out impairment test. For those assets with infinite useful
lives, regardless of whether the impairment indications exist, the
impairment test is made at least annually. For intangible assets that
have not yet reached their intended use status are also conducted
annual impairment test.

An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs
to sell and the present value of estimated future discounted cash
flows, which is determined on an individual basis.

If the recoverable amount of the asset is less than its carrying value,
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss and the
carrying value of the asset reduced by the amount of the loss.

Once an impairment loss is recognised, it shall not be reversed in the
subsequent period.
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For those financial assets that are not purchased or originated credit-

BRTYERA—ZHTEUEF AN EKENHFRFGZ
5h, HEFBEETEXNXSENTFEUTHRME, KASEER
AT R

() EBXFEARREXEHINXSE;
(i)  ZXSHETRUESBEFMNEREARE
(i) BXFHETEBITEHITE,

An obligation related to a contingency is recognised as provision
when all of the following conditions are satisfied (except for
contingent liability recognised in a business combination not under
common control):

(i) the obligation is a present obligation of the Bank;
(i) it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation; and
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impaired financial assets but subsequently have become credit-
impaired financial assets, the Bank calculates the interest income
by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset in subsequent reporting periods.

Fee and commission income
The Bank earns fee and commission income from a diverse range

of services it provides to its customers. For those services that
are provided over a period of time, fee and commission income
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required to settle the related present obligation. Factors pertaining to a
contingency such as the risks, uncertainties and time value of money are
taken into account as a whole in reaching the best estimate. The Bank
reviews the carrying amount of a provision at the balance sheet date.
The carrying amount of a provision will be adjusted when there is clear
evidence that the amount does not reflect the current best estimate.

(14) Recognition of income and expense

Interest income and expense

"Interest income" and "interest expense" item in the income statement
of the Bank are the interest income and expense calculated by using
the effective interest method on financial assets at amortised cost,
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income and
financial liabilities at amortised cost.

The effective interest method is used in the calculation of the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and in the
allocation and recognition of the interest income or interest expense
in profit or loss over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows through the
expected life of a financial asset or financial liability to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset or the amortised cost of a
financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the
Bank estimates the expected cash flows by considering all contractual
terms of the financial instrument but does not consider expected
credit losses. The calculation includes all amounts paid or received
by the Bank that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

For those purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, the
Bank calculates the interest income by applying the credit-adjusted
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from initial recognition. The credit-adjusted effective interest rate is
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash flows through the
expected life of the financial asset to the amortised cost of a financial
asset that is a purchased or originated credit-impaired financial asset.

HEERITHE, AASTHEERREAHEENERSHAE, WX
BRP—TLET E—EHE AR —E L TME RAE~EA
BYRA DURBOS Y, MIZERAAESECEHEE. AHEAHE
BHILET E—EHENEFSIRAA~ERONRF, RAFF
EERTHNE A EEEPRGERMBHE R EEAE RS A~
FENLFEMEFMNE, FENEZERPRESSIRAE>
HIfEA,

BAFEEAIRS]

ARTEANEEZNEMMEER, KATEERTMUMF, F0
AEMBBAEHTRITRE, ANFETIEMEN, FASR
B = BT R A 2 o 9 — DU IR AR 5T -

(1) FEATNEIMERZEFSERE 5 TREHEMTR—
A FIRF;

2) ZHEFEERFHEMRTEESERBRSERKXR,
HEMIFREBIH K

ERTRNSSHEEMIERTRIH, AASEIRBAR, X
TEHIAEXBERSTHTHHF, $EEEBIRSHBAXEY

FHEEBO DA G I HAEHITRIE, BRUEEANBER5N,
AASEAEMERERD D FRHTRITLIE,

recognised when the transactions are completed.

(15) Leases

Identification of leases

At inception of a contract, the Bank assesses whether the contract is,
or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of one or more identified assets
for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether
a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time, the Bank assesses whether, throughout
the period of use, the customer has both of the right to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified
asset and the right to direct the use of the identified asset.

Identification of separate lease components

For a contract that contains multiple separate lease components, the
Bank separates the components of the contract and accounts for each
separate lease component. The right to use an identified asset is a
separate lease component if both:

(i) the lessee can benefit from use of the underlying asset either on
its own or together with other resources that are readily available
to the lessee; and

(ii) the underlying asset is neither highly dependent on, nor highly
interrelated with, the other underlying assets in the contract.

Separating lease components and non-lease components

The Bank does not separate lease vehicles as a lessee and instead
accounts for each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component, except that the Bank
accounts for the lease components and non-lease components
separately in addition to the underlying assets above.
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Assessment of the lease term

The lease term is the non-cancellable period of a lease for which
the Bank has the right to use an underlying asset. If the Bank has an
option to extend the lease, that is, the Bank has the right to extend
the lease, and is reasonably certain to exercise that option, the lease
term also includes periods covered by an option to extend the lease.
If the Bank has an option to terminate the lease, that is, the Bank
has the right to terminate the lease, but is reasonably certain not
to exercise that option, the lease term includes periods covered by
an option to terminate the lease. The Bank reassesses whether it is
reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, purchase option,

FAZ %

E*ﬁ‘f,ﬁﬂﬂ'ﬁuﬁ ARBRERIFOEEMRAAINEFIAN

MEnfk, SHESENENERSHEERNS., EITEREARTM
MIER, ALIRAXKEAEEERFIRESTAE, XA F)
REEEMNEAREFHRTEREARERS %W%%@mﬂ%%
A, it ALZHHRGE, EABNEITTAERE=RENERIN, K
WATRERFITEN T ERESRIT LR E R IT AR
#, BABIMEITANBRXE =R AR,

MEHFBEERE, SEREENRPRELHS. BREEMITH

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Bank measures the lease
liabilities at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
that date, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
In calculating the present value of the lease payments, the Bank uses
the lessee's incremental borrowing rate. The Bank calculates the interest
expenses of the lease liabilities in each period during the lease term
using the constant periodic rate of interest, and recognises such interest
expenses in profit or loss, except those in the costs of the related
asset as required. Variable lease payments that are not included in the
measurement of the lease liabilities are recognised in profit or loss as
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that is within the control of the Bank and affects whether the Bank is
reasonably certain to exercise an option not previously included in its
determination of the lease term.

As lessee
Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets of the Bank mainly include buildings and
vehicles.

At the commencement date of the lease, the Bank recognises a right-
of-use asset. The cost of the right-of-use asset comprises: (i) the
amount of the initial measurement of the lease liabilities; (i) any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date of the lease
less any lease incentives received; (iii) any initial direct cost incurred;
and (iv) an estimate of costs incurred by the lessee in dismantling
and removing the underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is
located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease. The right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis subsequently by the Bank. If the
Bank is reasonably certain that the ownership of the underlying asset
will be transferred to the Bank at the end of the lease term, the Bank
depreciates the asset from the commencement date to the end of
the useful life of the asset. Otherwise, the bank depreciates the assets
from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful
life of the asset or the end of the lease term.

The Bank remeasures the lease liabilities at the present value of the
changed lease payments and adjusts the carrying amount of the right-
of-use assets accordingly, when the carrying amount of the right-
of-use asset is reduced to zero, and there is a further reduction in
the measurement of the lease liabilities, the Bank recognises the
remaining amount of the remeasurement in profit or loss.
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After the commencement date of the lease, if there is a change on
actual fixed payment, expected payable of guaranteed residual value,
the index or rate used to calculate the lease payment, purchase
option, the assessment of option to extend the lease, option to
terminate the lease or actual option exercise situation, the bank
will recalculate the lease liabilities at the present value of the lease
payments based changes occurred.

Lease modiifications

Lease modification is a change in the scope of a lease, or the
consideration for a lease, that was not part of the original terms and
conditions of the lease, for example, adding or terminating the right
to use one or more underlying assets, or extending or shortening the
contractual lease term.

The Bank accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if both:

(i) the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the
right to use one or more underlying assets; and

(i) the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone price
to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease,
at the effective date of the lease modification the Bank remeasures
the lease liabilities by discounting the revised lease payments using
a revised discount rate. The revised discount rate is determined as
the lessee's incremental borrowing rate at the effective date of the
modification.

For the above lease modification, the Bank makes a corresponding
adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
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Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Bank considers a lease that, at the commencement date of the
lease, has a lease term of 12 months or less, and does not contains any
purchase option as a short-term lease; and a lease for which the value of
the individual underlying asset is not more than USD5000 when it is new
as a lease of low-value assets. If the Bank subleases an asset, or expects
to sublease an asset, the head lease does not qualify as a lease of a low-
value asset. The Bank does not recognise the right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for buildings and vehicles short-term leases and low-value assets.
The Bank recognises lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets in the costs of the related asset or profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

(16) Government subsidies

Government subsidies will be recognised if the Bank can receive
government subsidies and meet the conditions attached to government
subsidies. If government subsidies are monetary assets, they shall
be measured in the light of the amount received or receivable. If a
government subsidy is a non-monetary asset, it shall be measured at its
fair value; and if its fair value cannot be obtained in a reliable way, it shall
be measured at a nominal amount. Government subsidies associated with
income which are used as compensation for future costs, expenses or
losses are recognised as deferred expenditures and shall be recorded in
future profits and losses to reverse the related costs where the relevant
costs, expenses or losses are recognised. Government subsidies associated
with income which are used to compensate the related costs, expenses
or losses incurred by the Bank are directly included in current profit and
loss or used to reverse the related costs. Government subsidies associated
with assets shall set off the book value of related assets or be recognised
as deferred expenditures. Government subsidies related to assets are
recognised as deferred expenditures to be distributed over the useful lives
of the relevant assets and shall be recorded in the profit or loss by stages
in a reasonable and systematic manner. Government subsidies measured in
nominal amounts, shall be directly recognised in current profits and losses.
Where relevant assets are sold, transferred, scraped or damaged before
the end of their lives, balance of the unallocated deferred expenditures
shall be recognised in current profit and loss on asset disposal.

(17) Share-based payment

The Bank's share-based compensation programme is measured as an
equity-settled share-based payment.

The equity-settled share-based payment is measured by reference to the
fair value of the equity instruments granted. Where the equity instruments
granted vest immediately, the Bank recognises the expense in full at the
fair value on grant date with a corresponding increase in capital reserve.
Where the equity instruments granted vest upon the fulfilment of service
period or performance conditions, the Bank makes a best estimate at the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest, at each financial
reporting date of the vesting period, and recognise the expense pertaining
to the current period at the fair value on grant date with a corresponding
increase in capital reserve. The fair values of the equity instruments are
estimated using the Trinomial valuation methodology.
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No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except
for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional upon a market
or non-vesting condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether or not the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity—settled award are modified, as a minimum,
an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been modified. An
additional expense is recognised for any modification which increases the
total fair value of the share—based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity—settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested
on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for the
award is recognised immediately. This includes any award where non—vesting
conditions within the control of the employees are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new compensation are
treated as if they were a modification of the original award.

(18) Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration or compensation given by
the Bank in exchange for service rendered by employees or for the termination
of employment, including short-term employee benefits, post-employment
benefits, termination benefits and other long-term benefits.

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries and bonuses, social security contributions and other short-term
employee benefits are accrued in the period in which services have been
rendered by the employees of the Bank.

Post-employment benefits (defined contribution plan)

Employees of the Bank participate in the retirement insurance plan, and
unemployment insurance plan administered by the local government, and
the contribution is recognised to profit or loss of that period.

Employees of the Bank can participate in the annuity plan established
by the Bank on a voluntary basis. The Bank contributes to the annuity at
a certain percentage of employees' salary, and recognises the cost in the
profit or loss accordingly.
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Income tax includes current tax and deferred tax. Current income tax and
movements in deferred tax balances are recognised in profit or loss except
that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case the tax
is recognised directly in equity.

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities in accordance with relevant tax regulations.

Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the balance
sheet date.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each
financial reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
income tax assets are reassessed at each financial reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when fulfilling
of the following conditions: A legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities; The deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities are related to the income tax levied on the same
taxpayer by the same tax administrative department or are related to
different taxpayers but, within each future period of reversal of important
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities, the taxpayers involved
intend to settle current tax assets and current tax liabilities or acquire
assets and liquidate liabilities at the same time.

AR TFEMEFNHERANARANMETTESTEERTIA. X5
HERET, RENAANETEAEEHITASPREN S/
A HARNRANRZZHSHOAEG. 2ANE, =815
SEZFENBHRENBFR ST, HE-ASMEREHE
BB —NBEABXAONE. KADURXANETERXES
R, REHERTLEEBNENEFISHERXEZH0
MOERTGHET, FHFEIBETHN, K2SMREZXHEME
RAFIANENRENTHHRT, TETH (ARENTH ) RE
NEETBREBHANNZ ST, ARDXATHSE5EEX
R AREN N AKIMHELFNERAUTEARIER,

AABRAELFEATERFEARBIF AEIEMEMRES
IRREERA, REERBXTURGANE REETUZHA
ELERBIRBAVKTTHERT, FEAFTRAREGNE.

AUSHRETUAANETERRKBNR~MAEK, REDTAIR
NETEERGHERFEEEXHNRRERGANE, BEMEL
NRAMERR: I EHEBBRSHNAR R R A RAEEKRT S
ERSBENRNAZ-—BREGNE BRE-RRENEIMEX
RFEANREESEETRNENNENE R RAANE AX
RERARNFATRARGNEAE =R RBNE.

BYAFNGRER, KABDNEVSRETRIANFEUA AN
EITENH~MAGHTERTE, MRERSEAANEITE
BRzaRE KR,

21 KB

—TEH, HEEHS TR B-TTEMERTZW, WRFETT
HFWATUEBZ T8 EERFLERZWH, WHXEKTT,

REZEFREHMAFELMIKTRANLY, THEARAT
HIREKTT

At each financial reporting date, the Bank measures its derivatives, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, other debt instrument at fair
value through other comprehensive income and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss. Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the assumption that the orderly transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Bank. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumption that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming
that market participants act in their economic best interest.

The Bank uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure the
fair value. Use of observable inputs is maximized and unobservable inputs
will only be used when observable inputs are not available or obtaining
observable inputs becomes unpractical.

For assets and liabilities measured and disclosed at fair value, the fair
value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of
the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to
the entire measurement: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that are accessible at the
measurement date; Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

For assets and liabilities held at the end of the balance sheet date that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis, the Bank continues to make
assessment as to whether there is transfer between different levels of the
fair value hierarchy.

(21) Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly
or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence
over the other party. Parties are also considered to be related if they are
subject to common control or common significant influence.

The state-owned enterprises without other relationships do not constitute
related parties.
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(22) Entrusted business

Where the Bank acts in an entrusted business such as nominee,
custodian or agent, assets arising thereon together with related
undertakings to return such assets to customers are excluded from the
financial statements.

(23) Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Bank. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required or
the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

The Bank will not recognise contingent liabilities, but disclosed in the
notes to financial statements. In case the condition changes, which led
to the outflow of economic resources is probable, provisions will be
made.

(24) Significant accounting judgment and estimates

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the management
has used its judgments and made estimates and assumptions of the
effects of uncertain future events on the financial statements. The use
of judgments, estimates and assumptions will affect the amount of
income, expense, assets and liabilities presented and disclosed. The
uncertainty of such estimates and assumptions might have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the future.

Judgment

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the management
make following judgments which has significant impact on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Business model

Financial assets are initially classified based on the Bank's business
model for managing the financial assets. The Bank judges the business
model, with the consideration of enterprise evaluation, the reporting
mode to key management, related risk and corresponding risk
management method of financial assets performance, and the reward
system of related business personnel. The Bank analyses and judges the
reason, timing, frequency and value of selling financial assets before
maturity date when judging whether the business model is to collect

contractual cash flows or not.
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i, FRHAGERAERERERAMESIMUREN RS HE
MAF RN AR, SaWETHEENENEE#TITHEE, FE
HESEAENSREAILEREFEZER. NI RNERE
N ERA”, BEAMEINESKFIENAANEREIERNE,

TR REE

AT AT H ™ sk BH RXRRAXERE AT AHZE
Hftx kR, TRSSBERRFTHBASNAGRKESHE
PNGER

E2H T RAE

208F1B1BHZfE, AASRXAMEAERARAEENSmTEMN
AR TS, NAMEMEBRARE TR MY EAHAET,
EEEMEAEABKRENEER, BRIEMEAR, At ixe
HMFAEITR, A2SIRBEHEERBIBLESLFER. EUER
FriEfR. TURESERERRS AGERARENRALD, FE
Mt S E R EAESHNITIR, EITRNBEESETREIFR
ST RRILFFHRERKESH,

B &A= IMIIE T B

KRB TR NFERANREMAT IR E = HME S
FHEURRKERENTSR, MEAEFIHENLTLES, K
FHTHRENS, SEFERETRN, BHTRENL, &
BRERA = ZIMYIERFNE =, HEALERKBEKA SR
Ees, #TRENL, SEFIAFENKANES TITRE S
M, BAAMERELERBEFFMITARASTENI
EFHBREE, RERETRE. 2ANMERELERRAENSE,
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Characteristics of the contractual cash flows

Financial assets are initially classified based on their contractual cash
flow characteristics. When judging whether the contractual cash flow
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, the considerations contain: (i)judging whether there exists
significant difference compared with the benchmark cash flow, when
evaluating the modification of the time value of the money, (ii) judging
whether fair value of the early repayment characteristics is immaterial
for financial assets with early repayment characteristics.

Uncertainty of estimates

The following items are the key hypothesis about the future and other key
source of uncertainty of estimates on financial reporting date. It may cause
significant modification on carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the
future accounting period.

Impairment of financial instruments

The Bank uses the expected credit loss model to evaluate the impairment
of financial instruments since 1 January 2018. Applying the expected
credit loss model need to make significant judgment and estimates with
consideration of all reasonable information with proper basis, including
the forward-looking information. When making those judgment and
estimates, the Bank deduces the expected changes of obligor's credit
risk with consideration of the historical repayment data combined with
the economic policy, macroeconomic indicators, industry risk and etc.
Different estimates may affect the impairment provision. The provision for
impairment may not equal amount of impairment losses in the future.

Impairment of non-current assets besides financial assets

Non-current assets other than financial-assets are reviewed for impairment
on financial reporting date. When the carrying amount of an asset is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount. For intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, the
impairment test is made annually and when impairment indications exist. For
other non-current assets besides financial assets, the impairment test is made
when there is an indication that their carrying amount is not recoverable.
When the carrying amount of an asset or a group of assets is higher than
their recoverable amount, i.e. higher of its fair value less costs to sell and the
present value of estimated future discounted cash flows, it is indicated that
the impairment losses have occurred. Fair value less costs to sell refers to the
selling contract price from fair trading of similar asset or the observable market
price, less the incremental costing directly attributes to the asset disposal.
When estimating the present value of future discounted cash flows. The
management must estimate the future cash flow of the asset or the group of
assets, and choose a proper discount rate to determine the present value.
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Deferred income tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Fair value of financial instruments

The Bank establishes fair value of financial instruments with reference
to a quoted market price in an active market or, if there is no active
market, using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques include
the use of recent arm's length transactions, observable prices for
similar instruments, discounted cash flow analysis using risk-adjusted
interest rates, and commonly used market pricing models. Whenever
possible these models use observable market inputs and data
including, for example, interest rate yield curves, foreign currency rates
and option volatilities. The results of using valuation techniques are
calibrated against the industry practice and observable current market
transactions in the same or similar instruments.

Derecognition of financial instruments

The Bank assesses and judges on the extent to which it retains the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial instruments for the
transferred transactions entered into, and make relevant accounting
treatments accordingly.

Lessee’s incremental borrowing rate

The Bank measures the lease liability at the present value of the
lease payments discounted using the lessee's incremental borrowing
rate. According to the economic environment, the Bank takes the
observable interest rate as the reference basis for determining the
incremental borrowing rate, then adjusts the observable interest rate
based on its own circumstances, underlying assets, lease terms and
amounts of lease liabilities to determine the applicable incremental
borrowing rate.
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5. Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates

Accounting treatment of changes in the basis for determining contractual
cash flows arising from interest rate benchmark reform

MOF issued the Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises
Interpretation No 14 in January 2021, which clarified the accounting
treatment and disclosure requirements of changes in the basis of
determining contractual cash flows of financial assets or financial liabilities
and changes to lease payments arising from interest rate benchmark
reform.

The Bank implemented above accounting policy since 1January 2021, and
there was no significant impact on current year's financial statements.

6. Taxation

The major categories of tax applicable to the Bank and the respective tax
rates for the current financial year are as follows:

BER REBLRNIZ 13% 3 6% B9BLRITEEIBL, FHZMBR S AA PRI H IR IR N ZFTH S ER.

Value-added tax
deduct the input tax.

T g RS

City construction tax

BEHMN REFREEN AR EE LAY 3% T4

The Bank is subjected to an educational surcharge rate of three per cent on turnover tax.

Educational surcharge

A TR RN AT TSR 25% 148,

Corporate income tax

RINFDAFTEHR
Withholding Individual Income tax

ELFRAEN B REL LAY 7% T4

The Bank is subjected to a city construction tax rate of seven per cent on turnover tax.

The Bank is subjected to a Value-added output tax levied on 13 per cent or six per cent of taxable income

The Bank is subjected to a corporate tax rate of 25 per cent.

AT X MERERANFHE, HAASRFERMNBNAREH,
In accordance with the relevant tax laws in the PRC, the Bank is required to withhold individual income tax
on salaries paid to its employees.
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7. Notes to Financial Statements

(1) Cash and deposit with the Central Bank

31-12-2021 31-12-2020
EENe Cash on hand 2,039,982 4,163,644
TR RBTEERES - ART  Statutory deposit reserve with the Central Bank - RMB 2,884,753,084 3,304,047,179
P RBITEEHASS -5 Statutory deposit reserve with the Central Bank - foreign currency 616,431,269 284,969,029
FERHRRETINCHEEES Foreign exchange risk reserve with the Central Bank - 586,468,851
FR R RBE T H AR Other deposits with the Central Bank 2,700,435,288 512,775,219
R UF B Interest receivable 1,479,297 1,655,508
B FRRRBTRIUREES Less: allowance for impairment losses (644,914) (486,116)

&1t Total

6,204,494,006 4,693,593,314

RIEFEARRTHERNE, KA BAIE—ELLREMNERES
THEARRT, T200F12831H, A2TIARTRINTER
HESHMIFLL B4 3% 8% (2020 ££ 12 B 31 H 105%) & 9% (2020 4F 12
B31H8: 5%),

M205F10 B, REFEFEARBRTHERAE, KAQSIZAHN
SNERPE RS, BRKREBEHECEATN —ELHIEFINCR
PoAER S, 2020 10 B, MO RS MNFILGIH 20% B

= 0%,

T 2021512 B3I HK 2020 F12 B3 H, ARTEHFHRTRBITH
TEANBY R —, $RERK 12 B ATEERRAITEREES,

2. TERUE LR

The Bank places statutory deposit reserves with the People's Bank of China
(PBOC) in accordance with relevant regulations issued by it. As at 31 December
2021, statutory deposit reserves placed with the PBOC were calculated
at eight per cent (31 December 2020: 10.5 per cent) and nine per cent (31
December 2020: five per cent) of qualified RMB deposits and foreign currency
deposits from customers respectively.

The Bank places foreign exchange risk reserve with the PBOC monthly
in accordance with relevant regulations since October 2015. The foreign
exchange risk reserve is calculated at a certain percentage of the contractual
amount of forward sales of exchanges in the preceding month. The foreign
exchange risk reserve ratio reduced from 20% to zero per cent since October
2020.

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the Bank included all deposit
with the Central Bank in Stage |, and measured the impairment losses based
on expected credit losses in the next 12 months (12-month ECL).

(2) Due from banks and other financial institutions

31-12-2021 31-12-2020

FRERETE LR SRS Due from domestic banks and other financial institutions

FRURINMRITE L Due from overseas banks

RS Interest receivable

Nt Sub-total

A RN RS Less: allowance for impairment losses

FRE %A Net amount of due from banks and other financial institutions

1,417,603,620 901,033,543

2,139,513,851 2,794,856,980
353 491,469
3,557,117,824 3,696,381,992

(12,855,970) (15,668,827)

3,544,261,854 3,680,713,165

FREVREAEZAARASRIFREL 2000145 5 (FERESXT
% « BTy ME N EEES > (BN MIEMITRN
= B MR A E U R IR R 12 B IEE R A THRA R E AR,

T2 FR2ANER2020E2/31H, KAASEEBIFRE LK
TEANB R —, RERK 12/ ATEERRAITEREES,

E‘w'f;] 120 X#4T (hE) HRAT 207 FEHEE

Impairment provisions for due from banks and other financial institutions
represented the country risk reserve provided according to Yin Jian Fa [2010]
No 45 Circular of the China Banking Regulatory Commission on Printing and
Distributing the Guidelines for Country Risk Management of the Banking
Financial Institutions issued by CBIRC, and the provision for impairment
measured according to 12-month expected credit loss.

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the Bank included all due from
banks and other financial institutions in Stage I, and measured the impairment
losses based on expected credit losses in the next 12 months (12-month ECL).

L FHEE

(3) Placements with banks and other financial institutions

31-12-2021 31-12-2020

FRMRAEHEARTELE
HAeth &R

Placements with overseas banks

PR AE M SMR TR L

R Interest receivable
INTF Sub-total

B R E LR E A

Less: allowance for impairment losses

HHA S

Placements with domestic banks and other financial institutions

Net amount of placements with banks and other financial institutions

6,054,302,937 4,821,387,360

2,561,523,000 1,846,037,000

11,663,341 10,092,464

8,627,489,278 6,677,516,824

(18,654,199) (9,624,176)

8,608,835,079 6,667,892,648

IR RS EAE S DA A SRIERE R 201015 5 (FERESXT
BN (RTIVERIMER N EEIES) B NREmITRN
B 71 Kb R B IR IR IR 12 D B IR E BRI R E S,

T2 FE2ANER2020F2[/3H, AASEEMWFHASH
ABER—, ZEARR 2D BAMBAGERRETTEREESE.

4 ZSEERA

Impairment provisions for placements represented the country risk
reserve provided according to Yin Jian Fa [2010] No 45 Circular of the
China Banking Regulatory Commission on Printing and Distributing
the Guidelines for Country Risk Management of the Banking Financial
Institutions issued by CBIRC, and the provision for impairment measured
according to 12-month expected credit loss.

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the Bank included all
placements with banks and other financial institutions in Stage I, and
measured the impairment losses based on expected credit losses in the
next 12 months (12-month ECL).

(4) Financial assets held-for-trading

31-12-2021 31-12-2020
UARMMETTE BREFITA
LA SRE~: Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
FRRITEREE R Central Bank bills and government bonds 772,023,120 149,776,650
BEMBRTHR Policy bank bonds 1,059,577,750 -
ik Corporate bonds 136,479,810 -
s E Placement with banks and other financial institutions - 821,291,982
[ENZE3:: Negotiable certificates of deposit 198,590,600 547,659,650
MUEF S Interest receivable 30,762,909 6,513,562
&It Total 2,197,434,189 1,525,241,844
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(5) Derivative financial instruments

PAESRIRE—MEu~m, ENEBURTHMAKINEIR M &
iSRS ISR A MR ENNME. BE XL RN RERRKRE.
KRB, RETN. BETNSCERMNERE, KASEANITE
SRIASETZHEY. =5, B,

PrEsm I AN XETREEMKIN B A-NaRNE,
FRAF NRFREREFOBD . ZERMERR T SIHREHRE
ATPLTESRM T AN A mIEARNE,
FATEAEHREENMEIEEAERIRNTTASHIA,

KA TEFNFEREFFENITAESMIARMNT:

A derivative is a financial instrument, the value of which is derived from the
value of another "underlying" financial instrument, an index or some other
variables. Typically, an “underlying” financial instrument is a share, commodity
or bond price, an index value or an exchange or interest rate. The Bank uses
derivative instruments such as forwards, swaps, options and futures.

The notional amount of a derivative represents the amount of underlying
asset upon which the value of the derivative is based. It indicates the
unsettled volume of business transaction at the balance sheet date. The
amount of underlying asset reflects the risk exposure of derivative at the end
of accounting period other than fair value.

The Bank has no derivative designated as hedging instruments.

The notional amount and fair value of the Bank's derivative instruments are as
follows:

6. I NIREERI B~ (6) Reverse repurchase financial assets

31-12-2021 31-12-2020
BESWFo%: Classified by counter-party:
[& Mk Financial institutions 1,432,091,000 2,271,360,000
RUEF S Interest receivable 413,153 2,481,680
B OBEER Less: allowance for impairment losses (69,977) (204,966)
&1t Total 1,432,434,176 2,273,636,714
BERmSZE: Classified by type of pledged assets:
[ Bonds 1,432,091,000 2,271,360,000
NUEFE Interest receivable 413,153 2,481,680
B OBEER Less: allowance for impairment losses (69,977) (204,966)
&1t Total 1,432,434,176 2,273,636,714

T2202NFR2ANER2020F2/3NH, AR EMWENRES
RAFPANER—, ZERR2DAATHERRRTEREREE.

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the Bank included all reverse
repurchase financial assets in Stage I, and measured the impairment losses
based on expected credit losses in the next 12 months (12-month ECL).

31-12-2021 31-12-2020
A RE Fair Value N RME Fair Value
BX & # = Afr BEX S &= Afr
Notional Amount Assets Liabilities Notional Amount Assets Liabilities
SMCHTET R Foreign exchange contracts:
HIE Y Forwards 11,839,604,341 173,886,669 223,208,451 8,797,620,818 44,514,861 99,178,077
HHEH Swaps 234,785,740,892 1,723,924,057 1,697,919,391 351,342,390,296 8,773,152,071 9,055,376,169
AL Options 19,690,815,679 168,398,208 167,560,334 32,502,777,345 637,786,380 435,045,791
it Sub-total 266,316,160,912 2,066,208,934 2,088,688,176 392,642,788,459 9,455,453,312  9,589,600,037
FIRATETH: Interest rate contracts:
HHEH Swaps 207,500,634,604 1,369,704,794 1,359,902,742 243,447,312,204  1,106,967,653 1,047,472,263
INTF Sub-total 207,500,634,604 1,369,704,794 1,359,902,742 243,447,312,204 1,106,967,653 1,047,472,263
BRNEESHTE. Commodity contracts:
RGN Swaps 8,112,500,694 376,568,008 375,331,551 5,155,710,682 177,610,492 177,092,741
Nt Sub-total 8,112,500,694 376,568,008 375,331,551 5,155,710,682 177,610,492 177,092,741
ENEIE# TR, Equity contracts:
HEY Options 353,015,412 416,203 433,453 639,119,726 1,679,173 1,702,732
it Sub-total 353,015,412 416,203 433,453 639,119,726 1,679,173 1,702,732
=&BITETER:  Precious metal derivatives
mHEY Forwards 18,925,150,995 641,014,969 428,974,340 20,331,014,212 780,277,619 703,007,730
HHEH Swaps 10,556,889,956 85,079,444 44,925,011 6,167,899,797 37,819,463 72,602,408
BREH Options 34,037,749 15,919 15,921 - ; ;
AN Futures 789,187,270 2,735,453 5,175,394 1,582,042,122 7,328,629 19,885,714
it Sub-total 30,305,265,970 728,845,785 479,090,666 28,080,956,131 825,425,711 795,495,852
&it Total 512,587,577,592 4,541,743,724 4,303,446,588 669,965,887,202 11,567,136,341  11,611,363,625

SSETETL 1) kR (hE) BRAT 20 G

L ]
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(7) Loans and advances to customers

31-12-2021

(71) Distribution of loans and advances by individual and corporate

31-12-2020

WUBER A EITERN AT Loans and advances to customers at amortised cost

MASRINER. Retail loans and advances:
EFEZIB Mortgages
Hith Others
Nt Sub-total
Al BEFRFIER TR Corporate loans and advances:
T Loans
HIL Discounted bills
R Trade finance
it Sub-total

A SN ETTEBEET T AEME Loans and advances to customers at fair value through other

AR R R R AR

ManMETEBEERE
THN B RS A9 R R loss

Ait Total
R S

R AR AR

B RREEES

R AR K E N E

comprehensive income

Interest receivable
Total amount of loans and advances

Less: allowance for impairment losses

4,846,248,142

759,808

5,732,690,002

1,351,987

4,847,007,950

5,734,041,989

18,407,383,395

12,704,846,050

17,426,062,438
1,051,912,199

11,802,993,582

31,112,229,445

30,280,968,219

2,561,239,526

Loans and advances to customers at fair value through profit or

1,396,034,236

866,797,767

39,916,511,157

36,881,807,975

208,821,950

174,613,351

40,125,333,107

37,056,421,326

(965,228,077)

(870,385,199)

Net value of loans and advances to customers

39,160,105,030

36,186,036,127
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Notes to Financial Statements

2021 £ & For the year ended 31 December 2021
(BR45HIERASN, MBI ARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

72 #7557 (7.2) Distribution of loans and advances to customers by industry
31-12-2021 31-12-2020
TKE R el KT 5230 Ee i
Amount  Percentage Amount Percentage
b= Real estates 9,864,293,248 25% 9,256,345,957 25%
itEMBE Wholesale and retail 8,176,231,053 20% 6,921,873,222 19%
g Manufacturing 7,480,104,680 19% 7,292,548,826 20%
i@k . CEFHRBL Transportation, storage and post 2,251,512,258 6% 1,052,765,235 3%
a4 Finance 1,864,687,594 5% 1,933,416,786 5%
EBEMERL Accommodation and catering 1,208,102,264 3% 1,213,622,495 3%
HEME SRS L Leasing and commercial services 1,031,760,236 3% 543,903,034 1%
= BBt RS B ARBRS L Telecommunication, software and information management 1,022,884,651 2% 1,266,862,528 3%

services
RMRHE Agriculture, forestry, farming and fishing 700,206,742 2% 533,781,913 1%
Bl Construction 571,003,408 1% 263,378,486 1%
B, Bh. RERKEFEMER N Electricity, heat, gas and water supply 455,998,256 1% 454,948,415 1%
B4 HESREMESIERN L Health, social security and social welfare 379,718,817 1% 368,994,019 1%
BZ AR MFARIRS L Scientific research and technical services 61,000,000 - 43,639,807 -
BB Education 2,000,000 - 1,685,263 -
NN Retail loan 4,847,007,950 12% 5,734,041,989 17%
&it Total 39,916,511,157 100%  36,881,807,975 100%
SIS F B Interest receivable 208,821,950 174,613,351

R RRAER B
B RRREES

R KRB KA MNME

Total amount of loans and advances
Less: allowance for impairment losses

Net value of loans and advances to customers

40,125,333,107

(965,228,077)

39,160,105,030

37,056,421,326

36,186,036,127

(870,385,199)

(7.3) Distribution of loans and advances to customers by geographical region

73 X 57

31-12-2021 31-12-2020
it Northeast 592,574,132 1,220,488,047
R East 17,381,224,792 15,756,734,672
55| North 7,805,262,173 7,130,310,369
tErh Central 2,138,159,691 1,017,390,912
1Ry South 5,703,995,669 5,803,857,052
[iic)==] Southwest 3,837,574,057 3,996,084,325
[iiB ] Northwest 349,880,467 296,910,364
TEHMBX Overseas 2,107,840,176 1,660,032,234
Ait Total 39,916,511,157 36,881,807,975
RR YT B Interest receivable 208,821,950 174,613,351
RILRFRINTETR DR Total amount of loans and advances 40,125,333,107 37,056,421,326
B REBEEE Less: allowance for impairment losses (965,228,077) (870,385,199)
R GRER IR EINME Net value of loans and advances to customers 39,160,105,030 36,186,036,127

124 x#4847 (PE) HRAF

2021 FERE

T4 BERERXDH (7.4) Loans and advances to customers by type of collateral or guarantee
31-12-2021 31-12-2020
ERR Unsecured loans 7,243,408,307 8,275,088,608
RIETEK Guaranteed loans 7,996,640,037 4,950,007,177
ME R TR Loans with collaterals 24,676,462,813 23,656,712,190
Hr: Of which:
IRIRETER Secured by mortgages 19,029,865,181 18,996,259,296
RGN Secured by pledges 5,646,597,632 4,660,452,894
Ait Total 39,916,511,157 36,881,807,975
TR RS Interest receivable 208,821,950 174,613,351
RIS R IR B Total amount of loans and advances 40,125,333,107 37,056,421,326

B RRBEEE

R GER ALK E N {E

Less: allowance for impairment losses

Net value of loans and advances to customers

(965,228,077)

(870,385,199)

39,160,105,030

36,186,036,127

7.5 BB Y =R (7.5) Overdue Loan
31-12-2021
W1 RE  @EITXETNE BT EEIF B 3 F
90 X (&14%) (&3 %) M &1t
Overdue 1 day  Over 90 days to 1 Overdue 1 year to 3 Overdue 3 years
to 90 days year (inclusive) years (inclusive) above Total
{RIE B2k Guaranteed loans - - 41,570,926 - 41,570,926
MR LR TE K Loans with collaterals 222,825 4,477,571 76,862,910 838,661 82,401,967
Hrp:
AR EEER Secured by mortgages 222,825 4,477,571 67,807,487 838,661 73,346,544
RN Secured by pledges - - 9,055,423 - 9,055,423
“it 222,825 4,477,571 118,433,836 838,661 123,972,893
31-12-2020
BH#H1RE  EETXRETE BE1EE3F B 3 F
90 X (&14) (&3 %) Xt At
Overdue 1 day  Over 90 days to 1 Overdue 1 year to 3 Overdue 3 years
to 90 days year (inclusive) years (inclusive) above Total
R Guaranteed loans 7,370,000 14,757,283 27,806,538 - 49,933,821
M 4E{R ¥ TR Loans with collaterals 2,691,065 59,064,534 19,178,741 7,800,809 88,735,149
Hr
AR IR Secured by mortgages 236,485 52,283,602 19,178,741 7,800,809 79,499,637
TR R Secured by pledges 2,454,580 6,780,932 - - 9,235,512
&t 10,061,065 73,821,817 46,985,279 7,800,809 138,668,970

BRI A M@ 1 RN EATER,

Overdue loans are loans of which the principals or related interests are
overdue for one day or above.
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7.6 SIRIRREE

PR AAREIT BN AR TR R B EEEZRAAS 2B
ERRARREBNFEBTHERRED IR, BEAEENZHMNT:

(7.6) Loan impairment provision

The allowances for loans and advances measured at amortised cost are
measured according to the 12-month expected credit loss and lifetime

expected credit loss respectively. The movement of impairment provisions is

as follows:

2021

- E_MEK E=ME

Stage | Stage Il Stage IlI
KK 124A8 BN BAGEHERE &1t

TS Rk TREAE ARk ERARESRE™
12-month expected Lifetime expected Credit-impaired Total

credit loss credit loss financial assets

(Lifetime expected

credit loss)
2021 £ 1 81 B&E At 1 January 2021 633,874,579 165,762,745 70,747,875 870,385,199

2021 £ 1 B 1 HEFAEATE Opening balance on 1 January 2021
-EENEZNER Transfer to Stage Il (21,295,801) 21,295,801 - -
- NE=MNER Transfer to Stage IlI (13,715) - 13,715 -
- #EE S —NER Transfer to Stage | 71,766,207 (71,766,207) - -
AREITR 5 E Charge/(reverse) during the year 117,517,035 (40,237,866) 18,572,204 95,851,373
Recovery of loans and advances

W Bl MR A previously written off - - 2,505 2,505
SCRAR Exchange rate difference - - (1,011,000) (1,011,000)
ERRE Closing balance 801,848,305 75,054,473 88,325,299 965,228,077
2020

BB EHER E=E

Stage | Stage Il Stage |lI
KR 1248 BN EGEMERE ait

TS AR K TS AR K FERBESREA™
12-month expected Lifetime expected Credit-impaired Total

credit loss credit loss financial assets

(Lifetime expected

credit loss)
2020 1 B 1 HEH At 1 January 2020 647,273,129 68,696,762 64,768,941 780,738,832

2020 £ 1 B 1 HEFAEAE Opening balance on 1 January 2020

SEANEZNR Transfer to Stage |l (40,118,101) 40,118,101 - -
-ENEZME Transfer to Stage IlI (2,700,344) (1,923,607) 4,623,951 -
- O E—MER Transfer to Stage | 14,853,470 (14,853,470) - -
AEIHRE 5% M Charge/(reverse) during the year 14,566,425 73,724,959 156,464,179 244,755,563
REZH Writing off during the year - - (154,378,231) (154,378,231)
SCEREE Exchange rate difference - - (730,965) (730,965)
ERER Closing balance 633,874,579 165,762,745 70,747,875 870,385,199

Ew‘i&] 126 k#8947 (hE) HRAS 200 £EHRE

DA RGBT E BB A RS A KRS RN RRRIR LS
$RIBAN T 24 B THIE R A R BN SIS RRL S BT,
BRI

The allowance for loans and advances at fair value through other
comprehensive income are measured according to the 12-month expected
credit loss and lifetime expected credit loss respectively. The movement of
impairment provisions is as follows:

MR EZhE BN
Stage | Stage Il Stage |ll
Kk 124RH BANFEH BENFHHERE A1t
TS ARk TREAE AR K ERRBESRE™
12-month expected Lifetime expected Credit-impaired Total
credit loss credit loss financial assets

(Lifetime expected
credit loss)

2020412 A 31 8
2021412 A 31 H

At 31 December 2020
At 31 December 2021

26,917,763

9,484,937 - 36,402,700

8. HA AR 5

(8) Other debt instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income

31-12-2021 31-12-2020

FRBITERR E R Central Bank bills and government bonds
BRMRTEBWERTHES  Bondsissued by policy banks and commercial banks
Ak f Corporate bonds

[ERZE3: Negotiable certificate of deposits

Total amount of other debt instrument at fair value

HAb AR A S8 through other comprehensive income
MR R Accrued interest

Net value of other debt instrument at fair value
through other comprehensive income

HARBRAUR R IKEMNME

6,087,558,170 5,749,522,540

2,220,682,062 2,595,945,411
20,061,920 -

1,979,906,386 2,540,169,510

10,308,208,538 10,885,637,461

128,563,399 143,639,283

10,436,771,937 11,029,276,744

F200E 1283 HE2020E2H3INE, AATESPHEAENIE
BN —, BHERKL2ZANAAMBEARKITERELES,

KEFERAGE WS FHNGFIBLH N ART 51475157 7 (2020
£ RASTHART 3977050 T) , AELIFIAFMEES
g 35 5 A\ K ERIR S MOFIB S F N AR T 86536 T (2020 £: AR
20,285925 5¢)

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the Bank included all
other debt instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income
in Stage |, and measured the impairment losses based on expected credit
losses in the next 12 months (12-month ECL).

The amount of gains recognised in other comprehensive income in 2021
was RMB51,475,157 (2020: the amount of loss RMB33,977,050), and the
amount transferred from other comprehensive income to the current
profit was RMB86,536 (2020: RMB20,285,925).
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9. BlE &~ (9) Fixed assets 10. EABE = (10) Right-of-use assets
2021 2021
R E PARBEEE it BERERY BEWIR At
Motor vehicles ~ Office equipment and Total Properties and buildings Motor vehicles Total
computers
A : Cost:
B Cost:
20211818 At 1 January 2021 2,553,823 104,975,571 107,529,394 021 F1AA At1 January 2021 185,122,554 5857870 190,980,424
AL Additions 409,046 15,176,515 15,585,561 AREEIEN Additions 17,730,139 637,399 18,367,538
AEEBTIEHEAN (MHEL. 13.2) Transfer from construction in progress (Note 7.13.2) - 75,929 75,929 AER D Disposals (16,864,808) (2,583,063) (19,447,871)
AENE Disposals (480.778) (9,620,792) (10,101,570) 2021128311 At 31 December 2021 185,987,885 3,912,206 189,900,091
2021 €12 83118 At 31 December 2021 2,482,091 110,607,223 113,089,314
R Accumulated depreciation:
E-Sagiill=h Accumulated depreciation:
20211810 At 1 January 2021 66,096,869 2,808,852 68,905,721
202118 1H At 1 January 2021 2,074,404 75,525,444 77,599,848
AEitie Additions 156,854 12,176,269 12,333,123 AEITHR Additions 63,847,175 1,716,430 65,563,605
KENE Disposals (480,778) (9,225,655) (9,706,433) REFD Disposals (16,864,808) (2,583,063) (19,447,871)
20214127318 At 31 December 2021 1,750,480 78,476,058 80,226,538 2021412 31 A At 31 December 2021 113,079,236 1,942,219 115,021,455
BE R = ERST Net book value and net carrying amount ) 4
2021412 831 B At 31 December 2021 731,611 32,131,165 32,862,776 IKE B Net book value and net carrying amount
20211810 At 1 January 2021 119,025,685 3,049,018 122,074,703
2020 2021128318 At 31 December 2021 72,908,649 1,969,987 74,878,636
EHIEE DR EBERRE &It
Motor vehicles  Office equipment and Total
computers 2020
R Cost: . — .
R | BEER EHTR 2t
202018 1H At 1 January 2020 2,538,181 102,802,290 105,340,471 Properties and buildings Motor vehicles Total
AN Additions 416,095 8,819,633 9,235,728 RS Cost:
AEEBRIREEA (KEt£. 13.2) Transfer from construction in progress (Note 7.13.2) - 212,542 212,542 202041818 At 1 January 2020 101,474,258 6,615,644 108,089,902
KELNE Disposals (400,453) (6,858,894) (7,259,347)
P A ELEN Additions 132,198,878 2,600,166 134,799,044
20204 12 B 31 8 At 31 December 2020 2,553,823 104,975,571 107,529,394
KERD Disposals (48,550,582) (3,357,940) (51,908,522)
FitifIA: Accumulated depreciation:
200041518 At 1 January 2020 2,320,294 70,354,295 72,674,589 20204 12 831 8 At 31 December 2020 185,122,554 5,857,870 190,980,424
AEIHR Additions 154,563 11,877,651 12,032,214 Rit#rIA: Accumulated depreciation:
AELE Disposals (400,453) (6,706,502) (7,106,955) 20201818 At 1 January 2020 32,814,338 3,061,809 35,876,147
2020 % 12 B 31 At 31D 202 2,074,404 75,525,444 77,599,84
005127315 ¢ 31 December 2020 074,40 225 599,848 ARETR Additions 71,799,320 2,687,280 74,486,600
Bl E &= E R R Net book value and net carrying amount
2020 12 B 31 H At 31 December 2020 479,419 29,450,127 29,929,546 KERD Disposals (38,516,789) (2,940,237) (41,457,026)
2020 12 83118 At 31 December 2020 66,096,869 2,808,852 68,905,721
TKENE Net book value and net carrying amount
20201810 At 1 January 2020 68,659,920 3,553,835 72,213,755
2020 12 8311 At 31 December 2020 119,025,685 3,049,018 122,074,703

Ew’iﬁ 128 X#4RT (hE) ARAS 202 FEHE
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N ZTHE™ 2. BIEFTIFTLR

(1) Intangible assets (12) Deferred tax assets

2021 2020 2021
REEE Software BIERERA™ Deferred tax assets FEMRET REFTANBE KFITARHENA ERRE
Opening balance Credited/(Charged) Credited/ (Charged) Closing balance
to profit or loss to equity
Bt Cost or valuation: Allowance for impairment losses on loan
Wk AR E R RS and placement 195,556,193 (17,626,124) - 177,930,069
Allowance for impairment losses on other
FEHRT Opening balance 235,618,418 233,213,362 Hth &A=~ REES financial assets 5,015,845 17,708,069 - 22,723,914
itk Provisions 12,515,309 (987,555) - 11,527,754
iti A RMETEREEEFNITAE Unrealised profit or loss of financial assets
FEME Additions 6,910,127 804,782 EES NS FA AR SEIL at fair value through other comprehensive
bink= income (304,665) - (12,850,200) (13,154,865)
LTS TAARAMETHR Changes in fair value of derivatives (2,340,821) (56,401,913) - (58,742,734)
EBRIEEAN (ML, 13.2) Transfer from construction in progress (Note 7.13.2) 6,894,436 1,600,274
Hit A ANEITEBEHETE) Changes in fair value of other financial
TTALEMEA LB TAMZA  instruments at fair value through profit or
AMET loss (19,056,928) 17,540,948 - (1,515,980)
I Di | 386,337 -
REIE spos ( ) FRIRTTHRRS Payroll payables 4,607,512 253,745 - 4,861,257
TR % A Accrued liabilities 8,127,591 (2,135,794) - 5,991,797
FRRH Closing balance 249,036,644 235,618,418 Hith Others (1,181,465) (2,453,046) - (3,634,511)
&it Total 202,938,571 (44,101,670) (12,850,200) 145,986,701
Rt Accumulated amortisation:
2020
. ) BIEFRERAS™ Deferred tax assets FEMRE RETANBE KFITAREENA ERR
FHIKE R Opening balance 154,048,004 130,573,694 Opening balance Credited/(Charged) Credited/ (Charged) Closing balance
to profit or loss to equity
Allowance for impairment losses on loan
AREFITHR Additions 22,328,371 23,474,310 TRRIFARE LR KR and placement 134,825,257 60,730,936 - 195,556,193
Allowance for impairment losses on other
Hih SRR~ RIEES financial assets 2,211,979 2,803,866 - 5,015,845
AFRLE Disposals (386,337) - Wit stk Provisions 9,287,566 3,227,743 - 12,515,309
MAANMETEERETRITAE Unrealised profit or loss of financial assets
HLEES NS RA S~ HIARSEIL at fair value through other comprehensive
ERET Closing balance 175,990,038 154,048,004 ik income (13,897,115) - 13,592,450 (304,665)
LSBT AARAMETFIR Changes in fair value of derivatives (25,641,204) 23,300,383 - (2,340,821)
x > ; Hit A ANEITEBEHETSE) Changes in fair value of other financial
TR = A ER ST Net book value and net carrying amount 73,046,606 81,570,414 HALHIREMHSE TARMGZA  instruments at fair value through profit or
ANEZD loss 3,005,372 (22,062,300) - (19,056,928)
FMIRIRTITAERE Payroll payables 3,933,084 674,428 - 4,607,512
iR & A Accrued liabilities 4,453,793 3,673,798 - 8,127,591
Hfth Others (3,932,321) 2,750,856 - (1,181,465)
&it Total 114,246,411 75,099,710 13,592,450 202,938,571

- F,-I'Ei 130 X517 (hE) HREAS 2021 £FRE
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B2EETTRE (13.2) Construction in progress

2021 2020
FHET Opening balance 4,070,698 4,590,472
ZRELEN Additions 17,266,759 8,310,964
#EANBERT (FFEt. 9) Transfer to fixed assets (Note 7. 9) (75,929) (212,542)
BANLAE (KFEE. 11) Transfer to intangible assets (Note 7. 11) (6,894,436) (1,600,274)
ENKEEMER (MEE. 13.1) Transfer to long-term deferred expenses (Note 7. 13.1) (2,441,839) (218,090)
HENEIEHEA Transfer to administrative expenses (164,897) (6,799,832)
FERAGE Net closing balance 11,760,356 4,070,698
13.3 Hith i WS (13.3) Other receivables

2021 2020
R R 2R T Other receivable and prepayments 344,804,494 662,353,313
BEEE Allowance for impairment losses (1,638,030) (3,703,469)
FEREE Net value 343,166,464 658,649,844

MW EREAHMTBEOEN R FEEREERI, MR RO

Other receivable and prepayments mainly include items in the process of

MKER AT FI N T - clearing and settlement. The aging analysis is as follows:

et Aging 31-12-2021 31-12-2020
1EMRE Within 1 year 318,592,092 625,475,112
124 1-2 years 2,390,689 14,724,448
2-3F 2-3 years 2,792,301 6,065,850
SEPE More than 3 years 21,029,412 16,087,903
Nt Sub-total 344,804,494 662,353,313
e BEAEE Less: allowance for impairment losses (1,638,030) (3,703,469)
&it Total 343,166,464 658,649,844

13. Hith s~ (13) Other assets
B SE

Notes 31-12-2021 31-12-2020
KHASHHEA Long-term deferred expenses 13.1 56,048,880 66,444,842
EREIRE Construction in process 13.2 11,760,356 4,070,698
HAth Ry Uk Other receivables 13.3 343,166,464 658,649,844
FRNEH BRI ERBIRBE  Input VAT to be verified and VAT retained 70,748,949 133,849,490
&3 Total 481,724,649 863,014,874

BIKEFMER (13.1) Long-term deferred expenses
2021
AANBERFBRIS Hith it
Leasehold improvement Others Total
FHERI Opening balance 60,098,179 6,346,663 66,444,842
A EEN Additions 1,786,435 . 1,786,435
REFBTIREAN (BE+L. 13.2)  Transfer from construction in progress (Note 7.13.2) 2,441,839 - 2,441,839
KENE Disposal (15,490) - (15,490)
REWEH Amortisation (11,929,739) (2,679,007) (14,608,746)
ERRE Closing balance 52,381,224 3,667,656 56,048,880
2020
HAANBERTHRIE Hith &It
Leasehold improvement Others Total
ENEI Opening balance 76,979,996 7,612,817 84,592,813
RN Additions 227,673 1,429,631 1,657,304
AREGEZTIREEAN (HE+L. 13.2)  Transfer from construction in progress (Note 7.13.2) 218,090 - 218,090
KENE Disposal (577,810) - (577,810)
AR Amortisation (16,749,770) (2,695,785) (19,445,555)
e ] Closing balance 60,098,179 6,346,663 66,444,842
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2021 £ & For the year ended 31 December 2021
(BR45HIERASN, MBI ARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

HAN R IZR 12 /> B ERRARENFEATRERRKIHE
REASE, BREESNEHET:

The impairment provisions are measured according to the 12-month expected

credit loss and lifetime expected credit loss. The movement of allowance for

impairment losses is as follows:

2021
B EMER BE=MER
Stage | Stage |l Stage |lI
KX 12 HBREERBRE BANFEHTHGERHRK ENFEHERERR &1t
HIESRA™
12-month expected credit loss Lifetime expected credit loss  Credit-impaired financial assets Total
(Lifetime expected credit loss)
FENERI Opening Balance 3,703,469 - - 3,703,469
R4 [E] Reverse during the year (2,065,439) - (103,304) (2,168,743)
4= Recovery of other receivables
FERE previously written off - - 103,304 103,304
FEREM Ending Balance 1,638,030 - - 1,638,030
2020
B EMER BE=MER
Stage | Stage Il Stage Il
A3k 12 B TEE AR BN FEHTHGERRK BENFEHERERGR A1t
HIE SRR =
12-month expected credit loss Lifetime expected credit loss  Credit-impaired financial assets Total
(Lifetime expected credit loss)
FENEI Opening Balance 1,569,849 - - 1,569,849
KRETHR Accrual during the year 2,133,620 - - 2,133,620
FEREM Ending Balance 3,703,469 - - 3,703,469
14. Bk B Eth & Bt M A TE A= IR (14) Due to banks and other financial institutions
31-12-2021 31-12-2020

FRRITRE LR H A SRANETH
BIMRITR A7
AT

&it

Due to domestic banks and other financial institutions

Due to overseas banks
Interest payable

Total

1,770,957,679
173,226,751

2,087,270

1,363,681,736
258,906,568

2,008,321

1,946,271,700

1,624,596,625

5 FENEE

(15) Placements from banks and other financial institutions

31-12-2021

31-12-2020

FRARTELHFAREAN
BSMRITRIWIFAR BN
ISAR DS,

&it

Placements from domestic banks
Placements from overseas banks
Interest payable

Total

2,069,448,500
9,852,710,798

92,805,926

1,663,122,500
14,852,172,958

76,834,474

12,014,965,224

16,592,129,932

134 X817 (PE) ARAT 202 £ERE

16. X B SRR

(16) Financial liabilities held-for-trading

31-12-2021

31-12-2020

AR METEBEETHIT N LSRR Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

LB
CEIN
ZHEKE
AR
#it

Placement from banks and other financial institutions
Repurchase agreements

Interest payable

6,716,486,197

180,148,501

3,113,977

3,504,079,654

135,040,725

5,111,739

Total

6,899,748,675

3,644,232,118

17. 32 H & Bh BT = 5K

(17) Repurchase agreements

31-12-2021 31-12-2020
RIERY K. Classified by collateral:
S HES Financial Bond 1,190,000,000 466,000,000
NAAFE Interest payable 494,609 69,704
&it Total 1,190,494,609 466,069,704
18. R 1ESr (18) Customer deposits
31-12-2021 31-12-2020

EHRTERR
ATEF
NI

it
NEEP
NI

Nt

REASF B

ait

Current deposits:
Corporate customers

Individual customers

17,104,694,702

970,968,328

12,542,347,375

1,283,471,504

Sub-total

18,075,663,030

13,825,818,879

Time deposits:
Corporate customers

Individual customers

22,244,327,659

1,202,705,826

20,681,490,574

1,753,377,457

Sub-total

23,447,033,485

22,434,868,031

Interest payable

190,051,494

202,461,785

Total

41,712,748,009

36,463,148,695
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19. [ {4 BR T

(19) Payroll payables

31-12-2021 31-12-2020
E3RER Amount unpaid
TR, &, 2IFHG Salary, bonus, subsidy and allowance 131,192,966 84,663,483
HLRE R Social insurance 2,457,510 2,688,118
EEARE Housing fund - _
TG HFMRTBBEEY Labour union expenditure and staff education fee - N
B ERFITR Defined contribution plan 21,986,159 16,692,797
Hr: ERFERES Of which: Pension fund 4,256,560 851,749
B e 2 o Annuity 17,729,599 15,841,048
&it Total 155,636,635 104,044,398
2021 2020
ISAR £ Amount payable
TIH. B&. EMEMAL Salary, bonus, subsidy and allowance 562,046,332 575,975,628
HERE Social insurance 28,284,048 21,581,474
FEARE Housing fund 28,632,066 28,889,242
TISRZBMRTHER S Labour union expenditure and staff education fee 4,475,582 3,695,463
BERTFITR Defined contribution plan 62,152,599 27,947,749
Hr: BEARFEREH Of which: Pension fund 39,696,550 4,010,129
A FEL L8R Annuity 22,456,049 23,937,620
Hth5RZTHXNFER Other staff related expenses 14,499,350 17,999,393
&t Total 700,089,977 676,088,949
20. M3z F1 28 (20) Tax payables
31-12-2021 31-12-2020
HEER Value added tax 25,466,334 24,694,499
PR AR Tax surcharges 3,047,746 2,981,437
RS F Corporate income tax 16,176,790 79,510,300
RANARERLITR Withholding tax 26,757,644 29,168,540
ity Others 247,523 522,165
,S.,H, Total 71,696,037 136,876,941

136 X817 (PE) ARAT 202 £ERE

21. 5%

(21) Debt securities issued

31-12-2021 31-12-2020

SRR Financial bond

TRRAR Tier-two capital bond

ENZe3: Negotiable certificates of deposit
&t Total

- 1,034,426,909
1,003,792,375 1,003,283,794

716,639,054 -

1,720,431,429 2,037,710,703

T2 2 B3 H, EHAGRERAMTITHET:

As at 31 December 2021, the amount of debt securities issued listed below:

R{7BH 5155 HABR RITEM RERTT RETRFE AEEE/ ZHFR FRRD

Issue date Tenor Issue amount Issue amount during Accrued interest Repayment Closing balance
the year

2019/11/15 10 ££ (10 years) 1,000,000,000 - 48,000,000 (48,000,000) 1,003,792,375

200 N B 15 BRITNE - ZEALRET 10 FHEEFRMRS,

mEIARTI0 T, EEAEL 8%, BEMFE—

Ko KITHEM

BRXFHETANERES S FRETER —RMEHD S

Bl AH .

KRBT 200 EFEAEERTETHRT7PARTRALEFE, @

EHAARTI00 T, MELTT,

AABRMRFRAHIERAS, FIE, HEERRAEAER,

The tier-two capital bond issued on 15 November 2019 is a 10-year bond with

RMBI0O0 par value and interest is paid annually at a fixed rate of 4.8 per cent

per annum. The bond is redeemable at par at the option of the Bank, in part

or in whole, at the end of the 5" year subject to the relevant conditions.

Seven negotiable certificates of deposit were issued in 2021. The par value

was RMBI00 and the interest rate was zero.

The Bank did not default on any principal, interest or redemption amounts

with respect to its debt securities issued.
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22. fiit S

(22) Provisions

2021 2020
BERKIERSERBEES: Allowance for impairment losses on loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts:
FENEI Opening balance 50,061,234 37,150,266
ARE CFZD ) 8N (Decrease)/increase during the year (3,950,218) 12,910,968
EREE Closing balance 46,111,016 50,061,234

ERXERMFERIEZR 2B MHEARIEBNFEHTHE
AR R EES, REEENEHMNT:

impairment losses are as follows:

The allowance for impairment losses on loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts are measured according to the 12-month expected
credit loss and lifetime expected credit loss. The movement of allowance for

3. fAER G

(23) Lease liabilities

31-12-2021 31-12-2020
BERERD Properties and buildings 71,139,950 115,247,157
ZHTE Motor vehicles 2,067,805 3,185,820
it Total 73,207,755 118,432,977
24, Bith fafx (24) Other liabilities
31-12-2021 31-12-2020
FEEREESRM Settlement and clearing 518,112,200 448,401,762
NATIT RGRES 3 IT system service fee 54,918,061 51,713,238
iR %A Accrued expense 20,099,282 21,502,725
HIERIR Renovation payable 1,435,737 632,865
Hfh Others 35,040,980 60,952,909
ait Total 629,606,260 583,203,499
25. SEU A Z (25) Paid-up capital
SEM R SR A Paid-up capital 31-12-2021 31-12-2020
ZEART EEART
RMB equivalent % RMB equivalent %
KIERFTER/AS]  United Overseas Bank Limited 5,500,000,000 100 5,500,000,000 100

2021

E—BER FEZE =B

Stage | Stage Il Stage Il
AEK124MA B BONFEHERE ‘it

FAE ARk THAE AR ERRESRA
12-month expected Lifetime expected Credit-impaired financial assets Total

credit loss credit loss (Lifetime expected credit loss)
20211 B 1 H &8 Opening balance 39,748,390 6,832,673 3,480,171 50,061,234
ARFEHR /(@) Accrued/(Reverse) 2,146,949 (6,097,167) - (3,950,218)
ERET Closing balance 41,895,339 735,506 3,480,171 46,111,016
2020

B B FE=HER

Stage | Stage Il Stage Il
AEK124MAH BN 75 BOFSEHERE ‘it

THAE ARk THAE RR L ERRESRA
12-month expected Lifetime expected Credit-impaired financial assets Total

credit loss credit loss (Lifetime expected credit loss)
20201 B 1 H &3 Opening balance 33,207,230 462,865 3,480,171 37,150,266
REITHR Accrued 6,541,160 6,369,808 - 12,910,968
FEREH Closing balance 39,748,390 6,832,673 3,480,171 50,061,234

- F,-I'Ei 138 X517 (hE) HRAT] 2021 £FRE

EFRINBAACH EBRESITIMESFRIE, FHT 200566725
HER T FERET (2015) 5 073 SEHERE.

26. WAATR

REDNRAEKXABARBMA LIRS, KEAKROIAATYT, M
HEHBRMD AT ANARLIRORE,

The above paid-up capital has been verified by Shanghai Nortex Certified
Public Accounts Co., Ltd., and the Capital Verification Report No 073 of
Shanghai Nortex (2015) was issued on 25 June 2015.

(26) Capital reserve
In exchange for employee service, the Bank runs a share-based compensation

program which is equity settled with a corresponding charge to the capital
reserve.
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27. Bt &I
R nfERPEMEERERREH:

(27) Other comprehensive income

Accumulated balance of other comprehensive income in the balance sheet:

28. BARNIR

(28) Surplus reserves

2021 2020
R TR FEVIRT Opening balance 138,385,488 127,512,353
1-1-2021 Increase/(decrease) 31-12-2021
ANEEHN Increase 33,290,248 10,873,135
A RMEITFE B HEZEITA Change in the fair value of debt investments
HMGEREANFRS TRIRA atfair value through other comprehensive FRER Closing balance 171,675,736 138,385,488
NARMEZE income 913,994 38,550,600 39,464,594
MAnRMEitE BETFIT A Credit impairment losses of debt — . _ - N e . , .
ﬁ@ﬁ@!&gifﬁgiggﬁ vastmonto at fair valuo through other RIBATEMAN T ERIIE, HE2022F3H25HEERRIL, AccordlnAg to the Company Law of the PRC and the Bank's Articles
ERRKEE comprehensive income 1,277,624 27,292,891 28,570,515 RATEEFEN 0% BB EERSARS ., 2ERAATRR 5 of Association, accompanied with resolution passed by the Board of
. = sans Directors on 25 March 2022, the Bank has appropriated 10 per cent of its
ARREPEMAEAR 50% X LR, TTARFRE, '
&it Total 2,191,618 65,843,491 68,035,109 = net profit to the statutory surplus reserves. The Bank should appropriate
R until the reserve balance reaches 50 per cent of its registered capital or
APEERBZEERFARER, TRRERREARE, £iE
’ R ° - ’ above.
B L ERBRRARETR TR FEESRIEMR AR, RERATF)
1-1-2020 | /(d 31-12-2020 A A BE S S
nerease/ldecrease) EFRIUMRN, XEEIRBREBRRARE, After the statutory surplus reserves are appropriated, the Bank may
MARMEITTEBEHEZFNIT A Change in the fair value of debt investments appropriate discretionary surplus reserves. Discretionary surplus reserves
Hithiz & M B1%5 TRIH at fair value through other comprehensive can be used to compensate for the accumulated losses of previous years
o ;
DANETH income 41,691,345 (40,777,351) 913,994 or convert to capital upon approval. It has been determined by the Board
MARMETEEETFHITA Credit impairment losses of debt of Directors of the Bank that no discretionary surplus reserves are to be
> . .
HthG AW AR S TRIZE investments at fair value through other appropriated this year.
ERRRESE comprehensive income 1,197,505 80,119 1,277,624
Ait Total 42,888,850 (40,697,232) 2,191,618 29. — R\ BE ARG (29) General reserves
FlEFR RS N EAE £ 7 Other comprehensive income in the income statement: 2021 2020
o e - . P, N VISEN Opening balance 849,267,920 816,675,492
RS A A AS S R FEB BEeH FER pening
AUl LN R
Before tax Less: Transfer to Less: Income Tax After tax AL Increase 29,007,929 32,592,428
2021 profit or loss
ERRE Closing balance 878,275,849 849,267,920
A S ETTE BEEE ST Change in the fair value of debt investments
HihG AR MRS TRERRE atfair value through other comprehensive
ARYEZEF income 51,487,336 (86,536) (12,850,200) 38,550,600 ARNSEREBIM 4 2012120 S (£t bV AZSITIREIEE) B According to the regulation Caijin [2012] No 20 Ffinancial institution
WA AHME B BHEFHHA Credit impairment losses of debt HE, MBEFERIZREN ERETREEZEAFRSKIM 5% ML provision measurement Guideline, the Bank is required to set aside general
Hihx AWz H1ES T EEH investments at fair value through other HHE R ESE, ENFES AR, AASIHRIE 20243 g 25  reserves of at least 1.5 per cent of its total risk assets at year end from net
ERREES comprehensive income 36,390,521 - (9,097,630) 27,292,891 AfEEL R, ER—B R AT ART 29007929 7T, —B K, profit. The Bank appropriated general reserve amounting to RMB29,007,929
5 " . ’ ding to the resolution passed by the Board of Directors on 25 March
; B A B AN K B KBS 3 = HAAR R A 1.5% accor
ait fotal 87,871,857 (86,536) (21,947,830) 65,843,491 N o7 2022 and the amount has been up to 1.5 per cent of its total risk assets.
BI€ B I AR MRS B OFTER B =E]
AU LN R
Before tax Less: Transfer to Less: Income Tax After tax
2020 profit or loss
AR ETEBEZEIT A Change in the fair value of debt investments
HihG AR MHES TREHRE at fair value through other comprehensive
NARINMEZET income (34,083,876) (20,285,925) 13,592,450 (40,777,351)
A RMEITEBEERITA Credit impairment losses of debt
Hhx AWz HES T EEH investments at fair value through other
EHREESE comprehensive income 106,826 - (26,707) 80,119
Ait Total (33,977,050) (20,285,925) 13,565,743 (40,697,232)
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30. RO EFIE

(30) Retained earnings

2021 2020

FEFEFERRDEH Retained earnings brought forward 548,490,064 483,224,277
T Net profit for the year 332,902,472 108,731,350
B REBGEEREATR Less: Appropriation to statutory surplus reserves (33,290,248) (10,873,135)
IRE—AR XS A Less: Appropriation to general reserves (29,007,929) (32,592,428)
FERKRECFE Closing balance of retained earnings 819,094,359 548,490,064

RIE (PEARKAMEASE) RAASNATER, KASFHE
() BEREHSTE Q) RHMAEIEESH: () #BUE
ERRANE: (1) BR—BHREAS () RRAERBRLAREE,
TUFENER R RARER, —BREASERERESHIRRL
BIEFEEREMNIIRT, HEAADNEREZRE., HEFER
EHRANSNEERRE, FEEEZER. UWERARAEMBE XL
BREMEE,

31. 7 2B

According to the Company Law of the PRC and the Articles of Association
of the Bank, the profit of the Bank can only be distributed to shareholders
after (1) fulfilling all tax responsibilities; (2) compensating any accumulated
losses; (3) making appropriation to statutory surplus reserves; (4) making
appropriation to the general reserves; (5) making appropriation to
discretionary surplus reserves. The appropriation ratios of the general
reserves and surplus reserves are decided by the Bank's Board of Directors
in compliance with relevant regulations. The profit appropriation is
decided by the Board of Directors of the Bank, with reference to the
operating performance, financial positions, and other relevant factors.

(31) Net interest income

2021 2020
FSBIN Interest income:
TR AR E L Due from and placement with banks and other financial institutions 113,954,499 133,343,731
TR RET Deposit with the Central Bank 55,672,971 54,036,017
R FRFN =R Loans and advances to customers 1,604,933,622 1,605,760,451
INIRERE Reverse repurchase financial assets — bonds 23,038,447 58,013,598
RERELFS Bond and negotiable certificate of deposits 294,627,058 304,188,978
it Sub-total 2,092,226,597 2,155,342,775
FIEIH: Interest expense:
B\ & H &y ER Due to and placement from banks and other financial institutions 248,801,190 303,140,513
Ulieey Customer deposits 657,740,939 735,978,487
mERENFE Bond and negotiable certificate of deposits 70,833,195 119,544,196
FHERRK Lease liabilities 3,568,032 5,059,618
It Sub-total 980,943,356 1,163,722,814
F BRI Net interest income 1,111,283,241 991,619,961

Ew‘i&] 142 X447 (hE) HRAS 200 FERE

32. FEBRAEHFBN

(32) Net fees and commission income

2021 2020
FHHERAEEN: Fees and commission income:
EESEEFEHE Settlement and clearing fees 32,039,881 23,795,527
RIBA S F 58 Agency brokerage fees 12,829,743 18,193,574
EHKEFEH Credit commitment fees 54,151,273 49,242,214
SRR CES S ON Credit related income 47,338,880 51,297,661
TEREMZIRLSHE Commissions of trusteeship and others 62,019,036 46,240,205
Hh Others 3,681,345 4,615,334
INTF Sub-total 212,060,158 193,384,515
FEERASIH: Fees and commission expense:
FaEEHTH Fee expenses 47,999,761 50,505,904
INTF Sub-total 47,999,761 50,505,904
FHEHEREESEEAN Net fees and commission income 164,060,397 142,878,611
3. R R (33) Investment income

2021 2020
TTHESHMTEESMAEHZ  Net realised (loss)/gain on derivatives (39,967,146) 119,246,330
EEREVFEEZASKE  Netrealised gain on bond and negotiable certificate of deposits 65,072,094 42,540,591
Hith Others 16,058,856 18,794,993
&it Total 41,163,804 180,581,914
M. N RMET SRR (34) Gain//(Loss) from changes in fair values

2021 2020
TTEEGVSWAN - ARMEZFHZE  Changes of fair value of derivatives 223,636,584 (100,709,297)
THUEHMNGE-EANES Financial liabilities- held-for-trading-gold borrowing (24,547,214) 25,187,016
X HHERh G- SZH E Financial liabilities-Repurchase agreements (107,776) (40,726)
RMERRELR - BHES Loans and advances to customers-gold lending 22,744,865 (25,680,361)
T HHERART Financial assets held-for-trading (73,357,452) 93,892,092
ait Total 148,369,007 (7,351,276)
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35 i C iR (35) Foreign exchange gain/(loss) 39. FriBFi R H (39) Income tax expenses
C RIS AIEINT X S EC R T ;T iR U RINCETHE SR T Foreign exchange gain/(loss) includes gain/(loss) of foreign business 5021 2020
B fpiRgs., related to the changes of exchange rate and gain/(loss) arising from
derivative financial instruments. LEAFREH Current income tax 30,514,004 73,609,248
1% FEPT ISR Deferred income tax expenses 35,004,040 (75,126,417)
36. Hib g i (36) Other income Ait Total 65,518,044 (1,517,169)
2021 2020
5152548 % B BUFANED Income-related on government subsidies 2,316,243 3,434,635 e s B S FE RN E R RO T: The reconciliation of income tax expenses to profit before tax is as follows:
#it Total 2,316,243 3,434,635 021 2020
BRTFE Profit before tax 398,420,516 107,214,181
37. M35 R EIE SR (37) General and administrative expenses Bk R 25% T ERER Tax charge on a tax rate at 25 per cent 99,605,129 26,803,546
2021 2020 3T BT EA B BT A 1A 2 Adjustment in respect of prior periods 476,415 27,908
RI%HA Staff costs 700,089,977 676,088,949 ERERF 2N Tax-free interest income of government bonds (44,154,684) (37,255,680)
rIR% Depreciation 77,896,728 86,518,814 RN 2 Non-deductible items 9,591,184 8,907,057
TR B = HE R Amortisation of intangible assets 22,328,371 23,474,310 FraRi Income tax expenses 65,518,044 (1,517,169)
KEATF M 2R A s % Amortisation of long-term deferred expenses 14,608,746 19,445,555
&M Other operating expenses 234,030,475 232,253,446
& Total 1,048,954,297 1,037,781,074
38. [ERIR{ERR (38) Credit impairment losses
2021 2020
I RER TR TR B $7 5 Impairment losses for deposit with the Central Bank 158,798 (183,861)
W E R ER L Impairment losses for due from banks and other financial institutions (2,812,857) 9,413,603
FIE R ER & Impairment losses for placements with banks 9,030,023 (1,386,400)
WHOREIR % Impairment losses for loans 132,254,073 244,755,563
ERKIERER K Impairment losses for credit commitment (3,950,218) 12,910,968
Impairment losses for other debt instrument at fair value through
HfHEPUE R RE IR & other comprehensive income (12,179) 106,826
LNBRESRA S RIERE Impairment losses for reverse repurchase financial assets (134,989) (148,285)
HtR =R ER % Impairment losses for other assets (2,168,743) 2,133,620
A1t Total 132,363,908 267,602,034
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40. I&mERINTER (40) Supplementary information for the statement of cash flows 1. MERMEENY (47) Cash and cash equivalent

i FEPT SRR /(3EhN)

EzE=N e IvAl eTI=E: op |

LE MY E AN

ZEENTENIASRERN

Decrease /(increase) in deferred tax assets/liabilities

Increase in operating receivables

Increase in operating payables

Net cash flows from operating activities

35,004,040

(980,649,828)

4,965,856,731

(75,126,417)

(692,141,067)

1,715,464,074

3,964,276,784

1,095,492,172

. RERAEENMHLTHESR.

Net change in cash and cash equivalents:

WEHNERKM Cash on hand at end of year 2,039,982 4,163,644
B MENENEI Less: Cash on hand at beginning of year 4,163,644 6,161,298

i REENDHERRE

B REENMNFNRE

RERREEFNYSEM /(D) BN

Add: Cash equivalents at end of year

Less: Cash equivalents at beginning of year

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

14,685,755,626

10,575,973,329

10,575,973,329

10,961,925,974

4,107,658,635

(387,950,299)

Ew‘i&] 146 X#4847 (hE) HRAS 200 £EHRE

. BRI RERBHIRRERTORM, T 20204127830
B &SN PR I MR AR T R B9 B3 £ 307782 47, RIRETR
HARRSEEI A1 E3 4 T 20214612 A 31 R T A9 IR FIBER D 0,

2021 2020 31-12-2021 31-12-2020
1. BEAEATAZEETHININERE: 1. Recondiliation of net profit to cash flows from operating activities: w4 Cash 2,039,982 4,163,644
n . ; .
HAE Net proﬁt 332,902,472 108,731,350 MEENY - Cash equivalents:
FEBRE=A AK With original maturity less than three months
ERBEREL Credit impairment loss 132,363,908 267,602,034
TFE sk Due from banks and other financial institutions 3,370,903,425 3,487,356,308
EER4TIR Fixed assets depreciation 12,333,123 12,032,214 FHES Placements with banks and other financial institutions 7,032,532,563 3,628,910,218
ERRE IR Right-of-use assets depreciation 65,563,605 74,486,600 ENRE SR = Reverse repurchase financial assets 1,432,091,000 2,271,360,000
HEES Gold lending - 27,499,014
TR Amortisation expenses for intangible assets 22,328,371 23,474,310
REREBVFERE (MNEXBE=4FREH) Bond and negotiable certificate of deposit investments
KRBT 2 PSS Amortisation for long-term deferred expenses 14,608,746 19,445,555 (tenor within three months from purchase date) 149,793,350 648,072,570
TFI R RER T H Ab 3R Other deposits with the Central Bank 2,700,435,288 512,775,219
WEBERT / Ht KRS RE Losses on disposal of fixed assets and other long-term assets 320,391 (3,991)
N Sub-total 14,685,755,626 10,575,973,329
Interest expenses of bond, negotiable certificates of deposit
fid5. ELFRREE GRS and lease liabilities 74,401,227 124,603,814 &3t Total 14,687,795,608 10,580,136,973
NRAMET SIS (Gain)/loss from changes in fair value (148,369,007) 7,351,276
BRKE Investment income (432,190,208) (368,039,062) 42. R fF (42) Share-based compensation plans
ST Foreign exchange loss/(gain) (130,196,787) (122,388,518) AN SHRN AR S FERH MR Z M AT Y AR ZEEDYA  Share-based compensation plans of the Bank comprise the Restricted

Share Plan and the Share Appreciation Rights Plan. All shares involved are
the shares of UOB. As at 31 December 2021, the number of outstanding
grants of Restricted Shares was 307,782, the remaining contractual period
of 1-3 years. As at 31 December 2021, the number of outstanding grants of
Share Appreciation Rights was zero.
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N, FEBIRE

RAERBATAREN, EEERRATBREFERE T HER
T s, FERTLSIM. FREFUSHMREML SR
RALIME 4 NMREDH. SMREDBHEMAOL S, £
HARBMFRNFE S, KA EEREREHH IR MY &
EEMNAERHEERR. FiMlksx,

KATREDBHERLSFWT:

R RITAL S5 5370
EMEXGWVRESERTR. RHRE. THRS. BEEHE, SNC
IEREFERRS,

FERITUS 2
EPMAFFREEBIARR. FRERE. BT RS DPAEY
REFMLHREFRS.
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8. Segment Information

The Bank is organised into four different operating segments, namely
wholesale banking, retail banking, global markets, and others and
unallocated based on internal organisational structure, management
requirement and internal reporting system. Every reporting segment,
which is individual business segment, provides different products and
services. Management periodically reviews the financial information of the
segments to determine resource allocation and performance assessment.

The main businesses of the segments are as follows:

Wholesale Banking

The wholesale banking segment provides products and services such
as corporate loans, trade financing, deposit-taking activities, fund
management, foreign exchange services, etc.

Retail Banking

The retail banking segment provides products and services such as retail
loans, deposit-taking activities, bank cards, wealth management and
remittance services, etc.

Global Markets (GM)

The GM segment is responsible for conducting inter-bank placements,
repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions and bond investments in
the inter-bank market, and dealing foreign exchanges, precious metals and
interest rate related derivatives, etc.

Others and unallocated

This segment represents the assets, liabilities, income and expenses that
are not directly attributable or cannot be allocated on a reasonable basis
to any of the above segments.

In order to assess the performance of the segments and allocate
resources, management will periodically review the assets, liabilities,
income, expenses and financial performance of the segments, and such
information is prepared on the following basis:

Segment assets mainly include financial assets, tangible assets, intangible
assets and other long-term assets which are attributable to the segments,
while segment liabilities mainly include deposits, borrowings and other
payables which are attributable to the segments.

Segment financial performance refers to income generated by each
segment (including external and inter-segment income), deducted by
direct cost (including depreciation and amortisation pertaining to the
assets allocated to the segments), indirect cost allocated based on
occupation of resources and asset impairment losses. Transactions
between segments are priced at similar terms as external transactions.

1 aEpl s, HE RS

(1) Segment profit and loss, assets and liabilities

2021
AR TERTLSE K& F Hithlh X% &it
KOBEWE
Wholesale Retail Banking GM Others and Total
Banking unallocated

—. Bl 1. Operating income 1,011,902,980 179,471,692 215,134,106 191,032,618 1,597,541,396
Fl2FBA Net interest income 773,518,535 107,364,661 (13,884,678) 244,284,723 1,111,283,241
Hrh: X9NFLEEIN Of which: External interest income 755,466,971 209,859,329 326,963,150 (181,006,209) 1,111,283,241
A EREF BN Internal interest income 18,051,564 (102,494,668) (340,847,828) 425,290,932 -
FEHERASEEAN Net fee and commission income 125,110,730 66,620,785 (41,226,856) 13,555,738 164,060,397
HAth A Other net income 113,273,715 5,486,246 270,245,640 (66,807,843) 322,197,758
. BlXxH 2. Operating expenses (537,906,899) (174,896,627) (134,777,651) (349,351,501)  (1,196,932,678)
He: ERRERX Of which: Credit impairment losses (55,794,359) 9,550,015 - (86,119,564) (132,363,908)

=, BN 3. Net non-operating income/
(expenses) 124,008 1,876,005 9 (4,188,224) (2,188,202)
M. FEETAE 4.  Profit before tax 474,120,089 6,451,070 80,356,464 (162,507,107) 398,420,516
I, ITHSHEEA 5. Depreciation and amortisation 21,911,111 18,609,873 1,726,935 72,585,926 114,833,845
N, BAXH 6. Capital expenditure 3,198,884 2,765,578 514,632 35,063,138 41,542,232
. AERE 7. Total assets 36,730,302,002 4,823,078,184 37,281,048,116 (614,308,978) 78,220,119,324
J\. IfREE 8. Total liabilities 41,265,998,557 2,224,679,131  19,007,560,131 8,266,126,118 70,764,363,937

2020
HERELS BEEGLE  AREMLS  HHUSE sit
AAEETHE
Wholesale Retail Banking GM Others and Total
Banking unallocated

—. BWIEA 1. Operating income 913,379,785 172,819,853 189,649,200 157,703,525 1,433,552,363
FEIDSRES ON Net interest income 681,429,534 107,654,631 9,590,355 192,945,441 991,619,961
He: S 2% Of which: External interest income 674,283,529 228,592,031 358,793,546 (270,049,145) 991,619,961
P EEISeE N Internal interest income 7,146,005 (120,937,400) (349,203,191) 462,994,586 -
FEHRAEFERAN Net fee and commission income 126,705,228 57,561,052 (44,031,191) 2,643,522 142,878,611
Heth# A Other net income 105,245,023 7,604,170 224,090,036 (37,885,438) 299,053,791
—. Bl 2. Operating expenses (644,232,881) (230,462,497) (119,968,927) (325,421,601)  (1,320,085,906)
He: EHBERS Of which: Credit impairment losses (210,272,500) 10,983,609 - (68,313,143) (267,602,034)

=, BELSNEX 3. Net non-operating income/
(expenses) (399,921) (5,240,481) 1 (611,875) (6,252,276)
. FETHE 4.  Profit before tax 268,746,983 (62,883,125) 69,680,274 (168,329,951) 107,214,181
. ASHESEA 5. Depreciation and amortisation 19,995,810 33,969,088 1,767,419 73,706,362 129,438,679
N BARXH 6. Capital expenditure 463,375 262,213 1,718,968 12,336,291 14,780,847
+. BFERT 7. Total assets 34,976,961,017 5,704,907,253  39,461,051,278 344,623,042 80,487,542,590
N\, EEH 8. Total liabilities 34,802,359,884  3,108,556,236 22,428,694,275 13,092,260,056 73,431,870,451
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2. HipfER
(1) HIEER
WHNE WA\ RIZBE FAED AEM AR ERNNERSHX,

AR BEREX T RAE KIG A INE WA /() B(E
BanT:

XSNEWBIA /()

External operation income/(expense)

(2) Other information

(1) External operation income by geography
External operation income is distributed to respective countries and
regions by their geography locations. The external operation income/

(expense) which divided by different geography locations is shown as
follows:

2021 2020

BR Domestic
F5h Overseas
&1t Total

1,502,910,522 2,177,115,078

94,630,874 (743,562,715)

1,597,541,396 1,433,552,363

THREMGRR, AASRERERIMIERNE,
Q) FEEFER

EERRAT BRNA AN ET B ARTHHA RS A KS
BB, AATETERT AR W ERE ST BBADA
R 17725 (2020 £F: AR 200 258) , &ANTRHK
FBBNAI % (2020 FEE: 12%)

5‘F§ﬁﬂ 150 K@4RFT (hE) HIRAE 202 EERE

The Bank does not have any non-current asset held outside Mainland China
as at the balance sheet date.

(2) Major customers' information

Among loans and advances to customers measured at amortised cost
and fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income
amounting to RMB177 million comes from top 10 largest corporate
loan customers (2020: RMB200 million), which contributed 11 per cent
of the total loan interest income for the year (2020:12 per cent).

R, RERIFHME

9. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

1. W& &g (1) Commitments
RARMI A Capital commitments 31-12-2021 31-12-2020
EHAERELN Approved but not contracted 1,669,485 _
EEAERKMT Contracted but not provided for - 8,019,282
/it Total 1,669,485 8,019,282
2 (EEARE (2) Credit commitments

31-12-2021 31-12-2020

2,517,539,798
1,925,481,962
6,599,277,918
1,397,501,025

218,633,694

1,536,186,471
1,077,626,332
5,530,545,339

346,850,487

693,611,228

12,658,434,397 9,184,819,857

T EBRE R Financial guarantee contracts:

RITREICE Banker's acceptance

REBEFI Letter of guarantee

#RBERIE Standby letter of credit

FFH BDEAS FIE Letter of credit, at sight

FFH i £A4E FIIE Letter of credit, usance

INTF Sub-total

A R SRR « Irrevocable loan commitments with original maturity of:

FEIBBEAE 1 R E

More than one year

Nt Sub-total
&3t Total

1,424,261,400 2,285,556,679

1,424,261,400 2,285,556,679

14,082,695,797 11,470,376,536

ERABENERREINEH

Weighted credit risk of credit commitments

6,487,881,153 4,764,764,603

MEEREFAFHERMER, —BEEFARESIEAFITNER
BERSABEBTANEXSE, RITBBTERRIE.

RRKERIERASDEENERKRNT FRBEAEBITRAKE,
RAFKE RS EERIAR AL £, TRAENHILHFRT, i
BRAZNRIHRE L ETH A —ERTRRATPIA SRS .

Financial guarantee contracts, with the nature of guarantee, require the
Bank to be obliged to fulfil the customers' responsibility as guarantor in
case that the customers fail to repay the contracted amount or fail to
fulfil their obligations.

Loan commitments represent the commitment made by the Bank
to its customer to grant a certain amount of loan in the future. Loan
commitments are normally attached with an effective date or termination
clause, and it is possible that the Bank may not need to fulfil such
commitment on the maturity date. Hence, the amount of the loan
commitments does not necessarily represent the future expected cash
outflow.
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3. F (3) Entrusted business
31-12-2021 31-12-2020
EIERE Entrusted deposits 10,572,884,938 2,448,862,087
TR Entrusted loans 10,572,884,938 2,448,862,087
31-12-2021 31-12-2020
EREMES Entrusted fund 2,144,798,472 1,679,654,345
TR~ Entrusted asset 2,144,798,472 1,679,654,345

ZRASREGREFTARSNEM, RATEERERENE=
TEBERZH., RHEEXNERRERASZEAKE,

ZREV L FRIEA N TVZEREFTAERARMRATIFTR, K
FRXMANASHTRAMA S EE, RAREHAL SR IBEL,
RIEARZFMARFR AR ST PR EAL S,

4. HH R

T2 FRR, ANEBRMEL. 2 FEREERMSERKENSE
fRsh, FELHEHMRHF R,

Ew’iﬁ 152 X#4RTF (hE) ARAS 202 RS

Entrusted deposits represent funds from depositors, which depositors
have instructed the Bank to grant loans to third parties designated by
them. The credit risk remains with the depositors.

Entrusted wealth management business is the investment product according
to the agreed investing plan with the clients. The investment principal is paid
by the customers, which would be managed by the Bank. The Bank would
receive the investment profit on behalf of the customers and pay the profit
to the customers based on the agreed conditions.

(4) Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2021, there was no other contingent liabilities except for
items that have been disclosed in Note 7.22.

+. BFEE

ARERARBRERBEHEAATEELSHEENEMNEAEEN
%, FANTARANEETAEELSRNER, KASAREERN
BRBRTHEEELRNERZN, EXARFEBRELENE
AR BEMERFENGEHRANL, AFEFHRRTHE IR RE
FHE, ANSRERIRIFERAARGEM,

APEER (FLRTANEEME (277) ) mIE, #TAK
AERGEERBEIFIREZEGEEHRENRT, RRESERFL
RITRO—RARTRERBRET 5%, —RAATEERFRT 6%,
REAZRERABRT 8%, BEAKKE 25%,

ARE)MEMARN AR B HTER, O—RAXBBEIKE
K. BAARIAITARBY . EMBGEERE TS BRAR,
—RREEAEZFMRDEFE; KASDETHM—REALR, ZHBAET
EEAEARTIARLEN T ASTABM AT ELS,

AREERR (FLRTAANEENE (R17) ) WIE, HEMNE

10. Capital Management

The Bank has adopted a strong capital management method to mitigate the
inherent risk in the business operation and complied with the requirements
of regulatory authorities on capital management. The Bank also targets to
maintain sufficient capital adequacy ratio for operations and optimising
shareholders' value. The Bank may adjust its capital structure actively to adapt
with the change of economic environment and related risk characteristics.

The Bank calculates and discloses capital adequacy ratio according to
Regulations Governing Capital of Commercial Banks (Provisional). CBIRC
requires that a commercial bank's core tier-one capital adequacy ratio,
tier-one capital adequacy ratio and capital adequacy ratio should not be
lower than five per cent, six per cent, and eight per cent respectively, and
capital conservation ratio should reach 2.5 per cent.

The Finance Department is responsible for managing the capital of the Bank.
Core tier-one capital includes paid-up capital, qualified capital reserve,
qualified other comprehensive income, surplus reserves, general reserves and
retained earnings. The Bank has no other tier-one capital. Tier-two capital
mainly includes surplus provision for loan impairment, qualified Tier-two
capital instruments and their premium.

AFEBRERMAT:

The capital adequacy ratios calculated by the Bank in accordance with
Regulations Governing Capital of Commercial Banks (Provisional) are as

follows:
31-12-2021 31-12-2020
ZO—RAEX Core tier-one capital 7,455,755,387 7,055,672,139
SRR AR Paid-up capital 5,500,000,000 5,500,000,000
BARNFATT NI Qualified capital reserve 18,674,334 17,337,049
HMZE AW AN Qualified other comprehensive income 68,035,109 2,191,618
BN Surplus reserves 171,675,736 138,385,488
— X A General reserves 878,275,849 849,267,920
ROEFE Retained earnings 819,094,359 548,490,064
O —RAKRINRINE Core tier-one capital deductions 73,046,606 81,570,414
HMERE> Other intangible assets 73,046,606 81,570,414
ZD—REBREE Net core tier-one capital 7,382,708,781 6,974,101,725
— RS Net tier-one capital 7,382,708,781 6,974,101,725
AKX Tier-two capital 1,595,144,372 1,557,825,490
TRAARXTEREZENTITALST Qualified tier-two capital instruments and their premium 998,137,580 997,629,000
B EAE Surplus provision for loan impairment 597,006,792 560,196,490
BARGH Net capital 8,977,853,153 8,531,927,215
RS NN 7= Risk-weighted assets 56,008,171,982 52,065,065,804
Hep: EARE I = Of which: Credit risk-weighted assets 48,357,550,160 45,375,915,670
T i5 XS AR 7= Market risk-weighted assets 4,930,553,322 4,203,269,571
BEREE IR = Operational risk-weighted assets 2,720,068,500 2,485,880,563
L —RBEARTRE Core tier-one capital adequacy ratio 13.2% 13.4%
—RRETRE Tier-one capital adequacy ratio 13.2% 13.4%
RAEFTRE Capital adequacy ratio 16.0% 16.4%
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EATNART RERAAREIEE DUR T BSTHER R 58 %2
SWMEHNEMBTUHEN., AFE, ARSEFTEEBIAEH
REER,

sk, ARASREFERRESMAH (FALRTIATREERNZE)
(RES< 20N F5E35) HEFRBIFREFER, Bl 2021F 12
A3 H, KABKFFERNA 74%, FEHMKA0% BERNER, X
EEMT:

The capital adequacy ratios and related components of the Bank are
calculated based on the statutory financial statements prepared under the
Chinese Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises. During the period, the
Bank has complied with the capital requirements imposed by the regulator.

In addition, the Bank calculates and discloses leverage ratio according to
Regulations Governing Leverage Ratio of Commercial Banks (CBIRC Ordinance
[20T1] No 3). As at 31 December 2021, the Bank's leverage ratio was 74 per cent
which was higher than the minimum regulatory requirement of 4.0 per cent.
The relevant information is as follows:

31-12-2021 31-12-2020

D —REAR Core tier-one capital

B B —RARINBRIE Less: Core tier-one capital deductions

[P B e NE L

Net core tier-one capital

BEERNEFTRM Adjusted on balance sheet items
BEERINTE R Adjusted off balance sheet items
P RMA T RE Balance of derivatives

EFRAZH R RA

At Total

Balance of assets in securities financing transactions

7,455,755,387 7,055,672,139

(73,046,606) (81,570,414)

7,382,708,781 6,974,101,725

72,173,237,994 66,567,475,835

15,753,932,076 12,592,163,046
10,179,423,200 18,014,024,000

1,566,510,978 2,346,723,700

99,673,104,248 99,520,386,581

AR Leverage ratio

7.4% 7.0%

Ew’iﬁ 154 X8 (hE) BRAT 202 RS

+—. &RREEE
SMIARR

AASEHEENTAREMERIENRE, TESRREANE.
RN XTI NE (BIRCRNRE ., FENRE, RNk ), &2
SNETESRMTIABERTAS. FRPRRITRW. FRELKRI
FHEE, TTESHMAST. IANRESRAT. RRERMER, £
AR TS, SXESmTREXMNNR, MNRARS ARERIXL
PABS P SR ER A9 KBS E TR0 T PR

AATNERTIASENIENEZEANR. RIMERERTHR
b, ARREXULHINIE EIRBORHBEA T,

115 FRUR
ERREEE

FERARERRS AR ZNFEANMNE, FRERTHERA
H RGN FARERE LB LB THEI N S X ESHEE
M, KASNEANREIERE TRMERMER, RIM
EREANEEERE TITHERIL, STB AR T RRIA.

FRARENETREE: S—EHENTAERTHRNEE R
B, SATHEEOBEVE FFETUYRFAMNEFEEER
BOARANENSRIB-2FRU®m. FEAKNKENERE
ERBTRTVSNE— TV SR rENRRER,

EAB MR ENHEES R, RINEMEENEENRERM
ERNEBRZRERIGETERARKE, KAl EHNEAH
ZERJH#ATRE, NRAREBHFTOMIFERTEHTRR
REEE,

S5 BR R FFHRKE T E XA R E SRR K 1E
W, B, ZEXZHRE. REEENRMAMEREREE
BES5FFMBR L EHEE,

11. Financial Risk Management
Risk of financial instruments

The Bank is exposed to different types of risks. The most significant types of
risk related to financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and commodity risk).
The Bank's financial instruments mainly include cash, deposit with the Central
Bank, due from banks and other financial institutions, placements with banks
and other financial institutions, derivative financial assets, reverse repurchase
financial assets, loans and advances to customers, other debt instrument at
fair value through other comprehensive income, and etc. These risks and the
Banks strategy to minimise the negative impacts of the underlying financial
risks are described below.

The most significant types of risks to the Bank are credit risk, liquidity risk and
market risk. The Bank's risk management strategy is outlined below.

(1) Credit risk
(1.1) Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from a borrower's or counterparty's
inability to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due.
The Bank's credit risk exposure mainly arises from loans and advances
to customers. Credit risk of off balance sheet items mainly arises from
the letters of credit/guarantees issued as well as loan commitments.

Credit risk concentration refers to the situation whereby there
is a concentration of customers in the same business activities,
geographical location, or industry sector with similar economic
characteristics such that their repayment ability would be affected by
the same economic fluctuations. Credit risk concentration reflects the
sensitivity of the Bank's performance to such customer concentration.

The Bank establishes a comprehensive set of policies and procedures
which effectively mitigate and control credit risk. The procedures
cover credit evaluation, credit approval, credit monitoring as well
as reporting. The Bank reviews the borrowers' business operations
periodically, analyses the quality of credit portfolio and ensures
adequacy of loan loss provisions.

The risk from financial guarantee and loan commitments is similar with
that from loans and advances to customers. Hence, the Bank adopts
the same policies and procedures for managing credit contingencies
which cover application, follow-up monitoring and collateral
requirements, etc.
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REEANEEERESEENMUREEEREGHARE, &2
SN ARERE =252 DB BN FEOTSAERRELTE
BEEE, MPERARKITENXBSHBREEAME. 497
REMBARBHA A B EEH LG IR (N5 X F IR,
BRAXRBEIENES  ERXTREF)NEENMTRATENREES,
BUBAME, SHRAXTREHNEEHARE,

Depending on whether the credit risk has significantly increased
and whether the asset is credit-impaired, the Bank measures the
impairment provision for different assets with expected credit loss of
12 months or lifetime, respectively. The key parameters of expected
credit loss measurement include probability of default(PD), loss
given default(LGD) and exposure at default(EAD). The Bank takes into

THEREMGERE, TEBEFERYEEMERABRBRNZEKE
FARBS O F BT

As at the balance sheet date, the maximum credit risk exposure of
the Bank without taking into consideration of collateral and other risk
mitigation are set out below:

31-12-2021 31-12-2020

account the quantitative analysis of historical statistics (such as ratings IR RBITHRI Deposits with the Central Bank 6,202,454,024 4,689,429,670
RN - )
MEEXIT: of counterparties, manners of guarantees and types of collaterals, 24E Precious metals 1.285,539,961 1564,487,585
repayments, etc.) and forward-looking information in order to establish
o BAMEBIEESAERFE R ANBHEBNREEEE, TF the models for estimating PD, LGD and EAD. TFHE M FR IR Due from banks and other financial institutions 3,544,261,854 3,680,713,165
FHEA Y ST INE] TS AR [ S 15 [ B e ¥
ETT/HTK'H‘XT\E"JE—EE I@Eo _‘ZE ~E) E_:]ﬁ,’]*ﬂ%_,_ l//unfﬂ,Eﬂ?Elﬁ HFERE Placements with banks and other financial institutions 8,608,835,079 6,667,892,648
Z{EAEMFTEE, MATEEEE, MRBYFIERZF Relative definitions are listed as below:
FETHEEASAME; T HHERAR~ Financial assets held-for-trading 2,197,434,189 1,525,241,844
e Th bability of default refers to th ibility that the debt
- e 'e probabiiity of de au- © er§ o. © possibiity é ¢ aebtor TrE SRR~ Derivative financial assets 4,541,743,724 11,567,136,341
o BAMKRZIERNTINTFTANKEERELERMEAEEMELE N will not be able to fulfil its obligation of repayment in the next 12
#, REFEXHHFHREE, EENARMMLER, MUERIBRR months or the whole remaining lifetime. The Bank's PD is adjusted TNEELRA Reverse repurchase financial assets 1,432,434,176 2,273,636,714
YARE, BAMEEK N[E], TBAMERANFEAL - RN based on the credit cycle index Z and forward-looking information
El]\;,rﬂ’:. BARXROHERAE. BORIEIBARENN Y - & KILRFRFEZR Loans and advances to customers 39,160,105,030 36,186,036,127
(5o {RERPN: ST to reflect the default probability of the debtor under the current
macroeconomic environment; Other debt instrument at fair value through other
. BARKMO %?E, EHRE R /I\H HIE %/I\,ﬁuf_ﬁﬁﬁ/ﬁﬂqj , 7 HHEPUE R comprehensive income 10,436,771,937 11,029,276,744
BARER, KASINEEMSHNESH, e The loss given default refers to the Bank's expectation of the extent HihemA Other financial assets 340,238,878 651,812,768
of the loss resulting from the default exposure. Depending on the
EANKEEEEMMEGEETBERRENITES S EIEME type of counterparty, the method and priority of the recourse, and &it Total 77,749,818,852 79,835,663,606

Bo ARENBEHTHEHES, RAHPEETL. SLE
REE A NS R IHEE MR AR R BEFIER.

the type of collaterals, the LGD varies. The loss given default is the
percentage of risk exposure loss when default occurs;

ERAEERANKEHO (M. 2) Credit commitments (Note 9.2)

14,082,695,797 11,470,376,536

EAERARRERA Maximum credit risk exposure 91,832,514,649 91,306,040,142
XL ST IR B AR M B AR KRN EM, IARETL. « The exposure at default is the amount that the Bank should be
VEXBERARE, RIERIEINAT ERBER TR reimbursed in the next 12 months or throughout the remaining
WA R T, TR M E D IeR, GEEHRIGETNH lifetime when the default occurs.
ANEHE, HERBICEEETREW, BEXERERTEAM 12 &t (1.2) Risk concentration

RMBARMARHIHTEL RS,

E‘W‘;:"’il 156 K@4RT (hE) HRAT 200 EERE

The assessment of significant increases in credit risk and the
calculation of expected credit losses both involve forward-looking
information. Through the analysis of historical data, the Bank identifies
the key macroeconomic indicators that affect the credit risk and
expected credit loss of various industries and business types.

The impact of these economic indicators on probability of default and
loss given default varies according to different types of industries and
business types. The Bank applies experts' judgement in this analysis,
according to the result of experts' judgement, the Bank predicts these
economic indicators on a quarterly basis and determines the impact of
these economic indicators on the probability of default and the loss
given default by conducting regression analysis.

WXRGHFETTE-TUHHBE, FHERERLEZFHML,

HERARREERHENES, I, FRTULTBRKHNEFLR

HEHRENER, RIELARRATL X AERNEIRAER,

AABEBHENE FRUTRRMSERERE. &ASEHRE

RMBZOTLEF RS, FSEMIE. 72,

The concentration of borrowers/counterparties in the same
industry sector, geographical location or having similar economic
characteristics would tend to pose higher credit risk to the Bank.
On the other hand, the level of credit risk may be varied from each
industry or geographical location in view of their unique economic
development characteristics.

The Bank mainly provides loans and commitments/guarantees to
domestic customers. Analysis on industry sector concentration for the
Bank's loans and advances can be found at Note 7. 7.2.
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(1.3) Collateral

The amount and type of the collateral required would depend on the
credit risk of the borrowers/counterparties as assessed by the Bank.
The Bank has established a guideline on taking collateral including the
frequency of collateral valuation.

The main types of collateral include:

« For corporate and commercial loans, main collaterals taken include
cash deposits, bank guarantee and properties; and
« For personal loans, collateral taken are mainly residential properties.

The management requires relevant Business Units to monitor the
market value of the collaterals and follow up with the borrowers/
counterparties to top up collaterals in accordance with the relevant
provisions of the loan agreement. The change in market value of the
collateral would also be taken into consideration when reviewing the
adequacy of loan loss provisions.

(1.4) Credit quality distribution of financial instruments

As of 31 December 2021, the three-staging distribution of financial
instruments of the Bank is as follows (excluding accrued interest) :

E‘W‘;:"’il 158 K@4RFT (hE) HRAT 200 EERE

31-12-2021
TKE JR1E THAE ARk
Principal Amount Expected Credit Losses
E—MER EME E=MER it E—MER ETHER = it
Stage | Stage Il Stage Il Total Stage | Stage Il Stage Il Total
Financial assets

R EMERE™  measured at amortised cost
N4 R AFH R RBITRIN Cash and deposit with the Central Bank 6,203,659,623 - - 6,203,659,623 644,914 - - 644,914
IR M ZR I Due from banks and other financial institutions 3,557,117,471 - - 3,557,117,471 12,855,970 - - 12,855,970
FHEE Placements with banks and other financial institutions 8,615,825,937 - - 8,615,825,937 18,654,199 - - 18,654,199
LNRESRIA T Reverse repurchase financial assets 1,432,091,000 - - 1,432,091,000 69,977 - - 69,977
RN R Loans and advances to customers 35,372,619,876 460,830,569 125,786,950 35,959,237,395 801,848,305 75,054,473 88,325,299 965,228,077
Hih&rA> Other financial assets 340,238,878 - - 340,238,878 1,638,030 - - 1,638,030

BRI ER Total financial assets
ERA~TEIT measured at amortised cost 55,521,552,785 460,830,569 125,786,950 56,108,170,304 835,711,395 75,054,473 88,325,299 999,091,167
31-12-2020
WERE TEME ARk
Principal Amount Expected Credit Losses
E—MER EMER E=MER At - ETHER EE= Ait
Stage | Stage Il Stage Il Total Stage | Stage Il Stage Il Total
Financial assets

R EERE~ measured at amortised cost
N4 R AFR R RBITIRIN Cash and deposit with the Central Bank 4,692,423,922 - - 4,692,423,922 486,116 - - 486,116
FRE R I Due from banks and other financial institutions 3,695,890,523 - - 3,695,890,523 15,668,827 - - 15,668,827
FHEARE Placements with banks and other financial institutions 6,667,424,360 - - 6,667,424,360 9,624,176 - - 9,624,176
ENRESFA~ Reverse repurchase financial assets 2,271,360,000 - - 2,271,360,000 204,966 - - 204,966
RIL R Loans and advances to customers 34,131,098,175 1,752,849,550 131,062,484 36,015,010,209 633,874,579 165,762,745 70,747,875 870,385,199
Hith &A™~ Other financial assets 651,812,768 - - 651,812,768 3,703,469 - - 3,703,469

R AT R Total financial assets

EREESI measured at amortised cost 52,110,009,748 1,752,849,550 131,062,484 53,993,921,782 663,562,133 165,762,745 70,747,875 900,072,753
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(1.5) Loans and advances by three-staging classification

Loans and advances by five-category loan classification and three-

staging classification are analysed as follows:

16 X5 ERE >

THREGHER, XPURFRANGEARE (FEEITHR)
RIESMEBIE TR R AT 4AT -

(1.6) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
As at the balance sheet date, the credit quality of trading bond

investments (excluding accrued interest) analysed by external credit
ratings is as follows:

31-12-2021 31-12-2020

AAA
A+

&3t Total

1,196,057,560 -

772,023,120 149,776,650

1,968,080,680 149,776,650

THEFUFEERR, THURFTEIULTERANERRERES

EBIEATFR AT :

As at the balance sheet date, the credit quality of the trading
negotiable certificate of deposit investment analysed by external
credit ratings is as follows:

31-12-2021 31-12-2020
AAA 198,590,600 547,659,650
it Total 198,590,600 547,659,650

31-12-2021

E—HE B BE=HE

Stage | Stage Il Stage Il
A%k 124R BAFEH EREFARESRA ait

R UIEREEAES TR AR BN FEITRERRE
12-month expected Lifetime expected Lifetime credit loss for Total

credit loss credit loss credit-impaired

financial assets
IE% Pass 39,285,472,534 337,167,690 - 39,622,640,224
xKiE Special Mention 5,312,409 162,771,574 - 168,083,983
KRR Substandard - - 25,160,601 25,160,601
o] % Doubtful - - 50,000,000 50,000,000
E7ES Loss - - 50,626,349 50,626,349
&it Total 39,290,784,943 499,939,264 125,786,950 39,916,511,157
31-12-2020

Bk EZME B

Stage | Stage Il Stage Il
REK121MA BAGE EREERRESRE~ &/it

AR ARk TS AR BN FEMBERRE
12-month expected Lifetime expected Lifetime credit loss for Total

credit loss credit loss credit-impaired

financial assets
g Pass 34,997,895,941 1,537,495,371 - 36,535,391,312
*E Special Mention - 215,354,179 - 215,354,179
KRR Substandard - - 38,498,663 38,498,663
o] & Doubtful - - 92,563,821 92,563,821
&it Total 34,997,895,941 1,752,849,550 131,062,484 36,881,807,975

E‘w'fi 160 X467 (hE) HRAT 202 £ s
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(1.7) Other debt investment at fair value through other comprehensive
income

The carrying amounts of bond investment and negotiable certificate of
deposit investment (excluding accrued interest) analysed by external
credit ratings and expected credit losses are as follows:

2021

E—E& B E=ME

Stage | Stage Il Stage lll
AK124A BAFEH BANFEH ‘it

AR ARk TS ARk EREFERBK
12-month expected Lifetime expected Lifetime credit loss for Total

credit loss credit loss credit-impaired

financial assets
AAA 4,220,650,368 - - 4,220,650,368
A+ 6,087,558,170 - - 6,087,558,170
FEREHM Closing balance 10,308,208,538 - - 10,308,208,538
2020

E—HE FEZMER FE=HE&

Stage | Stage Il Stage I
A& 124R BAFEH BANFEH &it

TS ARk TS A K ERERFRRE
12-month expected Lifetime expected Lifetime credit loss for Total

credit loss credit loss credit-impaired

financial assets
AAA 5,136,114,921 - - 5,136,114,921
A+ 5,749,522,540 - - 5,749,522,540
FEREM Closing Balance 10,885,637,461 - - 10,885,637,461

Ew’iﬁ 162 X#4RT (hE) BRAS 202 RS

2. R
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(2) Liquidity risk

The Bank maintains sufficient liquidity to fund day-to-day operations,
to meet deposit withdrawals and loan disbursements, to participate in
new investments, and to repay borrowings. Hence, liquidity is managed
in a manner to address both anticipated and unanticipated cash funding
needs.

Liquidity risk is managed in accordance with a complete framework of
risk management, including-policies, controls and limits approved by the
Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO). These policies, controls and limits
are established to ensure that the Bank has sufficient funding to manage
liquidity risk over a range of market conditions. These include minimising
excessive funding concentrations by diversifying the sources and terms
of funding as well as maintaining a portfolio of debt securities with high
quality and good liquidity.

The Bank takes a conservative stance in liquidity management by
continuing to gather core deposits, strictly complying with liquidity
limits and retaining adequate liquid assets to prevent any possible cash
shortfall.

The Bank actively dispersed the sources of deposits to maintain a balance
of cost efficiency, continued availability of funds and diversification of
funding sources. Important factors in ensuring liquidity are competitive
pricing, proactive management of the Bank's core deposits and the
maintenance of customer confidence.

Liquidity risk is measured and managed on projected cash flow basis. Cash
flow projection is monitored under both business-as-usual and stress
scenarios. Cash flow mismatch limits are established to limit the Bank's
liquidity exposure. The Bank has also employed liquidity early warning
indicators and trigger points to signal possible contingency situations.
Contingency funding plans have been set up to identify potential
liquidity crises by using a series of warning indicators. Crisis management
processes and various strategies including funding and communication
have been developed to minimise the negative impact of any liquidity
crunch.
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The Bank's undiscounted maturity profile of financial assets and liabilities

BT as at 31 December 2021 is as follows:
31-12-2021
W/ BRI 1T1MARW 1Z231A SMRAENE 1Z25%F S5EME THIRR &it
Overdue / On demand Within 1 month 1 to 3 months 3 months to 1 year 1to 5 years 5 years above undated Total
ST Financial assets:

P& RAFPRRITHRI
R"ER

e ENIE R

RS

ZHU LA

PTESRAS

HARGRAR R
Hith &%~
ERAFEIT

SRS

B Mk B2 F At S RATLAA 17 UK

HARE
PSR
AR

X o MR AR
EEY A
ISANEEEE
Hith & ah i
ERARETT

AT

Cash and deposits with the Central Bank

Precious metals

Due from banks and other financial institutions
Placements with banks and other financial institutions
Financial assets held-for-trading

Derivative financial assets

Reverse repurchase financial assets

Loans and advances to customers

Other debt instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income
Other financial assets

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities:

Due to banks and other financial institutions
Placements from banks and other financial institutions
Derivative financial liabilities

Customer deposits

Financial liabilities held-for-trading

Repurchase agreements

Debt securities issued

Other financial liabilities

Total financial liabilities

Net liquidity

2,703,673,625

3,544,261,854

48,653,690

4,976,044

6,841,718,611

2,597,863

1,282,580,347

1,432,826,570

4,045,190,700

572,679,028

311,053,957

656,111,508

7,973,000

747,935,620

7,502,948,938

1,783,125,347

24,208,877

1,125,434,708

822,215,040

1,103,846,826

13,996,943,735

3,333,920,938

1,156,991,988

1,407,357,614

12,360,235,805

4,630,931,250

345,137,292

23,317

4,759,523,090

145,533,300

3,500,820,381

1,285,539,961

685,521,122

6,204,494,006

1,285,539,961

3,544,261,854

8,623,264,827

2,334,915,183

4,541,743,724

1,432,826,570

43,399,017,080

10,466,189,863

340,238,878

6,301,565,213

14,488,647,076

10,722,303,290

20,382,361,247

19,555,516,657

5,250,216,999

5,471,881,464

82,172,491,946

1,803,043,004

18,185,889,416

180,148,500

3,061,874,911

1,062,102,463

14,352,917,107

185,030

1,190,848,225

309,680,255

1,228,184

5,016,804,448

836,977,488

4,000,805,651

5,602,141,263

218,916,542

628,378,076

143,258,548

4,108,987,656

985,014,835

3,777,487,906

1,120,394,158

236,042,256

1,418,063,206

1,495,102,616

1,094,006,074

1,288,596

1,946,301,552

12,187,667,015

4,303,446,588

41,812,202,696

6,902,868,951

1,190,848,225

1,858,645,127

629,606,260

20,169,080,920

19,978,836,175

16,304,023,468

10,371,185,359

4,007,171,896

1,288,596

70,831,586,414

(13,867,515,707)

(5,490,189,099)

(5,581,720,178)

10,011,175,888

15,548,344,761

5,248,928,403

5,471,881,464

11,340,905,532

RINKIEEI

Commitments

571,585,513

1,053,362,967

2,924,320,708

7,476,937,831

2,056,488,778

14,082,695,797
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The Bank's undiscounted maturity profile of financial assets and liabilities

BRSO as at 31 December 2020 is as follows:
31-12-2020
I / BIRHEE T AR 1Z34A 3MBETE 1E5% 5FE TCHARR a3t
Overdue / On demand Within 1 month 1 to 3 months 3 months to 1 year 1to 5 years 5 years above undated Total
ERLBFE Financial assets:
M4 R IFM P REBITRIN Cash and deposits with the Central Bank 518,540,819 R _ B B B 4.175,052,495 4.693,593,314
RER Precious metals - - - - - - 1,564,487 585 1,564,487 585
FE W ERIR Due from banks and other financial institutions 3,431,281,578 249,801,368 - - - - - 3,681,082,946
wERS Placements with banks and other financial institutions - 2,771,892,860 3,202,094,178 713,468,405 - - - 6,687,455,443
XA SRR Financial assets held-for-trading - 27,499,013 1,341,452,618 3,955,850 153,736,650 . - 1,526,644,131
PSRBT Derivative financial assets - 2,512,668,657 2,655,523,963 5,339,319,582 1,019,455,347 40,168,792 - 11,567,136,341
ENBRE SR~ Reverse repurchase financial assets - 2,274,796,605 - _ _ R B 2.274.796,605
B BRI Loans and advances to customers 69,563,845 2,279,563,404 6,455,861,095 11,872,364,401 13,697,928,845 5,904,135,930 691,168,184 40,970,585,704
H AR R Other debt instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income - 877,134,658 2,017,982,503 2,599,037,489 5,950,201,613 - - 11,444,356,263
Hith&RAH = Other financial assets 490,659 626,837,427 - 24,484,682 - - . 651,812,768
SMAS AT Total financial assets 4,019,876,901 11,620,193,992 15,672,914,357 20,552,630,409 20,821,322,455 5,944,304,722 6,430,708,264 85,061,951,100
RS Financial liabilities:

B Mk B2 F At S RATLAA 17 UK

HARE
PSR
AR

X o MR AR
EEY A
ISANEEEE
Hith & ah i
ERARETT

AT

Due to banks and other financial institutions
Placements from banks and other financial institutions
Derivative financial liabilities

Customer deposits

Financial liabilities held-for-trading

Repurchase agreements

Debt securities issued

Other financial liabilities

Total financial liabilities

Net liquidity

1,483,415,305

14,261,327,530

2,806,851,700

2,368,653,947

9,691,577,530

135,099,950

466,204,494

6,015,398

4,631,171,510

141,289,588

3,780,610,923

2,742,812,922

7,313,839,857

3,113,998,496

7,968,531,298

5,455,785,147

708,773,907

397,512,283

1,097,204,788

577,188,101

2,214,546,887

1,044,111,609

1,141,204,676

1,624,704,893

16,770,540,808

11,611,363,625

36,606,690,334

3,646,610,729

466,204,494

2,238,409,464

583,203,499

15,744,742,835

15,474,403,019

14,268,593,851

22,951,351,062

5,108,637,079

73,547,727,846

(11,724,865,934)

(3,854,209,027)

1,404,320,506

(2,398,720,653)

15,712,685,376

5,944,304,722

6,430,708,264

11,514,223,254

RINKIEEI

Commitments

201,514,622

654,259,656

1,978,162,870

5,566,541,937

3,069,897,451

11,470,376,536

166 X#E4R1T (PE) HRAT 202 £ERE
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(3) Market risk

The Bank is exposed to market risk mainly from open positions in interest
rate, foreign exchange rate products and precious metal products. Market
risk arises from both trading and non-trading business. The objective
of market risk management is to avoid excessive losses in earnings and
shareholder's fund due to market risk, and to minimise the negative impact
from inherent volatility risks of financial instruments.

The Risk Management monitors the Bank's market risk exposure and is
responsible for setting up market risk policies with approval by the Asset
& Liability Committee. Market Risk exposures are reported to the Asset &
Liability Committee and Board Risk Management Committee on a regular
basis.

The Bank monitors and manages market risk in accordance with
established framework and policies. The monitoring and measurement
methods mainly include sensitivity analysis, Expected Shortfall (ES), Value-
at-Risk (VaR) and stress testing. Prior to launch of new product or new
business, market risk will be properly identified and addressed.

The Bank divides the balance sheet assets and liabilities into the trading
book or banking book according to the characteristics of different
accounts. Trading book mainly includes freely tradable financial
instruments and commodity positions held for trading purpose or to
avoid risks in other items of the trading account. The market risk in trading
book depends on the tools of the transactions, including interest rates,
foreign exchange rates, stock prices, commodity prices and credit spreads.
Banking book includes financial instruments other than trading book. The
main risks in banking book are interest rate and credit spread risks.

31 ICERE

(3.1) Currency risk

FTEEHAT AR HE MO TR NRINCZ 5 T A R
MENE O NETRETHHRaEIMSEINE,

F2021 12 B 318, AASMNEXRE=R AT RAOT:

The Bank's currency risk arises mainly from currency mismatches of
assets and liabilities as well as foreign exchange trading business
whereby the open positions are subject to exchange rate fluctuations.

As at 31 December 2021, the Bank's assets and liabilities by currency

are as follows:

7.
e RAFH R RBHHR
#E

R LT

S

RS
PIHESRE
INBESRA
RN
HARGRBURA

HAtb&RhA
EMASET

s

Assets:

Cash and deposit with the Central Bank

Precious metals

Due from banks and other financial institutions
Placements with banks and other financial institutions
Financial assets held-for-trading

Derivative financial assets

Reverse repurchase financial assets

Loans and advances to customers

Other debt instrument at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Other financial assets
Total financial assets

Liabilities:

31-12-2021
ES AR™® Hith &It
usD RMB Others Total

(RMB equivalent)

(RMB equivalent)

(RMB equivalent)

610,372,246

1,803,879,423

6,872,570,362

535,721,351

6,656,367,480

127,480,347

19,902,684

5,586,591,683
1,285,539,961
1,319,538,770
1,736,264,717
2,197,434,189
4,004,837,813
1,432,434,176

31,869,272,047

10,309,291,590

312,602,580

7,530,077

420,843,661

1,184,560

634,465,503

7,733,614

6,204,494,006
1,285,539,961
3,544,261,854
8,608,835,079
2,197,434,189
4,541,743,724
1,432,434,176

39,160,105,030

10,436,771,937

340,238,878

16,626,293,893

60,053,807,526

1,071,757,415

77,751,858,834

BEREMESEYVIMERERI  Due to banks and other financial institutions 3,157,255 1,943,114,445 - 1,946,271,700
wARE Placements from banks and other financial institutions 7,044,834,331 4,953,935,450 16,195,443 12,014,965,224
T oM Er itk Financial liabilities held-for-trading 6,047,193 6,893,701,482 - 6,899,748,675
PTESRRER Derivative financial liabilities 489,669,609 3,812,772,021 1,004,958 4,303,446,588
U R Customer deposits 6,302,923,954  35,016,542,225 393,281,830  41,712,748,009
N AH&ES Debt securities issued - 1,720,431,429 - 1,720,431,429
ST B 4R R =R Repurchase agreements - 1,190,494,609 - 1,190,494,609
Hftb e ph R Other financial liabilities 45,616,900 560,455,459 23,533,901 629,606,260
Ex Yk bi=and Total financial liabilities 13,892,249,242 56,091,447,120 434,016,132 70,417,712,494
B Atk Net position 2,734,044,651 3,962,360,406 637,741,283 7,334,146,340
TTE SR TERXNER Notional amounts of derivative financial instruments 161,423,495,609 346,250,271,391 4,913,810,592 512,587,577,592
= RIE Commitments 3,615,315,747 8,827,032,382 1,640,347,668  14,082,695,797
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T2020F 2310, AREWNFXRATRARRDMII=OT

As at 31 December 2020, the Bank's assets and liabilities by currency

are as follows:

ﬁ}ﬁ::

P& BT FRRBITHRI

Assets:

Cash and deposit with the Central Bank

31-12-2020
E AR™ Hith Ait
usb RMB Others Total

(RMB equivalent)

(RMB equivalent)

(RMB equivalent)

871,083,488

3,818,609,857

3,899,969

4,693,593,314

=4 Precious metals - 1,564,487,585 - 1,564,487,585
T E b 7RI Due from banks and other financial institutions 1,764,434,995 807,997,976 1,108,280,194 3,680,713,165
FHEES Placements with banks and other financial institutions 4,642,236,956 1,958,942,521 66,713,171 6,667,892,648
THMERE™ Financial assets held-for-trading - 1,525,241,844 - 1,525,241,844
LTS RA Derivative financial assets 313,750,503 11,249,416,078 3,969,760 11,567,136,341
INBRELFA Reverse repurchase financial assets - 2,273,636,714 - 2,273,636,714
RILRFR AR Loans and advances to customers 5,771,554,317 29,591,211,553 823,270,257 36,186,036,127
Other debt instrument at fair value through other

HMBERER comprehensive income - 11,029,276,744 - 11,029,276,744
Hth &A™~ Other financial assets 14,732,777 633,130,742 3,949,249 651,812,768
SRR~ BT Total financial assets 13,377,793,036 64,451,951,614 2,010,082,600 79,839,827,250
faf: Liabilities:

B X H Ath & B AL AD 7 I

I Due to banks and other financial institutions 3,225,250 1,621,371,375 - 1,624,596,625
AR Placements from banks and other financial institutions 12,994,553,384 3,555,193,096 42,383,452 16,592,129,932
T 5 ML R Financial liabilities held-for-trading 6,943,935 3,637,288,183 - 3,644,232,118
PSR AR Derivative financial liabilities 442,632,809 11,165,278,505 3,452,311 11,611,363,625
R U 755 Customer deposits 4,959,624,492 31,153,868,998 349,655,205 36,463,148,695
R RS Debt securities issued - 2,037,710,703 - 2,037,710,703
SEH O SRR E R Repurchase agreements - 466,069,704 - 466,069,704
Hth&rh i Other financial liabilities 13,335,712 540,614,640 29,253,147 583,203,499
SR HEEIT Total financial liabilities 18,420,315,582 54,177,395,204 424,744,115 73,022,454,901
AR Net position (5,042,522,546) 10,274,556,410 1,585,338,485 6,817,372,349
SHESHMTERXNET Notional amounts of derivative financial instruments 222,913,086,062  442,074,097,111 4,978,704,029  669,965,887,202
ERKIE Commitments 2,787,131,257 5,621,955,279 3,061,290,000 11,470,376,536

170 X#4R47 (PE) HRAT 202 £ERE

UTREHMEEARAETNBERT, IMTRAUTICETEREN
SETHRATA B0

Holding all other variables constant, the impact from a change in
foreign exchange rates on profit before tax of the Bank is as follows:

AR IEE 1%
AR HIHE 1%

%) Change in Foreign Exchange Rate

-1% change against RMB

+1% change against RMB

31-12-2021 31-12-2020
SSEE TR NERA SSEETRMEEA

Impact on profit Impact on profit

(33,717,859) 34,571,841

33,717,859 (34,571,841)

M EGREMDITET R~ MARRERSHCERREN, Hit
B HEMARAEN, MO ARTILENSETETNH
GIERELNEA

BRODTETUATRIR:

() CEHREREZDTHNARTTREDSRKE (PEOT)
LR IHE R E 1% ¥ AR AT KR

(2) BEHMLCEREHNZIEEDIITARTICRENEEKRSD;
(3) ZLCENEHMANEER~AFERRIFE,

BTFETLRRER, TERRUSEAR L AREEIALIRE
T RE S IBUR DTN ER TR,

The sensitivity analysis above is performed on the basis that assets and
liabilities have static currency risk structure. It shows the impact of a
change in other currency rates against RMB on the Bank's profit before
tax, given other variables remain constant.

The analysis is based on below assumptions:
(1) Exchange rate sensitivity refers to the gains and losses caused by
one per cent change of the closing rate (mid rate) of the different

foreign currencies against RMB as at the balance sheet date;

(2) Exchange rate fluctuation refers to the fluctuation against RMB in
the same direction simultaneously;

(3) Off-balance sheet items are excluded.
Due to the above assumptions, the actual impact of exchange rate

fluctuation on the Bank's earnings may differ from above sensitivity
analysis.
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3.2 F R XU
RS

XZKATEEEAXZENHER IABZZ KA EMITER
PmFENTEHXSNERTIAMF ALY, XSKAHHNH
BREBRTRZH TR, BFEAER CRRENE. BRNHE.
ERAEE,

AN EREAREEZTEEEERTHTHRRALR, FAK
BREEITENERZ A TR N,

AATEAIMBTH N EIRFRA 975% BEX 8 TNE H M
#i5k (Expected Shortfall) §9 5 s2A&3% . 1ZTTRINAEWFIZE, T
RN RINEEF N E T AERRAOLTINRAL T ROB T Y H D52
HIEFE, MEBRE (5) REMMANBHNYE, IAABEIT
BHERRTR-EGRERITEMNEERK,

RN G, AQSRARHLRHE 99% BEXETHEXE

ME (VaR) , REE{E (VaR) SHEIHRAE (ES) BMEKDH—

B, BEEWNKEBRRZKANGRE S RENE (VaR) B9

FRBILEAH R ARURERT RN SBE P AT SN

LR, P RN R R K BRTT REECIRE R = AR
A

ERE,

BARAVRHFES REETMHNEHNEZTR, BHEXRENRERT
E—ERBIFZM, Hm:

HRHREZELT, JEINXZENNEHAETCEENN
HEMNRRGE, EETHKENEFERINFAENERLT,
MR 5 BHNREHRE TEATEXRER

« VAR FNES Y ARTEANE, FARRIXZERFCITER
it B9 B 5

« BERBERERERRERNITECENEE, T—EEAT
FrEEREIER, FRRHEISNEDR,

HIRAFREAR R (ES) MEEMAR, AASEEEDNIKKIE
SNE, FEBRTERNEERRESN TR HIAARE, XT
WK A EHNT RS ERRE T FHMEEFE, NN MR
IR,

AAT 2021412 B3 AMBRBIRE (ES) HART 1303 AT
(2020 £ 12 B 31 BIEIHRE (ES) H: ART1778 FL)

LSRR 170 xR (PE) ARAE 202 FRRE
L ]

(3.2) Interest rate risk

Trading book

Trading book mainly includes freely tradable financial instruments and
commodity positions held for trading purpose or to avoid risks of other
items in the trading account. The market risk in trading book depends on
the tools of the transaction, including interest rates, exchange rates, stock
prices, commodity prices, and credit spreads, etc.

The Bank currently adopts the Standardised Approach for the
calculation of regulatory market risk capital and uses the Internal
Models Approach to measure and to control trading market risks.

The Bank estimates a daily Expected Shortfall (ES) within a 97.5
per cent confidence interval over a one-day holding period, using
the historical simulation method, as a control for market risk. This
method assumes observed historical market movements can be used
to imply possible future changes in market rates. ES is the average of
the worst losses in the distribution, assuming that the losses exceed
the specified percentile.

For back testing purpose, the Bank uses daily VaR within a 99 per cent
confidence interval over a one-day holding period. VaR uses the same
loss distribution as ES. The backtesting process analyses whether
the exceptions are due to model deficiencies or market volatility.
All backtesting exceptions are tabled to ALCO with recommended
actions and resolutions.

Although VaR and ES are important tools to measure market risk, there
are certain limitations on the assumptions of the model, such as:

* In most cases, the assumption that a position can be hedged or
sold within the observation period of one trading day is reasonable,
but in the case of severe liquidity shortage in the market over a
long period of time, the assumption of the observation period of
one trading day may not be in line with the actual situation;

» VaR and ES are calculated based on the day's closing benchmark
and do not reflect the risks that may be faced by positions held on
the trade day;

 Historical data is used as a basis for determining the possible
range of future results, and may not be applicable to all possible
situations, especially exceptions.

To complement the ES measure, the Bank perform stress and scenario
tests to identify the Bank's vulnerability to event risk. These tests
serve to provide early warnings of plausible extreme losses.

The Bank's daily ES on 31 December 2021 was RMB13.03 million (The
Bank's daily ES on 31 December 2020 was RMB17.78 million).

SRITIK A

AFENHEEREOR SR RN EEERNENME, BT 0HK
W EREBBIE ~ MRER R RNITENRITRA TEF RS,

MENEEENTRAGRRESHUNETRES, BUERE
RITHVEF BN SRRIPFHRARITARMEFMENE K,

FAFEANMT IR, BREENHRMERMEITEENER
TP MR RO, B X F R GRER 7 U RAEX TR KR )
D, BTEMNEZHXNFBBRAREFNEREZE, TR
BREXBHENPR. THEESOHNOFE, B TERE
B, KHMFRERENFIZRLTNENZHEKR,

AN BIRRAIET SN TS R =2 FNEEED I EEDR
BHAFENEENDWR, MEEBERTHRASNNTEBFIRHK
R NRITAS NEROFWE, BN, ZEDNKBAT %R
mIER T URRESTRMENFHNE R RTEPE RN
TR TR EIEF R,

Banking book

The ALCO maintains oversight of the effectiveness of the interest
rate risk management structure. The Balance Sheet Risk Management
(BSRM) Division supports the ALCO in monitoring the interest rate
risk profile of the banking book.

The primary objective of interest rate risk management is to protect
and to enhance capital or economic net worth through adequate,
stable and reliable growth in net interest earnings under a broad range
of possible economic conditions.

Banking book interest rate risk exposure is quantified using analysis
tools include repricing schedules and sensitivity analysis. They
provide indications of the potential impact of interest rate changes
on interest income and economic value through the analysis of the
sensitivity of assets and liabilities to changes in interest rates. Interest
rate sensitivity varies with different repricing periods, currencies and
embedded options mismatches in the longer tenor will experience
greater impact in the price-value of interest rate positions than
similar positions in the shorter tenor.

The Bank also performs quantitative analysis method of net interest
income and economic value of net assets regularly to determine the
adequacy of capital in meeting the impact of extreme interest rate
movements on the balance sheet. Such tests are also performed to
provide early warnings of potential extreme losses, facilitating the
proactive management of interest rate risks in an environment of
rapid financial market changes.
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MTAIR, CRABRAEELSRZ A FORRED TS
R B R AR T AR R S,

The risks arising from the trading book, such as interest rates, foreign
exchange rates and equity prices are managed and controlled under

the market risk framework.

F2021FER2 A3 H, AREARTKABESNFENESR AR
RAEREENHSIPAREREESFOT:

As at 31 December 2021, the Bank's assets/liabilities of banking book
re-pricing profiles (based on the earlier of maturity date and re-pricing

date) is as follows:

T 2020 E 2 B3 RA, KAFRTKABEHFENER AR

REREENAREHABREREEMTUT:

date) is as follows:

As at 31 December 2020, the Bank's assets/liabilities of banking book
re-pricing profiles (based on the earlier of maturity date and re-pricing

31-12-2021
3MBR SMAETE 1ES54F SEME TitE &it
Within 3 months 3 months to1 year 1to 5 years 5 years above Non-interest bearing Total
B, Assets:
e RFHHRIE Cash and deposit with the
TR Central Bank 5,584,607,892 - - - 619,886,114 6,204,494,006
Due from banks and other
EHE 2 I financial institutions 2,334,015,442 - - - 350 2,334,015,792
Placements with banks and
HEi#HES other financial institutions 7,481,829,172  1,115,367,785 - - 11,638,122 8,608,835,079
Reverse repurchase financial
INRELFHR~ assets 1,432,021,043 - - - 413,133 1,432,434,176
Loans and advances to
KINRFR KR customers 18,762,810,423  18,017,226,289 500,946,551 176,351,387 303,174,907  37,760,509,557
Other debt instrument at
fair value through other
HhEmPUE R comprehensive income 2,335,937,327 3,283,926,700 4,542,811,212 145,533,300 128,563,398  10,436,771,937
Hih i~ Other financial assets - - - - 34,935,920 34,935,920
SRR~ EIT Total financial assets 37,931,221,299  22,416,520,774 5,043,757,763 321,884,687 1,098,611,944  66,811,996,467
s Liabilities:
B & HfMEmY Due to banks and other
M FE RN financial institutions 1,803,042,943 141,141,427 - - 2,087,330 1,946,271,700
Placement from banks and
HAHS other financial institutions 7,825,146,964  4,097,012,334 - - 92,805,926  12,014,965,224
% U 758 Customer deposits 35,764,660,545 3,655,733,025 1,407,731,806 - 884,622,633  41,712,748,009
SEH [ $RAE =X Repurchase agreements 1,190,000,000 - - - 494,609 1,190,494,609
N RS Debt securities issued 528,596,798 188,042,256 998,137,580 - 5,654,795 1,720,431,429
Hiheam iR Other financial liabilities - - - - 109,023,750 109,023,750
SR nEEeT Total financial liabilities 47,111,447,250 8,081,929,042 2,405,869,386 - 1,094,689,043  58,693,934,721
Derivative financial
LTHE &R~ (JF) assets (Note) 12,435,181,560 1,917,488,750 127,514,000 - - 14,480,184,310
Derivative financial
TTELRAGR OF) liabilities (Note) 12,456,388,496 1,880,831,500 130,398,000 - - 14,467,617,996
FZ K& R A Net position (9,201,432,887)  14,371,248,982 2,635,004,377 321,884,687 3,922,901 8,130,628,060

174 X847 (PE) ARAT 202 £ERE

31-12-2020
ERO=In| SMRENE 1E5% SEME iR Ait
Within 3 months 3 months to1 year 1to 5 years 5 years above Noninterest bearing Total
B Assets:
NE&ERFHHRE Cash and deposit with the
TRIm Central Bank 3,816,427,130 - - - 877,166,184 4,693,593,314
Due from banks and other
T E b FRIn financial institutions 3,136,221,418 - - - 489,206 3,136,710,624
Placements with banks and
FHEHRS other financial institutions 5,951,361,714 706,453,015 - - 10,077,919 6,667,892,648
Reverse repurchase financial
FINIBRELFIARST  assets 2,271,155,258 - - - 2,481,456 2,273,636,714
Loans and advances to
RIET KR customers 15,631,528,026  19,122,766,263 100,352,774 200,002,099 261,449,877  35,316,099,039
Other debt instrument at
fair value through other
HthEPIE R comprehensive income 2,823,774,250 2,429,707,130 5,632,156,081 - 143,639,283  11,029,276,744
Hith &R~ Other financial assets - - - - 37,656,383 37,656,383
SR~ EIT Total financial assets 33,630,467,796  22,258,926,408 5,732,508,855 200,002,099 1,332,960,308  63,154,865,466
fafs: Liabilities:
B % Hf£F4  Due to banks and other
MIFRERIN financial institutions 1,483,415,305 139,172,999 - - 2,008,321 1,624,596,625
Placement from banks and
wARE other financial institutions 6,573,472,238 7,946,023,220 1,995,800,000 - 76,834,474  16,592,129,932
U leeE Customer deposits 28,251,006,190 7,140,019,598 627,778,016 - 444,344,891  36,463,148,695
SEH B R E 77X Repurchase agreements 466,000,000 - - - 69,704 466,069,704
NAHES Debt securities issued - 999,444,170 997,628,999 - 40,637,534 2,037,710,703
Hih$rt ik Other financial liabilities - - - - 138,171,601 138,171,601
Lo nEeT Total financial liabilities 36,773,893,733  16,224,659,987 3,621,207,015 - 702,066,525 57,321,827,260
Derivative financial
LTHE SRR ™ (0F) assets (Note) 978,650,829 84,823,700 - - - 1,063,474,529
Derivative financial
TSt ) liabilities (Note) 980,537,940 84,813,830 - - - 1,065,351,770
FIR KBS HR O Net position (3,145,313,048) 6,034,276,291 2,111,301,840 200,002,099 630,893,783 5,831,160,965

i

ARBRTKABENTESHAS / ARREXAENEREENBSIPAREREFHTON.

Note: The derivative financial assets/liabilities of banking book are analysed based on the earlier of re-pricing date and maturity date of the nominal principal.
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ARSI FHFRTAZRBEENR, MEEF X ITRZREH
HEEITESMAS T EERABNEENER,

UMTREHMTERTHNERT, FERTERXENSGETXN S
B, HbGRaRENTE SR AA &R 7T E S0,

The Bank profiles its interest bearing assets and liabilities based on
maturity date for fixed rate items or re-pricing date for floating rate
items.

Holding other variables constant, the impact of interest rate movement
on the Bank's net profit, other comprehensive income after tax and
equity is as follows:

31-21-2021 31-12-2020

5

B Change in interest rate

FR A 100 NS + 100 basis points

FIR R 100 NEL S - 100 basis points

Xt 28 B9 00

Impact on net profit

Xt 28 B9 00

Impact on net profit

(19,965,266) (3,669,715)

19,965,266 3,669,715

U EBRUESTET RS MARREAHRSHNERNELENL, X
DM EE—FRFERRNL, RRA—FAXQSHE =R
NEFENWT AR SRELITENSRANNE M, BTUTRER

) FEE=ANRAR=A"RRE-—FAENENNEHNA
M FRIEAES X HE P EERENHEIL;

(2) e R B R B UM F1TE;
(3) AFEMRAEHF EREMEN;

(4) R ERH AR EBRITE SR TR DUIMIR = RfRE
SR

HTET LR, FIRERSBEANSHEABANHIE SR
TR S BUR MDAV E R,

176 X#4847 (PE) HRAT 202 £ERE

The sensitivity analysis above is performed on the basis that assets and
liabilities have static interest rate risk structure. It reflects the impact of
interest rate movement on the Bank's net interest income over a one-
year period. The key assumptions are as follows:

(1) All assets and liabilities with re-pricing date less than three months
or between three months and one year are assumed to be re-
priced in the middle of the respective time bucket;

(2) Yield curve shifts in parallel with interest rate change;

(3) Assets and liabilities are not subject to other changes; and

(4) Off-balance sheet items except derivative financial instruments are
excluded.

Due to the above assumptions, the actual impact of net interest
income from interest rate movement may differ from above sensitivity
analysis.

4. DRME

PAME, RETHSEEEUEARENAEFXSH, HE—M
AR B SE RS — AR B ANNIE, EXHERZT
% (BHMATIESZ ) FENEET, TOHERIEARMN
BEZRELER, Af, ARSFBERRGTZADERE~RARK
HFEmh, ALk, SFZHAETNITRZEBMIE, NN TAR
ZHEFHMETTEGEEARANE, BR, EBALETERITZ
mﬁ RHEARKRANSTRELNT, HEMRE, UEAXBZHR
AN

FrRAZ T ERRRINT

() MAAMETEEEEMTALBHRBNSRHES / SoHHE
(BRETESRMAS / SRMMK) NEETHSBZHMMITE
HEARNE, METHSBZHN, WERSTEMNEEL
AMERSBIX ST AHNRNFAEL2ANE, 2RNMESTIL
EMAZKEEF

(i) FRABNEHZAMESRE~ SR NGRETHRERE, €1
HIKEMMES 2 A NMERE:

(i) LESRRZEANERTEMURRZTHAEREY, EARND
BEUSRTHHNETEGEE, BRAGPERREZZUAER
ERRNAMENTTEER, EAERNE 00 EIREN LT
FMK, MIKEER2AARNMETNE;

(v) BERERDEZEABGMEREESFHNE, BHERRLTE
ERBPHZEERARREEQIZRBAN TSI AARMNE,
FEEHRZERNAANMEUNRSRERIVELE, TIRE
ASZERERNRRPRYEHNRTERIE,

ARATPHERAMERNTTET RUAE AT

() TWETN: HNRERRIFREBENTHIRN

(i) (HEI: TR BEERARHETEE.

(4) Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. Subject to the existence of an active market,
such as an authorised securities exchange, the market value is the best
reflection of the fair value of financial instruments. As there is no available
market value for some of the financial assets and liabilities held and issued
by the Bank, the discounted cash flow method or other valuation methods
described below are adopted to determine the fair value of these assets
and liabilities. However, the value determined by such methods would
depend on the amount of future cash flows, time period assumption and
discount rates used.

The following methods and assumptions are used in estimating fair values:

(i)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (including
derivative assets/liabilities) are stated at fair value by reference to
the quoted market prices when available. If quoted market prices are
not available, the fair value is estimated using discounted cash flows
or quoted price from the counter parties. The carrying amounts of
these items reflect the fair value as at the balance sheet date;

(i)  The fair values of other financial assets and liabilities maturing within
12 months are assumed to be equal to their carrying amounts in view
of their short maturity;

(iii) The fair value of fixed rate loans priced at market rate at the time the
loans are extended shall be determined using prevailing market rates
of similar loans. Changes in the credit quality of loans within the
portfolio are not taken into account in determining the fair values
as the impact of credit risk is recognised separately as impairment
provision which shall be deducted from the carrying amounts and
fair value;

(iv) Customer deposits are priced based on fixed rate or floating rate
depending on the product type. The fair value of demand deposits
and saving deposits without specific maturity date is determined
based on the amount payable on demand. The fair value of fixed
deposits is estimated using discounted cash flows method with the
prevailing deposit rate for the remaining tenor of the fixed deposit as
the discount rate.

The method of determining a fair value in the Bank can be categorised
into two main approaches:

(i) Mark to Market - where the valuation uses independent unadjusted
quoted market prices;

(i)  Mark to Model - where valuation techniques are used to determine
the valuation.
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HEEEEARANANEN—DMBRAER, BERREFEFWEDR,
N ZZINEHITEENRRAANENER NS, A2 EBNEE
WEITEZEIFRMNER, FIMIRNEHEREMELGHER
B, UHRIINNEaEEN.

RRBIELT AMEFNFRBRAAMENSEN, WRRXAK
BAMGE BEPHREIRABEELAEZLR I TR NANE]
BAE, Moo, BRI, MASE. REMEERET 8=
ZERZIMEE, HNHERSEE8EERNOMEERS,

ARV BRHTARNERENSRT RIDPA=NER:
BE—RR: pFATHMNE

RMEERAZE AR E MR RHNERTZRN G HEEST
WEMAL RN SR~ R ERA LEREXHMMN LB S M
BERAGTHNENREE.

BIRER: HEBASHTNBITHUREE MEEZA

EXMEETRERLERESEE, MAANEIRESHMEETS
LFEENE, IMEASERASTFAIT. PRNENRLT—L
WHZE5FLBEAMBZEZNEAR, EAAZXNRROE™RE
BARSMELRRE, FoRK, ICZH /28, ReBzl/
=8, REXEME, MXREHR, KHER. §RHEN SNCHRE
GV

BZRER: HEIBRSPTHERNESINRAHMEERIA

EXMEERARZAGETHRENEM ERREZRTRNESH,
BRANSEAANZNERN S~ R BRI ESHIEEEUSE
BEIN K AREEREARNID RS EHNRZHN,

U ERBRERTEDAEADNEF R ARz A AN ER{—S 2T
BAN, Rh, BTHAVNAISERTRZTERRER, &€/
MAMFRE 2 ARMERDTERETLLM,

Ew’iﬁ 178  X#4RiT (hE) AMAS 202 RS

Valuation adjustments are an integral part of the fair value process
that requires the exercise of judgment to ensure correct fair value
representation. In making appropriate valuation adjustments, the Bank
follows the methodologies that consider factors such as bid-offer spread
valuation adjustment and model valuation adjustment.

The Bank has established internal control procedures over the valuation
process to provide assurance over the appropriateness of the fair values
applied. If fair value is determined by valuation models, the assumptions and
techniques within the models are independently validated by a specialist
group. In addition, price and parameter inputs, assumptions and valuation
adjustments are subject to verification and review processes. Other valuation
control includes review and analysis of daily profit and loss.

The Bank classifies all the fair value instruments according to the following
hierarchy:

Level T: Quoted market price

This valuation technique uses recent unadjusted quoted prices for
identical assets or liabilities in active markets. Financial instruments
included in this category are precious metals whose market prices are
published by Shanghai Gold Exchange and Shanghai Futures Exchange on
daily basis.

Level 2: Valuation technique using observable inputs

This valuation technique is used for financial instruments where the prices
are derived from standard valuation models, and significant inputs to
these models are directly observable. The valuation techniques include
the use of discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and other
valuation techniques widely used and accepted by market participants.
The financial instruments included in this category are mainly investments
in bonds and negotiable certificates of deposit, loans, foreign exchange
forward/swaps, precious metal forward/swaps, pledge-style repo, interest
rate swaps, currency swaps, commodity options, foreign exchange options
and structured products.

Level 3: Valuation technique with significant non-observable inputs

This valuation technique is used where at least one significant input is
not observable and reliance is placed on reasonable assumptions made
on market conditions. The financial instruments included in this category
are mainly precious metal options and equity options with significant
unobservable components.

All the assumptions and techniques mentioned above provide a consistent
basis for the fair value measurement of the Bank's assets and liabilities.
However, they may differ with other institutions' practice. Therefore, the
fair values disclosed by different financial institutions may not be entirely
comparable.

TRIRT UAANMETENERTREAARMNEEX:

The following table shows the fair value hierarchy of financial instruments

measured in fair value:

2021
ARMETEFERNBANE
Inputs in fair value measurement
JRERT % EEOWE FEELRUE &1t
] BWANE BWANE
Quoted Significant Significant non- Total
market price observable inputs observable inputs
(B—FER) (BZER) (B=ER)
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
=2 Precious metals 1,285,539,961 - - 1,285,539,961
T HHERAR~ Financial assets held-for-trading - 2,197,434,189 - 2,197,434,189
TTESRA Derivative financial assets 639,486,133 3,902,208,479 49,112 4,541,743,724
MARMETEBEZFITAYERIR  Loans and advances to customers
W R IR F R at fair value through profit or loss - 1,396,034,236 - 1,396,034,236
Loans and advances to customers at fair
MARMETTEAEESHITAEMLE  value through other comprehensive
AU MR IR AR income - 2,561,239,526 - 2,561,239,526
Other debt instrument at fair value through
HMEIIEE other comprehensive income - 10,436,771,937 - 10,436,771,937
ERA~EIT Total financial assets 1,925,026,094 20,493,688,367 49,112 22,418,763,573
LM Er itk Financial liabilities held-for-trading - 6,899,748,675 - 6,899,748,675
TSR AR Derivative financial liabilities 428,784,422 3,874,595,844 66,322 4,303,446,588
e Vil a=wan Total financial liabilities 428,784,422 10,774,344,519 66,322 11,203,195,263
2020
ARMETEERNRANE
Inputs in fair value measurement
JRERT 7 BEONE BELNTUE At
RN WAE WAE
Prices in Significant Significant non- Total
active markets observable inputs observable inputs
(B—FR) (BZRER) (B=EX)
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
HERE Precious metals 1,564,487,585 - - 1,564,487,585
T oM ERA Financial assets held-for-trading - 1,525,241,844 - 1,525,241,844
TSR~ Derivative financial assets 734,800,865 10,832,332,610 2,866 11,567,136,341
UAAMETEBREFHITAYLEAIR  Loans and advances to customers
HH R AR at fair value through profit or loss - 866,797,767 - 866,797,767
Other debt instrument at fair value through
HMFEIUEE other comprehensive income - 11,029,276,744 - 11,029,276,744
LA~ EIT Total financial assets 2,299,288,450 24,253,648,965 2,866 26,552,940,281
ML TR Financial liabilities held-for-trading - 3,644,232,118 - 3,644,232,118
LT SRR Derivative financial liabilities 622,432,217 10,988,905,055 26,353 11,611,363,625
SR ket Total financial liabilities 622,432,217 14,633,137,173 26,353 15,255,595,743
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REE, ARIREEURANETENE—BRNE_ERER
A= MARz 8 gk,

EBEINA, TER, KrSIEMEmESMERARHNL RN
ESHEENKENMEFTERESR.

FZEXRH2LMNETE

BENEZRRAANETEORFMAGOENRTS ER LM
ZEREBEENT:

During the year, the Bank had no transfers between level 1 and level 2
of the fair value hierarchy for financial assets and liabilities which were
recorded at fair value.

Management believes that the difference between the fair value and the
carrying amount of other financial assets and financial liabilities is not
material as at the balance sheet date.

Level 3 fair value measurement

Reconciliation of Level 3 financial instruments is as below:

2021

LTESRRE~ £ SRR Ait

Derivative financial assets Derivative financial liabilities Total

EYRE Opening balance 2,866 (26,353) (23,487)
LEAFIB SRR R

AR Movement through profit or loss during the year 46,246 (39,969) 6,277

EREE Closing balance 49,112 (66,322) (17,210)

2020

PTESRA~ PSR AR &it

Derivative financial assets Derivative financial liabilities Total

FEYRE Opening balance 1,585 (29,158) (27,573)
LHEAFIB SRR RE

AR Movement through profit or loss during the year 1,281 2,805 4,086

FERKE Closing balance 2,866 (26,353) (23,487)

E‘W‘;:"’il 180 K@4RFT (hE) AT 200 EERE

FZREREMTENERED

AOXRAE=ZERAGENESRIATIZASHIREENEFEN
XANGERANBIREBHNNR2>REHN, KTE=ZER
HENSR IR SRERTHMESTHTENEX M, N
HESH AL TR 2FEMEMESRENTEER
e, ARREZE=ZFENGEEXATTEENENSY, EEEN
HET A EIHE A EREE RHWEM, BRATIAAMNIZES I A
EH R UFA SN AT LS ERBRAEENATEERTM,

HiEMTRENARME (ERFEULXALMETERNTER)

ATHHEMESRTIRETZOEFRPRRITRIM, FRELKRI,
FHAE. IANBESRASNURURBEAZITBOHREERM
723,

BRABMRARMBRIN, KBDERASHT-FZATH, HkE
MEFEARNE.

RIMGTHRAER R RRA M A S HBRRERRAEETIN (M
EE7) . BTREEAMBEROFIREPEARRITAEHIEX
K EENRBERAENBRBREAENRRETERESH, Fit
RHERMBRNAAMESKENMEREE,

RITMERBATTN NS A GRERSRERF L EH MBS RN TR
M, AR S RRFR. RHEMESRA~RE LTRSS,
THREFER, AfTERAGNKENERENRNE,

MNEEMRERTEARTAFRARARAMENITERMRT 55—
HOERt, AT, BTHMENSTESERATRNTERERER, B,
BEERVMARENARANER—ERF TN,

Sensitivity analysis of Level 3 financial instruments

The Bank's level 3 financial instruments are mainly precious metal options and
equity options with significant unobservable components. All level 3 financial
instruments are hedged back-to-back with the parent company in Singapore,
hence the fluctuation of valuation inputs by a certain degree will have limited
impact on net profit and other comprehensive income. Therefore, although
non-observable inputs are used in level 3 valuation models, and management's
judgments and estimates on them lead to the valuation uncertainties, the
Bank believes that changes in the judgments and estimates will not have
significant impact on the Bank's profit and equity.

Fair value of other financial instruments (not measured at fair value)

Other financial assets mainly include deposits with the central bank, due
from banks, placements with banks, reverse repurchase financial assets
and loans and advances at amortised cost.

Except for loans and advances to customers, most financial assets are due
within one year, therefore their carrying amounts are close to their fair
values.

Loans and advances to customers are presented at amortised cost plus
accrued interest, and deducted by impairment losses (Note 7.7). Since the
interest rates for loans and advances are adjusted timely upon PBOC's
stipulated interest rates, and the net values of impaired loans reflect the
recoverable amount by deducting the impairment losses, the carrying
amounts of loans and advances are close to their fair values.

The Bank's financial liabilities that are measured at amortised cost mainly
include due to banks and other financial institutions, placements from
banks and other financial institutions, customer deposits, repurchase
agreements and debt securities issued. As at the balance sheet date, the
carrying amounts of the Bank's financial liabilities are close to their fair
values.

The above assumptions and methodologies provide the same basis for fair
value valuation of the Bank's assets and liabilities. However, that may differ
with other financial institutions' practice, hence the fair value disclosed by
different financial institutions may not be comparable.
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+=. XKBEBFRRZRERXS 12. Related Party Transactions
1. REXAHIAERR A (1) Criteria of identifying related parties

Details of the Bank's major related parties in 2021 are as follows:

TAREE, THETMHEARSIRREKTT:

1) ARKAIHEAT; (1) Parent company of the Bank;
2) RN FAT; (2) Subsidiary of the Bank;
(B) EAXRNTIZE—BATEFHHOEMSL; (3) Entities under control of the same parent company;
(4) JWARASTSEHEEEIEH NIRRT (4) Investors exercise joint control over the Bank;
(5) WARATMEINEARZMWMAETT; (5) Investors exercise significant influence over the Bank;
(6) EAIWEEDL; (6) Joint ventures of the Bank;
(7) AATHEERL; (7)  Affiliated company of the Bank;
8) ANTHNFTERRENARSEXRZRZYINKEMR: (8) Main individual investors of the Bank or the close family members;
(9) ANTINFEEEBARSB AT AEEEAR, MES5HXER (9) Key management personnel of the Bank or parent company, and

FEUINRER R the close family members;
(10) ANTHNFTEKRRENA. XEBETIEAASSHXEZRTNR (10) Other companies controlled or jointly controlled by the Bank's

B GES . EEESH MmN major investors, key management personnel or close family
m EAIESVERNEMKZEN (BEFAIRNFLE) members;

HEELWEHEEE D ; (1) Joint ventures or affiliated company of other member units
(12) ARATLBmI-EEFHLEVHEESWHEEESL; (including parent companies and subsidiaries) of the enterprise
(13) WARAZEMERFZ MO VHEE S, group to which the bank belongs;
(14) KATEINPLESES, (12) Joint ventures or affiliated company of enterprises which exercise

joint control over the Bank;
(13) Joint ventures of enterprises which exercise significant influence
over the Bank;
(14)  Annuity established by the Bank.
2. AN T AT (2) Parent company of the Bank
W MR A A HHE R LG
Business Nature Registered Address Share Capital Shareholding
RERITHRAE] RITRERIRS A BN 100%
United Overseas Bank Limited Banking and Financial Service Singapore SGD7,391 Million

SSERTL 182 kRS (RE) HRRAE 200 £

. FAREASERRABERKXZ BRI HAMKEKT

FZ &2 THEFIRI A F

Company under the common control of parent company

REERFT (BRAL ) HRAE)
United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) Bhd.

RERFT (RE) BRAE]

United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public Company Limited

RERST (ENERAL) HRAF
PT Bank UOB Indonesia

LBEHBLHRAS
UOB Property China Co., Ltd.

MERBIRAER (LF) BRAS
UOB Venture Management (Shanghai) Co., Ltd

W55 MR

Business Nature

BITRERMRS

Banking and financial service

RORERRS

Banking and financial service

RORERRS

Banking and financial service

B AR 28, HEMER
Real estate development, operating,
leasing and management

RAEE, AEASEE, RALA
Consulting and investment management

year are as follows

A

Registered Address

kAT HER

Kuala Lumpur Malaysia

FEHEH
Bangkok Thailand

ENERHAET A

Jakarta Indonesia

TE tiE
Shanghai China

TE LtiE
Shanghai China

EMREA
Registered Capital

ORAETHRERF 2012
RM2 Billion

R 2486 2T
Baht24.86 Billion

ENE AL Atk 27966.61 27T
IDR2,796.66 Billion

ART 1799 {25t
RMB1.799 Billion

EIT 1555 AT
USD15.55 Million

(3) The related parties which the Bank had transactions with during the

EERRA

Legal Representative

A
Wong Kim Choong

BRS¢
Tan Choon Hin

Ardhi Wibowo

LAIJING WEY

B
Seah Kian Wee

REF = EEBRAE REEH R #6300 T 7T KA

UOB Asset Management Ltd. Investment management Singapore SGD63 Million Thio Boon Kiat
RN E] EE AN EIT 650 AT Eriberto Resurreccion

UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. Holding company New York USA UsDé.5 Million de Guzman

Bk (IER) RERAERAE BRTFR . FARHE . AL, PEIER i 500 F T Sl
BREE. BARRS

AVATEC (BEIJING) Co., Ltd Technique services and consultancy; Beijing China SGD5 Million Yan Tao Tao
Application software development;
Other business consultancy.

FEAREAZMPLFE
Company under the significant influence of the parent company

mEFAWEREE (IR ) BRAE W EEFERS FE IR ET150 AT ERE

InnoVen Enterprise Management Consulting Enterprise management and Beijing China UsD1.5 Million Cao Ying Xue

(Beijing) Co., Ltd. consultancy services

HEFRAREERAS MARRVESERESTELSEX FE XZE 57T 1,000 17T ERE
B R ARIE A 55

InnoVen Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. Financial leasing and related factoring  Tianjin China USD10 Million Cao Ying Xue
business

LiRiERPUIRAEERRAS) RS A SRR A A8 TE L %L 200 T ERE

Shanghai InnoVen Equity Investment Managenent Equity investment management and Shanghai China UsSD2 Million Cao Ying Xue

Private Limited

investment consultancy
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AT REEAR Key management personnel 4. KN REXBAZEERS (4) Main transactions between the Bank and related parties
XETEAR, BREALNTINEE. LERSRETEAA, Key management personnel include directors, supervisor and senior
management.
VoA e Loans and advances to customers 31-12-2021 31-12-2020
TANTIE@EEA REASINGAT 2H HEEESRILE P NCICPS 3 P o
L R , Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
Company under the significant influence of the Bank's key management
) e LERREVARAS] Shanghai Jin Jun Realty Co., Ltd. 350,558,785 0.87 223,145,783 0.60

VSR SEM SEMFA EEREA ’

Business Nature Registered Address Registered Capital Legal Representative miEER (Ki2) KEERAT UIC Jin Travel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. 70,733,362 0.18 0.19
el (E ) BEERRAS ZEEEAER HE E 23T 3700 AT ZInE [BERITRPERAT Evergrowing Bank Co., Ltd 35,899,900 0.09 -
Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited Hotel management Xiamen China USD37 Million Neo Soon Hup

N . R . _ . &1t Total 457,192,047 1.14 0.79
REREVFLED = FRERAS B TR HE RE ARMN3ZT BR3P
Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co., Ltd. Real estate development Tianjin China CNY1.13 Billion Tan Kian Siew
KE (L&) RAEEFRAS BEELS. tLEERRREERENR FE biE £JT 650 AT B
Kheng Leong (Shanghai) Investment Business information consulting; Corporate Shanghai China USD6.5 Million Wee Ee Chao Due from and placement with banks and
Management Co., Ltd management consulting, Investment FRR AR other financial institutions 31-12-2021 31-12-2020

management consulting

s — iy (> Sk N, » —_ —_ = ZIRER =) KT ZINAAR [ ZINHEA El KT ZINHEA I
BB ERAT B B AENRS (RA%A FE B %5 820 7 Er B AR AT Sl sk i

FRIRE. BRI RAMTLTTHEHD

WE) ; E—KETFHRWHMEK, p — . -

Chinese patent medicine productionMedical KIEBITHERAT United Overseas Bank Limited 2,284,072,622 18.75 1,408,350,022 13.58
Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. information consulting services (excluding Xiamen China UsD8.2 Million Goh Bee Leong

drug information services, disease diagnosis RERFT (DREL ) BRA S United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) Bhd. 2,334,840 0.02 1,951,478 0.02

and treatment and other items subject to

approval);Wholesale of medical devices of KIEBFT(ENERHEIT ) BE/AS] PT Bank UOB Indonesia 565,035 0.00 6,338 -

category |.

N w0 — N H4RTT NG United O Bank (Thai) Publi
R UL o) 5. EERHBETRR" S i #7% 266228 (25 #HE KERE (RR) BRAT Comny g (el Publc 206,301 o ]

b) RBERFEXRNMRARS ' '

O AR R Bk o Lud
Haw Par Corporation Limited (a) manufacturing, marketing and trading Singapore SGD266.228 Million Wee Cho Yaw EBFRITEMHRAF Evergrowing Bank Co., Ltd. - - 1.89

healthcare products;

(b) providing leisurerelated goods and services; Ait Total 2,287,178,798 18.77 15.49

(c) investing in properties and securities
FEEL (N#H) XKRARAS B AL, 28, HERMERE hE RER 27T 2,400 AT
Singland (Chengdu) Development Co., Ltd. :qeaariaeset::n(:evelopment, operating, leasingand  Chengdu China UsD24 Million Chua Yu Lee Due to and placements from banks and

8 FENRIFENEIR other financial institutions 31-12-2021 31-12-2020
LBBBEVHRAS B EFEREE FE biE ART 23127t ' — s = e
Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd. Real estate development and operation Shanghai China RMB2.3 Billion Lim Beng Teong BaI:ﬁ?: = Hginxtiﬁf)}ﬁ:?‘ﬂ s ng:iﬁijﬁ:lig%
0, 0,
HEER (RE) RRAERAE MERMAMBES . SFHE. AREE. B FEXE AR 2406 25T RER

WignERHE, AR, B8 KRIERTHRAT United Overseas Bank Limited 10,098,378,083 72.33 83.36
UIC Jin Travel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. Manufacturing of new construction materials, ~ Tianjin China RMB240.6 Million Eu Zai Jie

sale, lease and management of office buildings, TR HESEIEARAT Ping An Fund Management Company

apartment hotel, commercial facilities Limited 20,558,028 0.15 -
LERBREVERAT B EFEREE FE g AR 9191127t . - — . . )

Shanghai Jin Jun Realty Co., Ltd. Real estate development and operation Shanghai China RMB919.1 Million Lim Beng Teong RERTT (RE) HRAT) United Oversgas Bank (Thai) Public
Company Limited 18,638,518 0.13 0.01
RAEF (LE) BEEEFERAS HEEEE, RAEE. DIVEEES HE L ERTLSAT ZInE
Pan Pacific (Shanghai) Hotel Management Co., Ltd. Hotel management, investment consultingand ~ Shanghai China USD50 Thousand Neo Soon Hup KIEBRT (ENERAET ) BFR/AS)  PT Bank UOB Indonesia 1,388,373 0.01 _
corporate management consulting
A
BERERHERAT BURS - BRERERIR, HEEE,  BE UK AR 2096 125 B aldl fotal 10,138,963,002 7262 8337

ERVEE
Evergrowing Bank Co., Ltd. Commercial Banks - Customer deposits, Loans ~ Shandong China RMBI111.2096 Billion Chen Ying

and advances to customers, settlement and bill

business, etc
FRESEERRAT Hen&E HeHE, ArERE HE R ART BT FER
Ping An Fund Management Company Limited Fund raising, fund sales, investment management Shenzhen China RMB1.3 Billion Luo Chun Feng

184 Xi#E4R1T (PE) HRAT 202 £ERE
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R - HAth fafm Payables - other liabilities 31-12-2021 31-12-2020
KA AREEZGRAMLA REN EIEESE S l=41]

Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)

KERITHRRE) United Overseas Bank Limited 51,852,653 8.24 29,196,163 5.01
KIERFT (RE) BRAT United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public - - 845,385 0.14
MBI AEIE (L) ABR/AS UOB Venture Management (Shanghai) Co., Ltd - - 188,760 0.03
Ait Total 51,852,653 8.24 30,230,308 5.18
ZEMEEMAE Financial liabilities held-for-trading 31-12-2021 31-12-2020
A ARXZSRAMLA RE LR SR B

Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)

KIERITERAE United Overseas Bank Limited 6,719,600,174 97.39 3,273,239,918 89.82
IS ON Interest income 2021 2020
£ HEEIZRELE X1 i REZ ZRELLH

Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)

LEBREVARAS Shanghai Jin Jun Realty Co., Ltd. 14,282,244 0.68 8,101,381 0.38
#EER (Ki2) KRERAS  UIC Jin Travel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. 3,563,174 0.17 3,545,446 0.16
RERTHRAE United Overseas Bank Limited 2,399,234 0.11 2,650,765 0.12
fEFETERNDERAT Evergrowing Bank Co., Ltd. 1,538,098 0.07 4,044,179 0.19
ait Total 21,782,750 1.03 18,341,771 0.85

UlgEEN Customer deposits 31-12-2021 31-12-2020
R AREZZRGLLS RE A REZZREALLG
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
LSRR YHRAS Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd. 2,380,884,762 571 1,560,946,699 4.28
MEBILEEE (L&) ARAT UOB Venture Management (Shanghai) 186,225,430 0.45 191,283,831 0.52
Co., Ltd.
LBRBREVERAS Shanghai Jin Jun Realty Co., Ltd. 162,993,143 0.39 2,328 -
HEEM (5#E) XEERAT Singland (Chengdu) Development Co., Ltd. 154,877,804 0.37 150,148,572 0.41
G ERMAHERRAT InnoVen Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. 57,946,712 0.14 54,735,493 0.15
LEEHRBENBRAT UOB Property China Co., Ltd. 54,386,172 0.13 460,016,400 1.26
EEREAFRAS Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. 27,416,724 0.07 17,616,288 0.05
ik (R2) RERERAT UIC Jin Travel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. 25,716,411 0.06 7,351,010 0.02
RAER (LE) BEEEFERAS (P:an T_a;ific (Shanghai) Hotel Management 16,038,080 0.04 14,895,858 0.04
0., Lta.
WHEFESWEEREE (L) BRZAS InnoVen Enterprise Management 10,336,283 0.02 6,791,513 0.02
Consulting (Beijing) Co., Ltd.
w\r (E]) BEERAS Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 7,101,882 0.02 7,686,640 0.02
K& (E8) IRABIEFGRAT Kheng Leong (Shanghai) Investment 2,709,768 0.01 4,724,871 0.01
Management Co., Ltd.
B (IEx) REBRAS AVATEC (BEIJING) Co., Ltd 402,938 - - -
KiBEVFEE=FEBRAT Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co., Ltd. 94,979 - 42,550 -
EHOVERAT Haw Par Corporation Limited 8,094 - 4,723,188 0.01
XBREBEAR Key Management Personnel 49,357,122 0.12 16,557,796 0.05
Ait Total 3,136,496,304 7.53 2,497,523,037 6.84
Tz IR - ot Rz W=k Receivables - other receivables 31-12-2021 31-12-2020
R ABREZGRILH REN A EEZ SRR B
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
LigtFHBEBLHRAT UOB Property China Co., Ltd. 12,883,206 3.74 12,931,100 1.95
KIERITERAT United Overseas Bank Limited 12,592,561 3.65 2,845,307 0.43
KERF=EEFRAT UOB Asset Management Ltd. 375,065 0.11 353,805 0.05
KERTT (DRAEL ) FRAT United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) Bhd. 1,543 - _ _
RIERTT (EDEREL) HRAS  PT Bank UOB Indonesia 612 - - B
&it Total 25,852,987 7.50 16,130,212 2.43
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FIEXH Interest expense 2021 2020
SH  AREXZRILLE ] A RER ZRILL B
Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)
KIERITHIRAT United Overseas Bank Limited 150,477,374 15.34 234,436,230 20.15
LR EVERAS Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd. 35,631,969 3.63 22,692,418 1.95
EBEHBELVERAS UOB Property China Co., Ltd. 5,488,816 0.56 8,928,232 0.77
MEB AR EE (LE) ARATE UOB Venture Management (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd. 3,315,723 0.34 3,407,875 0.29
HeE (B XEERAT Singland (Chengdu) Development Co., Ltd. 1,769,353 0.18 1,706,433 0.15
TeESEEFRAT Ping An Fund Management Company Limited 545,354 0.06 - -
RAYEE (LE) BEEEEARAS Pan Pacific (Shanghai) Hotel Management
Co., Ltd. 166,951 0.02 165,862 0.01
w\r (E]) BEERAS Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 121,237 0.01 140,053 0.01
WA FREEERRAS InnoVen Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. 101,267 0.01 407,416 0.04
FHERR (KF) RRBMAF UIC Jin Travel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. 99,790 0.01 108,844 0.01
HIEFEAWEEREE (L5 ) BBR/A5 InnoVen Enterprise Management
Consulting (Beijing) Co., Ltd. 68,294 0.01 63,900 0.01
B EREHERAT Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. 25,064 - 21,494 -
KIERFT (RE) BARAT United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public
Company Limited 18,613 - 7,594 -
EERBREVERAS Shanghai Jin Jun Realty Co., Ltd. 4,956 - 16 _
KB (L) BRASEARAT Kheng Leong (Shanghai) Investment
Management Co., Ltd. 4,306 - 61,858 0.01
RHEVHRAT Haw Par Corporation Limited 1,997 - 29,159 -
RIERTT (EDERAEL) HRAS  PT Bank UOB Indonesia 256 - . B
&K (b)) BEBRAS AVATEC (BEWING) Co., Ltd 206 - - .
KW FEEM=TALEGRAS  Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co., Ltd. 137 - 269 .
XBREBAR Key Management Personnel 292,820 0.03 323,591 0.03
&it Total 198,134,483 20.20 272,501,244 23.43

188  Xi#E4R{T (PE) HRAT 202 £ERE

FEERAEEA Fee and commission income 2021 2020

S AREXZRALLE k) h R ZRELL B

Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)

RERITHRAT) United Overseas Bank Limited 19,506,353 9.20 5,940,501 3.07

RERF=EEFRAS UOB Asset Management Ltd. 6,492,077 3.06 7,148,014 3.70

TERBREVERAT Shanghai Jin Jun Realty Co., Ltd. 75,532 0.04 1,030,822 0.53
KIERTT (RE) BRAT United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public

Company Limited 32,953 0.02 24,142 0.01
BElEREHBRAT Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. 16,059 0.01 14,113 0.01
ek (Fi2) 2RERAD UIC Jin Travel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. 9,783 . 111,714 0.06
EEEHBEVERAT UOB Property China Co., Ltd. 6,842 - 1,473 -
Kzt FHEEM>=FLEBRAS  Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co., Ltd. 4,716 - 2,821 -
EFMAEERRAT InnoVen Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. 4,066 - 38,108 0.02
REHEWVERAS Haw Par Corporation Limited 1,276 - . B
B8 (b)) REERAS AVATEC (BEIJING) Co., Ltd. 1,268 - - -
KR (ENERAL) HMR/AS  PT Bank UOB Indonesia 1,020 - - -
FRESEERRAT Ping An Fund Management Company

Limited 1,019 - - -
miaF AW EEREE (LR ) BBRAS) InnoVen Enterprise Management

Consulting (Beijing) Co., Ltd. 915 - 845 -
TAREF (bE) BEEEEMRAS Pan Pacific (Shanghai) Hotel Management

Co., Ltd. 864 - 728 -
BB EREE (L&) HR2AS  UOB Venture Management (Shanghai)

Co., Ltd 356 - - -
£\ (E]) BEEGRAT Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 325 - 1,125 -
HmEM (BE) XEARAS Singland (Chengdu) Development Co., Ltd. 66 - 38 -
KEHRIT (DRET) BRAS United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) Bhd. - - (22,262) (0.01)
BFRITRABAIRAE Evergrowing Bank Co., Ltd. - - 5,483 -
KB (£F) RAEERRAT Kheng Leong (Shanghai) Investment

Management Co., Ltd - - 2,000 -
ait Total 26,155,490 12.33 14,299,665 7.39
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Notes to Financial Statements

2021 £ & For the year ended 31 December 2021
(BR45HIERASN, MBI ARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

FEERAETH Fee and commission expense 2021 2020
€M HEXZHRAMLLE &% EIEES S l=4i]
Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)
KERITERAT United Overseas Bank Limited 1,302,887 2.71 71,549 0.14
KIERTT (ENERET) BR/AS PT Bank UOB Indonesia 841 - 1,688,928 3.34
RERFT (BRAET ) ARAE] United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) Bhd. 111 - 25 _
KIERFT (FE) BRAT United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public Company
Limited 42 - - -
A1 Total 1,303,881 2.71 1,760,502 3.48
ikl Investment income 2021 2020
€8 HREXHRALLE kil h R ZRELL B
Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)
KIERITERAT United Overseas Bank Limited 10,549,775 25.63 9,133,642 5.06
&R EIRTR General and administrative expenses 2021 2020
€M HEXXHRAMLLE 201 HEEZ G R B
Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)
EEHATHS IT support
- RERTERAE - United Overseas Bank Limited 62,715,117 5.98 60,819,151 5.86
FEHSERSH Rental and service fee
- EEBEFBVERAS - UOB Property China Co., Ltd. 52,459,888 5.00 54,300,776 5.23
-1er (JE) SEERRAS - Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 296,133 0.03 296,133 0.03
- RERITHERAE - United Overseas Bank Limited - - 78,491 0.01
&it Total 115,471,138 11.01 115,494,551 11.13
F xRk Software development 2021 2020
W HREXHRALLE kil h R ZRALL B
Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)
RERTHRAF United Overseas Bank Limited 10,726,086 52.58 1,733,184 77.42
AETHER SRR IE Irrevocable loan commitments 31-12-2021 31-12-2020
R HEXZHRALLE R EIEES S 141!
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
LERREVERAS Shanghai Jin Jun Realty Co., Ltd. - - 52,207,209 2.28

190 x#4R¢7 (PE) HRAF

2021 FERE

1RE& Letter of guarantee 31-12-2021 31-12-2020
£H  SEEXHHEFLE WA SR R BHI
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
RERTHRA S United Overseas Bank Ltd. 14,918,763 0.77 61,841,578 5.74
{FERABUA=E Right-of-use assets 31-12-2021 31-12-2020
M EEEXHRELE El EIEESE E3:1=41]
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)

EEEHBELVERAT UOB Property China Co., Ltd
- EEME -Rent 38,014,688 50.77 76,029,374 62.28
HEmE Lease liabilities 31-12-2021 31-12-2020
£ HREEZZHRELLH RE HEIEE 5 RAMEL B
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)

LEEHBEVHERAS UOB Property China Co., Ltd
-EEME -Rent 36,055,650 49.25 77,394,280 65.35
FINIRE Reverse repurchase financial assets 31-12-2021 31-12-2020
FH  EREEXZRFLE FE SR G R
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
TEEBITRDERAS Evergrowing Bank Co., Ltd. - - 150,035,304 6.60
TEEMIREY Derivatives 31-12-2021 31-12-2020
KA HREEZGRELG RER SR R BI
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
RERTERAT) United Overseas Bank Ltd. 18,269,283,358 3.57 42,488,123,777 6.34
RERFT (ENFERAT ) BRAS  PT Bank UOB Indonesia 98,581 - - -
&1t Total 18,269,381,939 3.57 42,488,123,777 6.34
TEERE~ Derivative financial assets 31-12-2021 31-12-2020
Balance Balance
KIEBTHRAT United Overseas Bank Ltd. 273,226,747 287,457,882
RAERIT (ENERATL ) BFR/AS  PT Bank UOB Indonesia 612 _
&3t Total 273,227,359 287,457,882
TEEMAE Derivative financial liabilities 31-12-2021 31-12-2020
Balance Balance
KIERTHRAE) United Overseas Bank Ltd. 502,736,918 445,084,643
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Notes to Financial Statements
2021 £ & For the year ended 31 December 2021
(BREHIERS, BB AARTIT)
(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)
RAFE ERXBEFHTHZZRBEENF LR H &K M4HT, MU—
BEZZMIE D ENEM, HREEVSEFHTT,

BRLERZZN, KRB MAXBEEANRFEBMNMOT:

The Bank's transactions with the above-mentioned related parties are
conducted in accordance with normal commercial transaction conditions,
based on general transaction prices, and in accordance with normal business
procedures.

Key management personnel’s salaries and benefits are as follows:

2021 2020

BR¥FERAMGEIET

Employee salaries and other short-term
incentives

92,895,534 97,088,423

S5RAFFEET N HERNT:

AR ERFRUMNEVFEESHREFTNHRLEI, RERR
FHMREKX 5.,

Transactions between the Bank and the annuity are as follows:

No transactions other than normal contribution to the annuity were
conducted between the Bank and the annuity established by the Bank.

+=. i
T AERARFEA
AATKENERA - BREEIRTEANSEREAYNEH

IR, FERERYMNEEHEEN2SF, sHTAMNERNE
FHh3E, PEHEESRBESEMERN, LIEEFEN,

13. Lease
(1) As lessee
The leased assets of the Bank include the buildings and vehicles used
during daily operation. The lease term for buildings is usually 2-5 years,

and the lease term for vehicles is usually 3-4 years. A few lease contracts
have an option to extend the lease or an option to terminate the lease.

2021 2020

Cash outflow related to lease

SHAEAXMNALRSY

67,160,791 81,911,894

RANEE ST B MRS
AAERBNER R ET BEORKEER SR TERRT T 2
FARA, BEE R PHRRE R SE R, BEBRAME,
ERIBE A THARE R SRR,
SIS 1L LI

2021 4, AR E) T E RS FEN G L LR TR E RS KERT
FEERRETUMSEFATHEL,

EREE A TF I IFAEE

ARTAREEREBEEHRFHRAMAETITRRFEERSRTENBER
nr

Potential cash outflow that not accounts for lease liabilities

Potential cash outflow that not accounts for lease liabilities mainly arises
from risk exposures such as variable lease payable, option to extend
the lease, option to terminate the lease, guaranteed residual value, and
committed but not commenced leases.

Option to extend the lease, option to terminate the lease

There is no change on lease terms arose from the change on the
assessment of option to extend the lease, option to terminate the lease
or actual option exercise situation in 2021.

Committed but not commenced leases

The expected cash outflows of committed but not commenced leases in
the future are as below:

2021 2020

1TEMA (&14F) Within 1 year (include 1 year) 151,800 2,854,511
1THEZE2F (5 2F) 1-2 years (include 2 years) 59,500 1,430,946
211,300 4,285,457
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Notes to Financial Statements

2021 £ & For the year ended 31 December 2021
(BR45HIERASN, MBI ARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)
HEZAIREER

AP EHARMEMER~HE#TEHLLE, REIAMEANR
REMBRRE, AR, BRNERS SETAZBNERLNT:

Additional information on lease expense

The bank uses the simplified approach to account for short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets which are not recognised as the right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities. Profit or loss recognises on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets is as below:

2021 2020

SSHAFREE Expenses for short-term leases 6,818,088 5,118,900
Expenses for leases of low-value assets

MNMEREER (EHAEERN (other than short-term leases) - _

6,818,088 5,118,900

HitHEER

ERAMAS, SAKEE. 5 MEPEL, 10, BEAHRHTISEMA,
ZAKEL. 3 NEHEEMENER~AENELLE, S
Em, 15 TN, SRMPEM, 5 MEbEL. 23,

+0., #EEfifiRAEER

RIFAAT 20201 F6FARBFM00FE_REFTRWMN
E200FER2ABEMERTREEEEEZASLEHERN
PREEER [2021] 9355 (EBRERERXTRERT (FE)
ARASBIMEMAANME) , KASTRBFEINEMEELAR
i 2,000,000,000.00 7t, HKRERTERATTHEEFRZHIE30
HAZHMHAE, TEFEMNEMHEARND AR 750000000000 7T,
HE202F181B8HIE, ARSEWERETHHN LM E
A (RRAR) SHARTRENLZT. RATURTHAARD
2,000,000,000.00 T, ERKBAARE HERKERSITMESH (4
REBAI) EEOMER, T 202518 24 HERT Zk&EmH
(2022) 16 55 60658622 BO1 SIG HIRE .

+a. tLBREE
ETFURBEDNELEN G, UFAAERZIRER.

N, MERRZME

AWM ERRWEANSEERET 2022 F3 7 25 HRIWHAE,

SSENETL 194 ke (hE) HRAR 207 SRR
1 ]

Other information on lease

Please refer to Note 4.15 and Note 710 for right-of-use assets; refer to
Note 7.31 for interest expense of lease liabilities; refer to Note 4.15 for
simplified approach to account for short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets : refer to Note 4.15 and Note 7.23 for lease liabilities.

14. Post Balance Sheet Events

According to the Board resolution on 4 June 2021 and Hu Yin Bao Jian
Fu [2021] No 935 The Approval on the Increase of Registered Capital of
United Overseas Bank (China) Limited issued by CBIRC Shanghai Bureau on
28 December 2021, the registered capital of the Bank would increase by
RMB2 billion to RMB7.5 billion, which should be completed within 30 days
upon receiving the regulator's approval. As of 18 January 2022, the Bank
received RMB2 billion capital injection from the parent company, which
was verified by Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP Shanghai Branch with Ernst &
Young Hua Ming (2022) Yan Zi No 60658622 BO1 capital verification report
issued on 24 January 2022.

15. Comparative Amounts

Certain comparative amounts have been adjusted to conform with the

current year's presentation.

16. Approval of the Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 25 March 2022.
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